Small aniness Regulatory ReVieW Board Meeting
| Thursday, April 18, 2019 |
10:00 a.m.
‘Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building
(State Office Tower)

Conference Room 405 — 235 South Beretania Street
| Honolulu, HI 96813



David Y. Ige
Governor

Michael
McCartney
DBEDT Director

Members

Anthony Borge
Chairperson
O‘ahu

Robert Cundiff
Vice Chairperson
O ‘ahu

Garth Yamanaka
2nd Vice
Chairperson
Hawai ‘i

Harris Nakamoto
O ‘ahu

Dr. Nancy
Atmospera-Walch
O ‘ahu

Mary Albitz
Maui

William Lydgate
Kaua i

James (Kimo) Lee
Hawai’i

Jonathan Shick
O’ahu

Director, DBEDT
Voting Ex Officio

II.
I11.
IV.

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)

No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI 96813

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI 96804

Email: dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb

Thursday, April 18, 2019 % 10:00 a.m.
Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building - State Office Tower
Conference Room 405
235 South Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI 96813

Call to Order

AGENDA

Introduction of New Board Members

Approval of March 21, 2019 Meeting Minutes

New Business — Before Public Hearing

Tel: 808 586-2419

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Title 8, Department of
Liquor Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of
Liquor Control, County of Maui, as follows — Discussion Leader — Mary Albitz
a. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating
Liquor of the County of Maui;
b. Chapter 102, Rules Governing the Administrative Practices and
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication
Board of the County of Maui

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR)
Title 16, Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure, promulgated by Department
of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA) — Discussion Leader — Mark Ritchie

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 16, Chapter 185,
Annual Audited Financial Reporting, promulgated by DCCA — Discussion

Leader — Mark Ritchie

D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 11, Chapter 186,
Certificate of Need Program, promulgated by Department of Health — Discussion

Leader — Harris Nakamoto

Legislative Matters

A. Update on the following Legislative Measures:

a. Senate Bill 1348 SD1 HD1 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory
Review Board — Clarifies the intent of the small business regulatory review
board when reviewing state and county administrative rules and ordinances

that impact small business, and appropriates funds

b. Governor’s Message 559 Submitting for Consideration of the
Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Jonathan Shick to the Small

Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2022



Small Business Regulatory Review Board
April 18,2019
Page 2

c. Governor’s Message 624 Submitting for Consideration of the
Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. James Lee to the Small Business
Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2020

d. Governor’s Message 625 Submitting for Consideration of the
Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Garth Yamanaka to the Small
Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2023

V1. Administrative Matters

A. Update on the following Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in
accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, as follows

a. Meetings with Board Members and State Department Directors

b. Changes to the Board’s Website

c. May 4, 2019 - Hawaii Small Business Fair at Leeward Community College
d. May 8" and 9" - Hawaii Small Business Conference at Maui Arts &
Cultural Center

VII. Next Meeting: Thursday, May 16, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street,

Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405,
Honolulu, HI 96813

VIII. Adjournment

If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to participate in the public
hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or parking
designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2419 at least three (3) business days prior
to the meeting so arrangements can be made.



II. Introduction of New Board Members



I11. ‘.Ap_proval of March 21, 2019 Meeting Minutés



Approved:

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETINC
March 21, 2019 ‘

Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretama Street, Lelopapa A Kamehameha Building
(State Off[ce Tower), Honolulu Hawaii 96813

l. CALL TO ORDER Chair Borge called the meeting to order at 10 01am. W|th a quorum
present.

ME&"{_‘?{E&? EﬁriseEng; . ABSENT MEMBERS:
Robert Cundiff, Vice Chair - W-”“am Lydgate
Garth Yamanaka, Second Vice Chair

Harris Nakamoto

‘Nancy Atmospera-Walch

Mary Albitz

Mark Ritchie

STAFF: DBEDT Office of the Attorney General
Dori Palcovich Jennifer Polk-Waihee
Jet’'aime Alcos

In. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 26, 2019 MINUTES

Mr Nakamoto made a motion to accept the February 26, 2019 minutes, as presented
Ms. Atmospera-WaIch seconded the motion, and the Board members unammously agreed.

Il. OLD BUSINESS — After Public Hearmg
'A Dlscussmn and.Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearlhq and

Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 18, Chapter 235 Income Tax Law, promulgated
by Department of Taxation (DoTax)

a. Section 235-98 Réturns; form, verification: time .of filing

Discussion leader and Second Vice Chair'Yamamoto stated that the proposed amendments
provide an- automatic six-month extension for the deadline to file income tax returns to
businesses without filing an application first; whereas prior to the amendments, only
cohsumers were given an automatic extension. The amendments are straight-forward, non-
controversial, and there was no testimony at the public hearing.

Second Vice Chair Yamamoto made a motion to forwerd the proposed rules to the Governor
for adoption. Vice Chair Cundiff seconded the motlon and the Board members unanimousty
- agreed. :



b. Section 235-1.14(d) Substantial,.qainful.business or oooupation; defined

Discussion leader and Second Vice Chair Yamanaka explained that the purpose of the
amendments is to prevent taxpayers who are blind, deaf or totally disabled, with substantially
large gross business income from taking business deductions to reduce net income below
$30,000 and to receive income and general excise tax benefits designed for persons and
businesses mcapable of generating substantlal income for themselves due to disability.

During the public hearing, there were no testimonies or feedback for or against the changes.
Ms. Albitz stated that DoTax does not do a very good job at reaching out to the stakeholders.
Chair Borge noted that that Board’s response letter to DoTax and the Governor should
include the recommendation that, in the future, DoTax reach out to the stakeholders,
particularly situations like this where there is a blind vendor association; Mr. Ritchie added
that it should not be difficult to determine who these stakeholders would be.’

Ms. Albitz made a motion to move the proposed amendments to the Governor-for adoption
and to recommend that the department try to engage small businesses impacted by the rule
changes through various means of outreach including business organizations and.trade
associations. Second Vice Chair Yamamoto seconded the motlon and the Board members
unanlmously agreed. :

B Dlscuss10n and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearlnq and
Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 18, Chapter 237, Income Tax Law, Section 29-
© 57-01 Exemption for intangible property used outS|de the state promulqated by
DoTax

Discussion leader and Second Vice Chair Yamamoto explained that the new section defines
where intangible property is used for purposes of the general excise tax-exemption for gross
income received from intangible property used outside the state. Specifically, the section
allows when intangible property is used, it is based on whether the customer is-a business,
individual,-military, or government. It was noted that the law was intended to close a
“loophole” for clarification purposes when different states are involved. Chair Borge stated
that there was no commentary made-during the public hearing; Ms. Albitz added that, again,
DoTax did not do a very good-job at reaching out-to the stakeholders.

Second Vice Chair Yamamoto made a motion to move the proposed rules to the Governor
for adoption and to recommend that in the future DoTax attempt to engage small businesses
impacted by the proposed rule changes. Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board
members unanimously agreed.

C. Discus‘sion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and
Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 11 Chapter 157, Examination and
Immunlzatlon — promulqated by Department of Health (DOH)

Dr. Sarah Park, Ch|ef and Mr Ronald Balajadia, Branch Chief, at DOH’s Disease Outbreak
Control Division, explained that the proposed changes to the rules are to update and insure
that, going forward, physicians are able to refer to and follow ACIP (Advisory Committee on
Immunization Practlces) ACIP is a national, mandated committee that |noludes consumer

5



groups, experts, ex officio membeérs, and others who discuss vaccines on .a regulator basis.
The rules, by default, exclude the tuberculosis control portion because those regulations
have since split off into its own rules. Discussion leader, Mr. Nakamoto explained that the
rule changes are intended to align and create specific guidelines which is a benefit to small
businesses. :

Public hearings were held on Oahu and on the neighbor islands. Multiple testifiers;
individuals, organizations and small businesses attended the public hearings with many both
in opposition as well-as in support of the rule changes. Those against the rules were mostly
against immunization, and the small businesses, such as physicians, provided mostly
support for the immunization.

Testifier, Ms. Theresa Chao, a pharmacist for 30+ years, has worked with vaccines over the
past several years so she understands how and why théy have evoived. She stated that the
public hearing notice was limited to DOH’s and the Lieutenant:Governor's websites, so
daycare centers and other similar-type centers would not be privy to the notice; she added
that Senator. Russell Ruderman was instrumental in having public hearings on the neighbor
islands. She believes-that at some of the public hearings becauseé individual testimonies
were limited to short periods of time and to smaller venues, it resulted in not hearing the full
testimonies that were provided. Ms. Chao paraphrased her written testlmony which she Ieft
with the Board. :

Ms. Dawn Poicuni, individual testifier and a representative of HFIC (Hawaii for Informed
Consent) expressed the impact of these rules on small business/pre-schools as well as the
risks and concerns about giving flu shots and other vaccines to-children. ‘She recommended
that this Board delay its recommendation of these rules. and invite principals of public and
private schools to discuss resultmg effects of vaccinations.

Ms. Albitz made a motion to go into executive session at 10:44 a.m.; Mr. Nakamoto
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. The motion was
passed under Section 92-5(a)(4), to consult with the Board'’s attorney concerning the Board's
powers, duties, immunities, privileges and liabilities as it relates to discussing HAR Chapter
11-157, Examination and Immunization. The executive session ended at 10:48 a.m.

In response to the question as to what State of Hawaii exemptions are available,

Dr. Park stated that there are medical exemptions; for example, if someone is-undergoing
chemotherapy he/she may be requested by the patient’s physician for an exemption.
Another automatic exemption is for religious purposes where a parent simply states that it is
against their religious beliefs. Dr. Park also explained that DOH is not privy to “who” the
people are requesting exemptions because only the “number” of exemptions from the
schoois are conveyed to the State; this is done on a yearly basis.

Mr. Nakamoto made a motion to move the proposed rules to the Governor for adoption. Ms.
Atmospera-Walch seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.



IV. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

A. Discussion and Action on Governor's Message 624, Submitting for Consideration for
.the Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. James Lee to the Small Business Regulatory
Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2020 ‘

Second Vice Chair Yamamoto referred Mr. Lee as a member of this Board because he
believed Mr. Lee would be a good candldate due to his affiliation with W.H. Shipman, Ltd.
W.H. Shipman is a large landowner in the Hilo District of the Big Island that has a-wide-range
of access to farmers, businesses, and industrial and commercial entities.

Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to support the gubernatorial nhomination of Mr. James
(Kimo) Lee to the Small Business Regulatory Review. Board for a.term to expire June 30,
2020. Second Vice Chair Yamanaka seconded the motlon and the Board members
unanimously agreed

. B‘.f Discussion and Action on 'Governor"s Message 625, Submitting for Consideration for
the Gubernatorial Nomination for Mr. Garth Yamanaka to the Small Business
‘Requlatory Review Board for a term to explre June 30,2023

‘Ms. Albitz made a motion to support the gubernatorlal nomination of Mr Garth Yamanaka to
the Smali Business Regulatory Review Board. Mr. Ritchie seconded.the motion, and the
Board members unanimously agreed. :

C: Update on Governor's Message 559, Submlttlnq for Conslderatlon of the
‘Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Jonathan Shick to the Small Business Regulatory
Rewew Board fora term to expire June 30, 2022 :

This measure has. yet to be scheduled for a hearing W|th the Senate Commlttee on Energy,
Economic Development and Tounsm ,

D. Update on Senate B|II 1'%48 Relating to the SmaII Busmess Requlatorv Review
. Board —Clarifies the intent of the small business requlatory review board’s powers
when reviewing state and county administrative_rules that impact small business by
changing “ordinance” to “rules” when making recommendations to the county
counC|I or the mavor for appropriate action

-'Chalr Borge reminded the members that in the ‘original bill, “ordinances” was deIeted SO
there would be no question as to what the Board reviews; other changes to the bill reflect
some minor housekeeping measures. However, Senate Bill 1348 SD1 brought “ordinances”
back into the bill. Therefore, Chair Borge met with House Representative Angus McKelvey
to go over why the Board wanted “ordinances” out of the statute. Additionally, funding of
$50,000 will be added to the bill to assist the Board with travel and outreach expenses.



Mr. Ritchie made a motion to go into executive session at 11:04 a.m.; Mr. Nakamoto
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. The motion was
passed under Section 92-5(a)(4), to consult with the Board's attorney concerning the Board's
powers, duties, immunities, privileges and liabilities as it relates to dlscussmg Senate Bill
1348 SD1. The executive session ended at 11; 12 am.

Mr. Ritchie stated that in order for small businesses to object to an ordinance that is passed
by one of the Counties, they would need to work with their County Council members and the
Mayors. It was noted that while ordinances are County Council specmc the Board does
review County administrative rules. :

Second Vice Chair Yamanaka recommended that the Board support the removal of the term
“‘ordinances” under Chapter 201M-5(a), HRS, to clarify the statute, verify the. Board’s
intended purview, and to.avoid the potential heavy workload. Mr. Nakamoto seconded the
motion, and the Board members unammously agreed: : :

V. ADMINISTRATIVE_MATTERS

A. Update on the Board'’s Upcominq Advocacy Activities and Prodrams in accordance
- with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS

a. Review and Action on the Board's Website Changes, to date

The .members reviewed and discussed the Board’s mock ‘webpage that was created by .
Hawaii Information Consortium. Although the webslte is not yet mteractwe Phase 1 is now
‘complete; the $5,000 payment is in process. .

Because the Budget & Finance Department approved the funding for the fmal payment of
$12,052.35, Phase [l is now in the beginning stages _

VL. NEXT MEETING The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, Aprii 18, 2019 in
Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha
Bundmg (State Ofﬁce ‘Tower), Honolulu, Hawall at 10 00 a.m.

VII. ADJOURNMENT-— Mr. Nakamoto made a motion to adjourn the meeting and
Ms. Albitz seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 11:35 a.m.


https://12,052.35

IV. New Business — Before Public Heﬁring '

A.Discussion and Action on Proposed
Amendments to Title 8 Department of quuor
Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission,
promulgated by Department of Liquor
Control, County of Maui, as follows:

a. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the
Manufacture and Sale of Int0x1cat1ng
" Liquor of the County of Maui;
b.Chapter 102, Rules Governing the
Administrative Practices and Procedures of
_the Liquor Commission and Liquor
- Control Adjudication Board of the County
of Maui |



- MICHAEL P, VICTORINO

_ Mayor
GLENN MUKAI
- Director v
GEORGETTE C.R. TYAU o
Deputy Ditecior ) o o
C ‘ - DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL
COUNTY.OF MAUI '
2145 KAOHU STREET, ROOM 105
WAILUKU, MAUL HAWAIL‘L- 96793
: TELEPHONE: (808) 2437753 -
PACSIMILE: (808) 243-7558
_ MEMORANDUM
_ 10" o Anthony Borge Chatrperson : L
' - SmaIl Bueiness Regutatory Review Board/DBEDT
“FROM: -~ Glenn-Mukai, Director-
- - Dopartment of Liquor CoNrol, County of Maui
DATE: April 2, 2019

SUBJECT: Proposed Rule Amendments for Department of Liquor Contro! County of Maui, T|tIe
.. 8;Chapter101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicatmg Liquorof
the County of Maui, and Chapter 102, Rules Governing the Administrative Practices
and Procedures of the Liguor Commission and- Ltquor Control Adjudtcatlon Board
of the County of Maui- A

Pursuant to Chapters o1 and’ p2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, the County of Maui Liquor Gommission has
provided notice -of a- public-hearing for the purpose. of amending-cértain slbsections of the Rules
~ Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Mauf and Rules Governing
‘the'Administrative Practices and Procedures of the'Liquor Commission and Liquor Coritrol Adjirdication
Board of the County of Maui, Enclosed is the Notice of Public Hearingwhich includes the proposed rule’
amendments and a summary for your rewew comments and suggestions )

'The Department of Ltquor Control, County of Maui, Smatl Busmess Review and Adwsory Commtttee
-met on 01/14/19 and 02/25/19 to rev:ew the proposed amendments and made the following frndmgs

1L g The proposed rile amendmente will not causé any. dtrect or srgntftcant economic
burden upon small business. L
-2 " ‘The proposed rule amendments wrlI not impact or be dtrectly reIated to the
.~ formation, operatton or expaneion of a small business.
‘3. 'The proposed rule amendments WI|| greatly asstet and - not- adversely affeot smatl
: : busmese _ _

The Depar’tment of Liguor. Control County of Mau:, Small Business Review and Advisory Commtttee
consists of individuals representing various classes of liquor licenses-and Lisa Paulson, Executive
Dlrector of the Maui Hotel. & Lodging. Assootatton ,

' Should you requtre further information or asststance, please do not hesitate to call me at (808) 243-
7754, .



https://propos.ed
https://Department.of

PRE-PUBLIC HEARING .
SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT
TO THE-

. SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
(Hawall Reavised Stafutes §201M-2)

Depanmgnt or Agency: Department of Liquor ( Controt County of- Maur

" Admlnl.tratlve Ru'a Tlt'B and chapter. Mamume:um.wawmammmmmum-caumuuancn pl-ﬂﬂlnml:hrﬂ 4 107, Ruies omm N )
) Chapter Name' Rules Governlng fhe Manufacture and Sale of Intoxication quuor of the County of Maui

~ Contact PereonITItIe.Glenn Mukai, Dtrector
 Prione Number:"_1- 808-243-7485

" E-mail Addreu- IIquor@mauicountygov Date Aprll2 2019

A To asslst the SBRRB in complylng with the meettng notice requrrement in HRS §02- -
*:7; please attach a atatement of the toplc of the proposed rules or a general )
- descrlptlon of the subjects involved,” :

BQI-AAre the: draft rulee avarlabte for viewmg in erson and on’ the Lteutenant Governor s o
Website pursuant to HRS §92-77 Yes ;j ‘No [/ | (If Yes, please prowde '

j'webpage address and when and where TTes may” be viewed in person®
. hitp I[maufcounty gov/1004/RulesLaws-

' 1 _(Please keep the proposed rutes on this webpage untrl after the SBRRB meetlng )
S ‘Rule- Deecrlption. New EI Repeal DAmendment [Z] Compllation -

I Wil the propoeed rule(s) affect small buslneee? Yee I:] No. D (If No, no
. need to submlt thre form.)

“Affect gmall buslnees" is defmed as “any potentiaI of actual requrrement rmposed upon
a small business . . . that will cause a direct and elgntftcant economic burden ipona-
- small businéss, or is dlrectly related to the formatton operatlon or expanston ofa smallf —
© ‘business.” HRS §201M- : : :

" '.'"Small buamees" is defmed as a "for-prof it enterprlse conetsting of fewer than one
hundred fuII-tlme or part-ttme employeea ! HRS §201M 1 '

o N, s the proposed rule being adopted to- Implement a etatute or ordinance that o

.- does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the
“statute- or ordlnance? Yes ['Z] No ] . (f Yee, no- need to submit this fom1)

B (e.g. 3 federally-mandated regulation that’ doee not. afford the agency the dlscretlon -
o conelder lees restrictive alternatwee ) HRS §201M 2(d) < _ :

- IV Is the: propoeed rule bein adopted pursuant to emergency ruIemaking? ::.
- (HRS §201Me2(a)) Yes . No* I:] (If Yes, no need to submit this form )

* - L

Rovised 140512016 ©



https://i~�th~.P~~-~,oiied~ru.le
https://N~-_tJ;.~~e.al
mailto:11_qu,o.r@~auicoui:ity.gpy
https://��1"1~�~��:,.,.tt

Pre-Pubiic Hearing Small business Im pact Statement
Page 2 .

If the proposed rule affects emali business and are not exempt as noted above, : I
please provlde a reaeonable determinatlon of the following : :

1. Descrlption of the small businesses that will be requlred to compiy wrth the
: proposed rules and how they may be adverseiy affected

2 “In dollar: amounts the increase in the ievel of drrect costs such as fees or frnes,
. and indiract costs such as: reportmg, recordkeeping, equipment, construction,
labor, professional services, revenue loss, or other costs assoclated wnth
: compliance -

If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee o fine:

a_-.". Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time itwas mcreased
b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage incre_a'se.

¢ Reason for the new or increased fée or fine.-

‘ d. -Oriterra or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee or fme
- (e, Consumer Prrce Index, Inflatron rate, etc.).

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies
- -directly affected, including the-estimated total amount the agency expects to
- -collect from any addltionally imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys
willbe used. -

- Revised 10522016 -



https://hoWih.ey

:Pre-Publlc Hearlng small business Impact Statement
Page 3 .

4, The methods the agency considered o used to reduce the. rmpact on small.

" business such as consolidation, simplification, differing. compliance or. reporting

 requirernents, less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule
~performance rather than design standards, exemptron or-other mrtrgatrng

- technrques

5. The avarlabilrty and practicability of Iess restrictive atternatlves that coutd be -
rmplemented in lieu of the proposed rules.

| 6. Consrderatlon of creative, innovative, or erthle methods of comptiance for small |
- businesses. The businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or
, dlrectly beneﬂt from the proposed rules

7. How the agency invoived small busrness in the development of the proposed
rules. . ,

' a. If there:were any recommendations made by small business, were the :
" recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explam 1
no, why not. ,

8 " Whether the proposed rules tnclude provisions that are more stringent than thoee
" mandated by-any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, wrth s
.oan explanatlon of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard '

If yes, ptease provlde information comparing the costs and benefrts of the _
- "-proposed rules to the costs and benefits of the comparable federat, state or -
- county Iaw including the followrng o

Revised 1/05/2016 -




Pre-PublIc Heaﬂng Small business. Impact Statement
Page4 ‘ o o
S rar Desoriptlon of the publ_rc purposes to be served by-the proposed rule.

. b.. The text of the. related federal, state or county law, mcluding |nformat|on
E .._'about the purposes and appllcabllsty of the Iaw

: c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal state, or
* county law, including’ a comparison of their purposes applrcatlon and -
-fadmrmstratlon , .

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with.
~:the costs and benefits of i imposing or deferring to the related federal, state,
. or county law, as well as a ‘description of the manner in which any '
vaddrtronal fees from the proposed rule will be. used

. e A companson of the adverse effects on small-business |mposed by the -
- - proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal state, or -
’ _county law : _

* ] ]

Small Business Regulatory Revtew Board / DBEDT
. Phone; (808} 586-2594
Ematt b@Hawail;

This Statement may ba found on the
‘ SBRRB Webasite at: ‘ :
hitp: /ldbedt. hawait gov/sbrrb/smalI-buslness-lmpact-statsments—pre-and-post-pubic—hearrng ‘

© Revised 10872006



http://dbe~t.hawaiLg0v/sbrrb/sma11-buslnes_s-Jmpact-statements-pr~-and~pos~,;pubic-t;earing

' NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuaht to- Sectwn 91- 3( a), Hawan Rev1sed Statutes, the quuor ‘Control

| Commlssmn of the County of Maui (the "quuor Commission") hereby provides

notice of a public hearing for the- purpose of amending the following sections. of
= Chapter 101 of the Deparunent’s Ruiles Governing the Mantufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating Liguor of the County of Mauii; and Chapter 102 of the Department’s . .

B " Rules Governing the Administrative Practices: and Procedures of the Liquor
. Comrmssmn and quuor Control Adjuchcatmn Board of the County of- Mau1 '

The ent1re text of the proposed rule amendments 18 hsted below and 1s! ‘
. further summarmed as follows -

SUMMARY
1.
e Adds new- defmmons of

Seetion 08- 101 5. Deﬁmtxons

- Dfinlké A
. 7. Standard dunk
- Hosted bar .-
- N 0 host beir .

Seetlon 08-101-25: Hours for the sale serViee;rv and

.consum tlon of liguor in. llcensedf vrermses

’ - -Permits dispensers and restautants to sell llquor for off—

i . preimises eonsumptlon from 6: OO am to 11: OO pm

‘Expands ' the - hours of operaﬂon for manufacturers -

‘ wholesalers, and brewpubs

=-Allows for the operat1on of 11censec1 prermses ptior to or

. beyond the prescribed hours provided that an employee
: approved by the Dlrector is m act1ve charge of the prem1ses o

o "Sectlon 08 101 30: Agphcatlon '

. -Deletes the requ1rements of Department of Heatth clearance

federal tax clearance, and guaranty: or bond

~-Prov1des that Lhe D1rector inay approve a change in Iocatmn

apphcaﬂon without hearing, for Class 9 (tour or cru1se vessel) '
and Class 8 (traneient vessel) hcenses :



https://os�"'.jo
https://summarized.as

Section 08-101-31; No license‘ issued; when.,

. ~Allows the commission- to issue a license when an apphcant
: 15 validly. challengmg a tax assessment : :

Sect‘m_n 08-101-33: Renewﬂgl of-_heense.

~Deletes requiremehf of a federal tax clearance. -

Section 08-101-35: Temporary or permaneént closing: of

Hcensed premises.

nstead of ee‘neelling its license, allows a licensee to plac:e-its ‘

license with the commission for “safekeeping’.

Section 08-101-50: Fees for liquor license, temporary license,
duplicate license; sohc1ters _and. representatives' permits;

“certificate for reg1strat10n of emplovee apnrevcd by. the

d1rector, minor, employee of class S, categorv D or_any

' _dunhcate thereof:.and others and terms.

. ~Provides for Special, per day, fundrmsmg event fee of $ 0.

- -Dlstmgmshes Classes 14, 16. and 18 for purposes of
'calculatmg the percentage fee for on prenuses and. off

R pren:uses sales

10,

“Section 08-101-70: Employee a

S.ect'_ioﬁ.08=]'.‘7071452:-'1G_1._1e1€m1_§g; .

-Deletes entire section.

Section 08-101-69: Practice to _promote exceséive

- :consumgtwn of hguor, prohibited:

-Clarifies that where pairing (foocl and liguor) at fundralsmg
events occur, the volume of wine need not be dlselosed,

roved by the '.director—. o

-Prowdes for an examptwn for Class 8, transient vessel

licensees.



https://instead.of
https://08-101.,.35

~ om

12

14,
15,

i‘lé"

. Sectlon 08 101-74(a): Reqmrement for remstrahon of

lovees or as an et lovee approved by the d1rector
-Deletes requirement of proof’ of social security num.ber,

Section 08-101-77: Certification certlﬁcate for "employee.
gp‘proved by the d d:u ector”, count1es . o

aDeletes enttre sectlon

Section (8- 101 84(13) Premaratibn'ro_f _dri-;_fﬂ_{sh;r clearing of ~
tables, ' ST

-Deletes the 1:roh1b1t1on of no- more than two d11nks at one
tlme. ' ,

-Permits “flights”' or samiplers to be sérved._

Sectidn 08»1012-86:(' Price list posted.

-Deletes reqmrement that the. volume of wine pour be

disclosed for 'Wll‘le sold by the glass.

Sectmn‘ 08-101-87: Dlsposal of :hquor.

-=prov1des for easier methods of d1sposmg of - remammg
mventory by licensee. .

-}Sectlon 08-101-97: Excluswe control

" Unless otherwise authonzed by the commission, requlres
. :hcensed premises to be open to the general PUth

) de;tly se:rwce

17,

" ‘Section 08-1.01~.99(a): Nén-consumiption areas; = - '

-Clarifies areas for daneing, music and entertainment. -




- 18. i
- wholesalers, retailers; g‘eddling prohibited; exce'ption

-19; '

Section 08-101-100: Deliveries. by manufacturers,

- =Substitutes the term “industry member” for manufacturer or

“wholesaler.

Section 08- 101 106 Manufacturer, brewgub, a,nd wholesal
dealer hcenseell sgeelal restnetmns -

“-Substitutes the term "mdustry member" for manufacturer or
_wholesaler.

~ -Provides, by pernut industry member staff to conduct tastmg_

20,

S .21,
2.
23,

24,

' or samphng aotwmes,

Section 08-101-112: Pool buying.

- =Clarifies pool buying a:rangement and agree‘ment's. -

Section 08- 101 113: new sect1on “Growlers” or. contamers

used for off-gremlses consumgtlon

'A~Clar1ﬁes and defines what containers are permltted for off-
: premwes consumption, :

.Section 08=.101-1 14: Trade .shows and/or otlier e:thibitions "

-Deletes the muumum size of contamers used for 11quor

, slnpment purposes.

Section 08-102-11: Petition for adop_tion, ,amenc_lment-i. or

' ep=eal of rules

- -Adds requlrement “that proposed rule amendments be

subnutted ina certam format,

‘Section 08-102-82: Transaction of business."

“-For the Liquon Adjudieatlon Board, provide that ‘.a‘ board

member’s silence or refusal to vote shall be recorded as an
‘abstention (not as an affirmative vote), and that an abstentmn
shall not be counted as a vote.




PROPOSED RULE AMENDMENTS

Amendments to Title 08, Chat)ter 101 Rules Govermng the Manufacture and' .
 Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County.of Maui, and Chapter 102, Rules
Governing Administrative Practices and Procedures of the Liguor Commission

and L1guor Ad1ud1_cat1on Board of the County of Mam

- .:1'.. Secuon 08-101- 5 Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by addmg definitions to
be appropnately inserted and to read as follows: . A

_ “Drmk” mMeans any
:contamer .

ity of wine; beer, or distilled spirits served in a

_ "Standard drlnk" means f1ve (5) sunces of wine, twelve (12] ounces of beer, '
or one and one-half ounces of d1st111ed s;:v_nts in a contalner ' :

: : "Hosted bar" means a bar at an event at wh1ch the drmks are or have been
pﬂsud by the host :

.- "Nohost bar' means a beu' at an event at wh1ch ggests are regun‘ed to pay
for the drinks: themselves. Eff 7/1/00; am and comp 7/15/02; am and comp-
4/22/12 am and comp 6/18/15; am and comp 11/29/15; am and -comp
3/4/17; am and comp 1/14/18; am and comp | (Auth HRS §§ 91-2, 281~ 17)
' (Imp HRS §281 17}”

2. ~ Section 08- 101-25 Rules Governmg the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Mam, is amended by amendmg subsections
(a).and (e) to read as follows . : :

“la) Hours during which 11censed premises may be open for the
transactlon of busmess shall be as follows: . .

(1)- - Dispensers, [restaurarnts,] clubs, transient vessels, tour or.cruise

- -~ vessels, and specials: any Hour of the day from-8:00 a.m. to 2 00 -

.11, ’Lhe followmg c‘lay[]L and 600 a.m. “to 1100 p.m.  for

(2) Cabarets any hour of the day from 8: OO a.um. to 4 00 am the
: following day. -~ '
(3) . Hotels and condomiinium hotels from 6:00 a.m. to 4: OO &, the
-+ following day, and any hour of the day for room service.
(4)  Retailers: any hour of the day from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. .
(5)  Manufacturers [and wholésalers]: from [5:00 a.m, to 9:00 p.m.] any
o hour of the day for manufacture and wholesale, 6:00 4.1, to 11 00



https://followi.ng
https://Gounty:ofMat.1i

: : onsumgtxon hguor sales, ' '
(6) Brewpubs any hour of the day from 8:00 a. m. to 2: 00 a. m the

followmg day for on-premises consumption liquor sales, any hour of -

. the dav for manufacture and wholesale, and 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p m.
c for off-premises retail liquor sales, .
(7-)‘ " Small craft producer pubs: aniy-hour of the day from.8: 00 a.m. to
2:00- a.m., the following day for on-premises consumption liquor
sales; any hour of the day for manufacture and. wholesale, and. 6:00
a.:m. to 11:00 p.m. for off-premises retail liquor sales.

(8) Caterers: any hour of the day from 6:00 am. to 2: 00 am,, the

 following day.

(9) - Wineries: any hour of the day for manufacture and wholesale, and
from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. for off-premlses reta11 sales and on
premises wine tasting activities,

{10)." Restaurants: any hour of the day from 8:00 a.m, to 2: 00 a.m.. the -
{following day for on-premises consumption liquor sales. and. 6:00

; . am, fo 11:00 p.m, for off-premises retall liguor sales. -
11) Wholesalers: _any hour of the day. '[Eff 7/1/00; am and comp

 6/18/15; am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 7/29/17; am and
comp 1/14/18; am and comp -] (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17)
'(Ii‘np: HRS §281-17)" - . P _

(e) Licensee may operate or be open for business for other than the sale,
service, or consumptxon of liquor prior to or beyond the hours prescmbed by the .

commission [, upon submitting an application and obtaining prior- approval from - -

the éommission.],_provided an “emplovee approved by the Director” shall be
within and in active charge of the premises-at all times. [Eff 7/1/00; am and
comp 6/18/15; am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 7/29/17; am and comp
1/14/18;emand comp ] (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17) (lmp: I-IRS §281-17)".

: 3, - Sectmn 08-101-30, Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
: Intoxmatmg Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amendmg subsectmns
‘{a). and (h) to read as follows:

“(a) Apphcatmns for liquor licenses, renewals, tra,nsfers, management -
agreement,. solicitor’s permit, or change of partner(s) in-a partnership, limited
liability partnership, member, manager, organizer or any person of a limited
liability. company, or officer(s), director(s), and. stockholder(s) owning or
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock or ownership of
a corporation, thereof, and all notices of public hearing sent, and affidavits filed -
by -applicants in connection with and part of such applications, shall be in the
-respective original forms and accompanied by the following mnecessary -
documentation and any other original forms or documents which may be.

6



https://c�ompa.ny
https://organizer.or
https://comp:6/18/.15
https://6/18/.15

prescnbecl from time to time by the comm1ss1on, which shall’ be conmdered as-
part of the application. : :
(1) [Department of health clearance,
{2)]  State [and federal] tax [clearances] clearance or that the apphcant
‘has entered into and is complying with an installment plan
 agreement with the department of taxatwn for the payment of
. delinquent taxes in installments;
(32 - Floor plans (not construction plans) drawn to scale;
- [@18) Tax map (drawn to scale) arid list of all tax map key numbers,
names and addresses of property owners, and: lessees and owners
of record of shares in a’ cooperative apartment situated w1th1n a
- radius of five Hundred feet of the proposed premlses,

'[(5)]L=1 “Personal history statement; : .
(6 )]Ll - Verification of any corporation, partnership, assoc1at1on,
~limited l1ab111ty company, lnmted 11ab111ty partnership, or- smy other
L entﬂ:y,
L I o Affidavit of mailing of notices of public hearing and certlﬁcate
... of mailing as verified by the United States Postal Serv1ce,
- [(B)7) = Transferor's gross sales report; -
(98 - Transferor’s endorsement of transfer;

[(10)][4 " Executed copy of agreement of sale, lease, 1en1,a1 agreement
© - which states that the premises and its operation must be utider thc
: "-licensee’s exclusive control at all times; -
, [(171)],(‘__1 Additional fee assessment agreement;
[(12)](11) Coast guard documentation;
C[(13)](12)  Zoning clearance;
- [(14)](13}. Building permit; .
[(15)](14) Criminal history record check, :
[(16)]15)  Stockholder’s list; - : :
- [(A7)]16) - Certificate of occupancy, miscellaneous mspectwn report and
) clearance from the department of fire control (miscellaneous
inspection report and clearance from the department of fire control
‘shall indicate that all governmental regulations and- admlmstratwe
rules have been complied with); and ' '
[(18) ‘Guaranty or bond; and. Tl
(19)]@ - Copy of a federal or State- governmental plctire 1dent1f1cat10n
and socml security card for each person. [Eff7/1/00; am and comp
7/16/02;.am and comp 4/22/12 am and comp 6/18/15; am and
~ comp 11/29/15; am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 1/14/18; am
and. comp 12/80/18 am and comp | (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-
17) (Imp: HRS §281 -17) - .

(h) A change of location application is subject to all requlrements and
- hearings as a4 new- apphcatlon for a licensel.]. rovided the Director may approve

t 7 I



https://application.is
https://VerificaHo~-.of

a change of lodanon w1th1n the C‘éun v without hearing upon the ﬁh ng-of the
application for change of location and: any reguired documents for a Class'9 tour
~or_cruise vessel license and for a Class 8; transient vessel license. The liquor

. license for the emsung premiises shall become void upon the issuance of the
" license for the new location. Licensee shall meet all requirements as a new

license, pay the prorated license. fee, and if applicable, file a gross sales report
on all liquor sold under the original licerise.and pay the assessment fee prior to

" the issuance of the license. All records of the- omgmal license shall be part of the
- licensee’s change of location application and record, [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp
. 7/15/02; am and comp 4/22/12; am-and comp 6/18/15; am- and comp
11/29/15; am and comp 3/4/17;, am and comp 1/14/18; am and.comp -

12/30/18;am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)"

o 4, ~_Section 08-101-31, Rules Goverhing the-Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui,.is 'amended- to read as follows: :

' “§08~101 31 No license issued, when. No license shall be 1ssued

(1) To any minor or to any person who has been convicted of a.felony

and not pardoned, or to any other person not deemed by the

commission to a partnership, trust, association, limited liability
partnership, limited liability company, corporation, or any other

. person, that has been convicted of a felony where the commission
finds that the partner, member, manager, organizer, or any person

of e limited liability partnership, limited liability company or .

| _organization’s officers, directors, and any person "owning or
_ -controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstandmg stock are
-fit and proper persons to have a license;

(2) * To any partner in a partnership, or a cofporatlon, ‘trust or

- association, the officers, directors, or any other person of which, or
- any of them, would be disqualified under subsection (1) from
_ obtaining the license individually, or-any person of which, owning or
~ controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstandmg capital
- stock, or any other person, would be disqualified under such
.~ subsection (1) from obta.lnmg the license individually; provided that
- for publicly-traded companies or entities ultimately solely owned by
a pubhcly-traded company, -only the officers and - directors
" designated as primary decision-makers shall be- cons:dered to

~ determine disqualification under paragraph (1); - -
(3)  To any applicant for a license, or a renewal of a license, or 1n the
- case of a transfer of a license, where both the transferor and the
~ transferee, failed to present to the issuing agency a tax clearance
_certificate from the- department of taxationf,] showing ‘that the

8

.- commission to be a fit and proper person to have a license; provided -
" that the comimission may grant a license under the rules of the-



https://minor.or

5) -

@)

M.

appllcant or the transferor and transferee do not owe the State
‘government any delinquent taxes, penaltzes, or interest; or that the
" applicant, or in the case of a transfer of a license, the transferor or

transferee, has entered into an installment plan agreement with the
department of taxation for the: paymient of delinquent taxes in

_installments and that the applicant is or the transferor or transferee
" .is, in the case of a transfer of a license, complymg with the

installment plan - agreement[,] ‘or_when - the applicant -or _the

. transferor or transferee, in.the case of a transfer of a license, is
“validly challeng;ng a tax assessment, penalty; or other proceeding

. that prevents the issuance of a signed certificate from the state tax
agency, the commiission shall issue alicense that is vahd for the

period of titme necessary to resolve the challenge,

‘To any -applicant who has a partner in the partnerslmp, 11m1ted o

liahility partnersmp, member, meanager, agent, organizer, or any
person ownihg or controllmg twenty-five percent or-more of a limited

liability company, or any officer, director or any person owning or.

controlling twenty-five percent or: more of the outstanding stock of

* any corporation, trust, or association, or any other person, who has
had any liquor license revoked less than two years previous to the

date of the apphcatwn for any 11ke or other license undcr the rules
of the commission,;

~To any person owning or controlling twenty-ﬁve percent or more. of

the outltandmg stock of the corporatlon, trust, or association of a

licensee, who i8 currently delinquent in filing the gross liquor sales

report of any license that was issued, or currently owing any fees or

. monies due to the department, or both. "Any fees or monies" shall

include but not be limited to license fees, publication fees, and any
assesement of a penalty imposed by the department, commission,

. or board. Any licensee, who has any person, or person owning or
. controlling twenty-five percent.or more of the outstanding stock of a
corporation, trust, or association of a licensee, who is delinquent in

filing the gross liquor sales report of any other license -that was

issued, or currently owing any fees or monies to the department :
-shall not exercise its license until the gross sales report is filed and

percentage fee pa1d

‘To a limited liability company, the members, managers, orgamzers,

or any person, of which or any of them, would be disqualified under

- subsection (1) from -obtaining the license individually, would be

disqualified -under - that paragraph from obtalmng the hccnse

- individually;

To a limited liability company, partnershlp, limited hab111ty
partnership, or corporation, that may consist of a limited liability

comipany, partnership, limited lability partnership, corporation, or

9



https://ctelinquent.in

. any other person or any ‘combination thereof, the members,
managers, organizers, partners, officers, directors, or any person
; thereof, of which any of them would be disqualified under subsection
- (1) from obtaining the license. individually, or a person. owning or
* controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock of |
-such. corporation would be d15quaJ1fied under that paragraph from
L obtaining the license individually; or. ;
~© (8) Toan applicant for a class 2, ‘class. 4 except for convenience -
' - minimarts, class 5, class 6; class 11, class 12, class 13, class 14,
class 15, or class 18 hcense, unless thc apphcant for issuance. of a .
license or renewal of a hcense, both the transferor and the
jtra,nsferee, present to the issuing agency proof of liquor liability
insurance coverage in an amount of $1,000,000. [Eff 7/1/00; am
and comp 7/15/02; am and comp 4/22712; amand comp. 6/18/15 :
am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 12/30/18; am and. comp ]
,'(Auth HRS §§ 91-2 281 -17) (Imp HRS §281 17)” '

- B | .'Sectwn 08-101-33, Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amendmg subsectlon
(f) to read as follows: :

“(ﬂ 1In no case shall any application for renewal of a l1quor l1cense be
accepted unless it includes the completed application, basic fee payment, State
~ [and Federal] tax [clearances,] clearance and all other required documents. [Eff

7/1/00;.am and comp 7/15/02; am and comp 4/22/12; am and comp 6/18/15;
.am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 1/14/18; am and-comp 12/30/18; am and o
comp ] (Auth ‘HRS'§§ 91-2, 281- 17) (Imp HRS §281- 17)” :

" 6, Section 08-101- 35 Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
~Intox1cat1ng Liqior of the County of Maui, is amended by adding a new
'subsectlon to be appropnately deslgnated and to read as follows: .

' urrender the hcensee s license for cancellatwn, unless the llcenseeobtams prior
- - lace its. 1cense with the comrmssmn for

holdmg of & hguor hcnse at the comissmn ofﬁc while the hcensee is not

. operating ot expired. [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp 7 /15/ 02; am and comp
4/_~2_-2/_12;amand'domp 1 (Auth 'HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp HRS 5281 17y

10




to the next payment due date,

(1)

(3)

@

®

47 Sect1on 08- 101-50 Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
- Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maul, s amended by amendmg subsectlons
_ (b) a.nd (d) to read as follow- :

“(b) Basic fee. Thls fee shall be paid in advance not later than each June ,
15th, prior to the fiscal year for which the license i is issued. The fee paid for'a
Jlicense issued on any other date ghall be reckoned proportionally from the first
day of the month in which the business is commeneed to the exp1ratlon date or

Class Kind |

. _ . Basic Fee -
‘Manufacturers - (A) Beer ... % 600 - -
(including =~ (B) Wine - 600
~ rectifiers)  (C) Wine manufactured S
- o . ‘from fruits grown. IR
' in the State =~ 300
(D)  Alcohol : , 200.
o (E)  Other liquors __ 640,
. Restaurant (4) - General =~ - 600
o (B) Beerand Wme o 300
R (C) Beer 180
- Wholesale. " (A) General - 2,400 -
S (B} Beer and Wine - 1,800 -
. - {C) Aleohol - o 200
Retail -~ - (A) General S 560
S "~ (B) BeerandWine = - 260 -
: _ - (€} Aleohol =~ = . 200
Dispenser ~  (A) General . - 600 |
o (B) Beer and Wine _ - 300
(© Beer | 150
-Club ' 3 ' 23200
Transient Vessel, per day - a5
- Monthly - , S 3 100 .
Yearly 1,200 -
Tour or.Cruise Vessel. 300
Special, per day (A) General - ' 25
- - -~ (B) Beer and Wine o : 15~
o , (C) Beer | S .10
Fundra;smg everit . T 0
Cabaret ' 1,200
‘Hotel 1,200
- Caterer f " 600 -
. Brewpub 1,000 =
‘Condominium Hotel 1,200

11



(16) Witiery - : o 1,000

(18) ~ Small craft producer pub | ' -1, OOO |
[Eff 7/1/00; am and comp 7/15/02; am and comp 6/18/15 am and. comp

9/3/16; am and comp 3/4/17; am and comp 1/14/18 am and comp ]
© (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281 17)" B

(d) - Percentage fee. :
(1) .- Licensees in classes 2(A), (B) and {C), 4(A) and (B), S(A) (B) and (C),
- ..6,9,11, 12, 18, [14,] 15, [16, 18;] and temporary license, as defined
Cin subsecuon (b) of this section, shall be subject to the basic fee pius
& percentage fee, Licensees in class 1 (other than a class 1

" manufacturer, whose wine is manufactured from fruits grown in the

- State), and class 3, class-14, class 16 and class 18, as defined in -

" gubsection (b) of this section, shall-be subject to basic fee plus the

- percentage fee of retail (on premises and or off premises hquor sales
to.any person for private use and consumptlon Licensees in class

9, as defined in subsection (b) of this section, shall be subject to
bas1c fee plus percentage fee of four-times the total amount of liquor
purchased from class 1 manufactuirers' licensee, class 3 wholesale

. dealers’ licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery
-, licensee; .and class 18 small craft producer pub licerisee. Licensee

. shall report the retail value of any complimentary drinks or- donated

- liquor, or both, in their annual gross sales report. -
" (2) . The percentage fee for each current fiscal year shail be based upon
" the following formula, which shall establish the percentage to be
~applied to the gross sales or four times the total amount of 11quor
L purchased of each licensee: : .

EE-BF-C
: 'EGS = =Percentage
'EE = Estimated Expend1tures (current fiscal -

year)
BF = Basic F'ees (current ﬁsca.l year) .
C = Carryover (pnor fiscal year)- :
(Carryover in excess of twenty per. cent as prov1ded in
section 281-17.5, HRS) :
o EGS = Estimated Gross Sales (prior fiscal year) . '
- (3) Licensess in the above-mentioned classes shall file with the d1rector
" . on a form prescribed by the commission a report showing true and
- accurate gross-sales of liquor and any other pertinent record or
- records requested therein. The form shall be furnished by the
. director and shall be completed, ﬁled at, and accepted by the
. department not later than 4:30 p.m. on July 31 after the date of
expiration of such llcenses, and at such other times or intervals as
the- director may require. If the 31st of July falls on- Saturday,

12




-;Sunday, or legal County of Maui hohday, the last day for the filing
~of the gross liquor sales report shall be 4:30 p.m. on the first County
of Maui working day following. The.gross sales of liquor report shall
~ be. on the - orlgmal form(s) and contain the- or1g1nal sxgnature,

duplicates or copies shall not be accepted.
The director may reject, refuse to accept, or return any gross liguor. -

_ sales report thatis ihaccurate, mcomplete, illegible, or does not meet

.. any requrrement(s) of or not in’ comphance w1th any rule of the
-+ commission or chapter 281, HRS.. i

W

- ®

m

- _‘(é).:

After a tally of all total gross liquor sales filed by.the due date by the .
licensees, the perceritage fee-due and payable shall be assessed each-
* licensee and shall be peud within thicty-one calendar days of recelpt )
. of said assessment.

NCN

In tase of transfer of such licenses, the report shall be ﬁled and paid
by the transferor immediately after approval by the commission and.
before the actual transfer of the license and the business of the
licensee-transferor. ‘The perceritage fee based on the current
applicable percentage fee sha.ll be pa1d prior to. the issuance. of the

- license. ,
" Any licensee who faﬂe to ﬁle the feport or fails to pay the perceniage
fee due on or before the due date shall'not exercise his license after

the due date and until ‘said report has been filed or percentage fee
paid, or both.’
Where licenses are’ revoked expn-ed or canceled or “the licensee

- closes out the business-for whrch the license is held, the report shall

be filed and the percentage fee due paid within five calendardays of
the revocatwn, expiration, cancellation or closing out the business.
The. percentage fee due shall be based on the current apphcable '

. percentage.

®
" dueuntil such fees are paid in full, The five percent late charge shail
. be a flat fee (not be prorated) that will be charged for any portmn of .

Any licensee who fails to pay the percentage fee by the due date shall
be assessed a late charge of five pércent per month.on the balance

the month payment is due,
Any licensee who fails to pay the percentage fee within nmety days

“of the due date, shall be notified and scheduled for hearinig. Upon

" satisfactory proof. of such proh1b1ted actmty, the hcense shall be

(10).

revoked,
No licensee shall fail to accurately report reveres from grose liquor
sales or to properly complete the gross liquor sales report. It shall

. be the licensee's responsibility to maintain complete and accurate .
. records in order to properly complete and submit the gross liguor
_sales report pursuant to the rules of the commission. Records shall

_ be maintained for a period of four years..

13



https://the:perc�enta.ge

(11)‘

All 11oensees ghall ha.ve ava:lable for 1nspect1on w1th1n the County, '

. books: or records, or both;. .showing-all income, purchases, and
- expenses of their ]1quor license business. These books and records,

" including but not limited to daily sales records, price lists, employee
" time sheets, and invoices, shall be made available for-inspection or

auditing, or both; by the department, through its- auditor(s) or

- othierwise, at any time upon demand and shall be preserved for a
- period of four years, except that. the . .commission ‘may, in its -

- discretion, consent to destruction of- such books and records w1th1n .

N (‘12)-

g

‘such period or may require that they be kept loriger. Licensee or its
employees shall record the sale of liquor at the time. of the

transaction on its daily sales records.
‘Any licensee who fails to pay any fee due on or before ‘the due date ,
or.when any check, money order; or the like that is utilized by the

licensee ‘for payment of such fee is returned by. any financiel
 institution for non-payment due to. ipsufficient funds or for any

- other reason, shall not exetrcise the licerise until said fee and any -

- related service charges are paid in cash, certified-check, or money

- order; and such payment is duly. processed by the department
(13)

‘Any licensee who failed to file-the gross -sales of liquor report by the
due date; shall be assessed the percentage. fee equal to the highest
percentage fee due and payable.by the licensee of the same class or

- the highest percentage fee due and payable by any licensee if there.

is no licensee in the same class. [Eff 7/1/00; am and. comp

'7/15/02 am and comp 6/18/15; am and comp 9/3/16 am and

comp. 3/4/17;, am and-comp 1/14/18 -am and comp. ] (Auth

"HRS §§91-2, 281- 17) (Imp: -HRS §281- 17)"

- Section 08-101-52, Rules Govemlng the Manufacture and Sale of

. Intoxmatmg L1quor of the County of Mau1, is a.mended to read as followe

- “§08 101-52 [Guaran ﬂ -(a) The apphce.nt or licensee shall post a bond

‘that is approved by and filed with the department. The bond ‘shall be not less
than $5,000 or 1.5 times.the total license fees paid in the current fiscal year or
for any licensee that operated less than one full fiscal year, 1.5 times the prorated
amount as determined by the department to reflect the basic fe¢ and percentage
fee of a year of operation, whichever is greater, shall be irrevocable and subject
to-the following conditions and any other condrtlons and restr1ct10ns set forth by
- the department..

)

The: bond cannot be canceled or termmated w1thout ertten
permission from the department. The bond company: shall pay the
total sum forthwith to the department whenever there is any attempt

N to oance] or termtnate the. bond w1thout the expressed ‘written -

14




" consent of the- department or the feulure to submit payment for -
g renewal by the due date for renewal by the principle. - .
(2) The licensee shall e.utomatmally increase the penal sum of the bond
to reflect any required increase pursuant to this section upon
'written notification by the director, . -
' (3) -~ Payment shall be 1mmed1ate1y paid upon wntten demand by the
-+ . director,
. {4). The bond certlﬁcate and yearly renewal certificate shall be ﬁled Wlth
= the department. -
(8) The term of the bond shall be for the entxre penod of the terrn of the
- . license to be issued. -
(6) The bond shall contain the name of the agent and the agent’
- . telephone number and address, ,
{b) In lieu of the bond, an 1nd1v1dua1 partners of the partnersmp,'
limited 11ab111ty partnersh1p, members, managers, organizers, or any person ofa
limited liability company, officers, directors,” and stockholders -owning or
'controlhng twenty-five per: centior more.of the outstanding stock of a corporation,’
trust, or association that is issued a 11quor license. shall be personal guarantor(s)
of-and liable for any payments or monies due to this department. Theindividual,
-partners of the partnership, limited liability partnership, members, managers,
organizers or any person of a limited 11ab111ty company, officers and directors of
a corporation, -trust, or association that is issued a liquor- license, shall be -
personally liable for all costs associated with-the enforcement -or collection,
1nclud1ng but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs, in the event that eult'
is instituted to enforce this guaranty.
‘ (c). . Licensee shall not exercise. its license whenever it W1thdraws or
cancels any bond or personal guarantee, unless the licensee files a bond
"whenever any personal guarantee is canceled or withdrawn or files the required -
personal guarantee(s) whenever any bond is canceled or w1thdrawn, and files its
gross liquor salés report and makes payment of the percentage fee due on the
date of the filing of the withdrawal or cancellation of the personal guarantee or
‘bond. [Eff 7/1/00] (Auth HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281- 1’7)]’
(Reserved)” : ‘ :

© 9, Section 08- 101 69, Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxwatmg Liquor of the County of: Mau1, is amended by amending subsec‘non
(&) to read as follows

“(a) No 11censee of any prem1ses 11censed to sell lxquor for consumptlon :

on the premises shall: -
(1) _Sell, advertise, or offer.to sell “all the 11quor you can drmk” .or more

than two drinks of alcohiolic beverage for a fixed pnce, or encourage,

spomnsor, perm1t or ha.ve any promonon, ga:ne “OF conteet that

15



https://or�more'.of

involves the consumption of liquor or the awardmg of- llquor as a
. prize. o
© (2) . Serve an unlifited amount of l1quor durmg a set- penod of time for
: a fixed price, provided this provision does not apply to class 2 class
. 9, class- 10, and class 12 licensecs:
A When such function is not open to the general pubhc and for

- which a hosted bar is utilized such as weddings, private -

.- parties, and fundraising functions; - .
“.(B) Where ehampagne may be inclusive with brunch
(0% ‘Where liquor may be inclusive with luaus; for] - :
(D} Where liquor may be inclusive with tour or crmse vessel
- *-operations[.]: or o ' -
(E) __Where ata Class.2, 10, 12.0r 18 one da fundrawm event a
o - get amount of alcoholic’beverages may be sold ata fixed gnc
"as well as an open bar may be utilized provided at a pairing
food and liquor) fundraisin _event, Section 08-101-86(d) -of
" the. Rules of the Liguor Commission shall not apply. - [Eff
. 7/1/00; am and comp 4/2/07; am and comp 3/4/17; am and
- comp 9/25/17; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§91 -2,
281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)"

10, Sect1on 08-101 70 Rules Govermng the Manufacture and Sa'le of
Intomcatmg Liquor of the County of Maui, is. ammded by amending subisection
(a) to read as follows: ' . _ ‘ _

' “(a) On every licensed prermses, an’ on-duty employee duly approved by
the director must be in active charge of each prem1ses during all t1mes that such-
premisés is open for business] ] ided :
transient vessel except for a Class 8, trans1ent yvessels.that have been issued an
_ annual license. [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp. 7/15/02; am and comp i ]'{Auth:
- HRS §§91-2 281 17) (Imp: HRS §281 -17y S

11 Secuon 08-10 1-74 Rules. Govermng the Manufacture and Sale of
lntomcatmg Liquer of the. County of Maui, is amended by amendmg subsectmn
(a) to. read as follows:- y

“(a). - Peroons who apply to the commission for reglstratwn or as an
employee approved by the director shall present:

S [1) Valid positive unexpired identification in the form of a passport with

photograph, a laminated state driver’s license with photograph, or

. other laminated government identification with photograph. -School

~ identificationi cards, city- or county identification. cards, or

- identification cards issued for the purpose of check cashing or other

16 --



https://cashing.or
https://approv.ed
https://amandcompq/4/.17
https://Class:2.-.10
https://setperiod.of
https://Serve.an

‘ vrdentxflcatmn cards not issued by a government agency shall be
: unacceptable; - ' :
(2)  The department may reject. any 1dent1flcat10n presented or requ1re a
© " -gecond valid identification for verification; . :
(8) ~ [Proof of & social security number; - ‘ ‘
“(4)]  The completed department's registration form as prescrxbed by the
..~ ‘commission, [Eff7/1/00; am and comp ' ] (Auth: HRS §§91-2,
e —281 17) (Imp: HRS §§281- 17)” N .

12. Section 08- 101 ’7’7 Rules cherrnng the Manufacture and Sale of -

4 A Intoxlcanng quuor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows:

' roved b the

“S08- 101 7 7 'Cernﬁcatron .certificate _for “em: lo ee_a

- director”, counties. Any person holdinga valid certificate for “employee approved

by the director” or its equivalent issued by any department or commission within -
the State may exchange such certificate for a valid department certificate subject.
to verification, an expiration date set forth by the director, submission of proper
documents; and any related fees. [Eff 7/1 / 00) (Auth HRS §§91-2 281- 17) (Imp _
HRS §281 17)] Reserved” = -

13 | Sect1on 08-101- 84, Rules Governmg the Manufacture and: Sale of

- Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Mau1 is amended by amendmg subsecuon

(b) to read as follows:

“(b)- [Nc more than two drinks of any quuor at one time tc an individual

s]:rall be permitted; provided however, distilled] Distilled spmts may be sérved in
_container(s) up to one quart in capacity. for any spec1a1 occasion upon obtammg :
‘a special permit therefor from ‘the director. Beer or wine may be served in a-

container, not.to- exceed the U.S, liquid measurement of one quait (946 liter) to

“two or more persons. Flights may be-utilized where liquor may be. served in

several containers o a person where. the total combined volume of liguor in all -
containers does not exceed the volume of & standard drink, [Eff 7/1/00; am and -
comp 7/ 15/02; am and comp 4/22/12; am and comp 3/4/ 17; amand comp "]

,'(Auth HRS §§91-2, 281 -17) (Imp HRS §281 =17y

14, Sectron 08-101-86, Rules Governmg the Manufacture and Sale of

AIntoxlcatmg quuor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows

“(a) Current pr1ces of alcohchc beverages shall be at all times posted and
exposed to view of patrons withiri the interior of a- hcensed premrses authonzed
to sell llquor for consumption on the premises. ‘

.(b) Al class 5, categoiy D licensees shall pcst all beverage pnces,

’ alcohohc or non=-a1cohcl1c, and any other’ pnce for services or commodrnes that ‘
" may be charged to the patrons

17



https://os-101"'.s6

_ (c) " For the purpose of th1s section, there shall be a: clear and legible
sign, menu, table tents, placard or marker which shall be in the English
* language, situated in a consp1cuoue location and clearly leg1ble from the distance .
- of where any patron is situated.
_ - {(d) - The volume of a wine pour shall be d1sclosed on the prlce list. for
" wine sold by the glass.] [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp: 4/22/12 am and comp ]
(Auth: HRS §§91-\2 281~ 1’7) (Imp HRS §281- 1’7)” o

- _15. Sect1on 08- 101 87, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxicating quuor of the County of Mani, is amended to read as follows:.

e ln casealloense is revoked cancelled or notrenewed ‘the femaining
hquor inventory shall be offered for credit to the wholesaler or manufacturer
authorized to sell such liquor. In the event the wholesaler or . manufacturer -
- declinnes the offer, a written request shall be made to the director for approval to
sell or transfer the remaining liquor 1nventory[ ] fo the transferee-in a transfer of -
a license, or to utilize the remaining liquor inventory for personal use, or to.
destroy the remaining liquor inventory[.], or to s¢ll or transfer to a licensee as
~ approved by the director. The value of the. remainirig hquor inventory. shall be -
indicated on the request. [Eff4 /22 /12;amand comp . ] (Auth HRS §§91-2,
- 281- 17 281-97) (Imp: HRS §281- 17)" -

.16, *Section 08-101-97, Rules Governmg the Manufacture and Sale of
Intox,lcatmg Liquor of the County of Mam, is arnended to read as follows

. @) Licensee must have and rna.mtam exoluswe control of- the prennses
and shall be subject to all State laws and rules of the commission, at all times.
Licensee must conduct, maintain and operate-all its business including the
peyment of .all taxes, liquor purchase, and all related monies due under the
hcenoe issued[.], unless otherwise authorized by the commission. .
(b}  All licensed premises shall be considered open for busmess’
‘whenever there is a private party, business meetmg, or its like. ‘
: {c) . Licensee may not discriminate or exclude anyonc due to race,
gender, or any other discnmma,tmg classification, |

- remxses shall be open to the eneral ubllc at all ﬁmeS'

18



https://se1t�or�-transfer�.to
https://reciueatsha.11
https://mi~-101.;.81

17 Sectlon 08-101-99, Rules Govermng the -Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxxcatmg Liquor of the. County of Mau1, is amended by amendmg subsectron -
_ (a) to read as’ follows : - o

- “(a) - No liquor consumptlon and/or ‘service shall “be. allowed 1n the :
followmg areas|:], except as otherwise approved by the commission: - : % ‘
(1) Food.and beverage preparation areas, except for t for Chéfs Table events
o , }approved by special permit;
B (2) - Storerooms, walk-in refrigerators and freezers, except for wine cellar
‘ events approved by special pernnt S
(3) . Elevators and stairwells;
{4)  Employee and service corridors; : : ,
. (5)  Employee.- lounges, employee d1n1ng rooms and employee locker"
_ . ‘rooms; - : L _ , R |
(6).. - Restrooms; and ‘ . '
(7)  Areas for dancing, music,: and entertamment[l when ut111zed for
‘ - dancing, music and entertainment. [Eff 4 /22/12; am and eomp
- . 3/4/17; am and comp ] (Authi HRS §§91-2, 281 17 281-78)
. (Imp: HRS §281-17)" '

18, " Section 08- 101 100 Rules Govermng the- Manufacture and Sale of
.' Intoxzoatmg L1quor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows

(a) Dxcept as spec1ﬁcally allowed - herem, peddhng in any sense is
strictly prohibited, - Before removing any liquor from a licensed premises. for
delivery -to a customer under the [manufacturer's or wholesaler s,] ndustr_'z
member’s and/or retail dealer's license, the licensee must have in hand in his

office, store, or warehouse, a bona fide order therefor. Provided, however, duly'd

~ licensed wholesale dealers may, without a bona fide and specific order therefor,
remove beer from licensed premises to delivery vehicles for the purpose of selling
. said beer directly ‘to persons- who may: lawfully sell- liquors at retail in their
‘orlginal packages or dispense liquor for consumptlon on the premises. »
(b) [A manufacture or wholesaler licenisee] An industry member shall
deliver any 11quor ordered or purchased by a retailer into the retailer's prenuses :
Dehvery of any liguor to any other location except the retailer's licensed premises
“is strictly- prohibited. Provided, however, any. retailer or its* duly- authorized :
employee may pick up any order of liquor drrectly from the [wholesaler’s or .
manufacturer's] industry member’s licensed premises, and such 11quor must
come to rest within the retailer's premises prior to any sale.
: (). Anindustry member may make [Deliveries] dehverles toa hcensee 8
_ catered or other location by permit. [Eff 7/1/00;.am and comp 3/4/17; am and
comp ] (Auth HRS §§ 91- 2 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17) .

19



https://281:-.17
https://purchased.by
https://liq-q.or
https://consumption�.on

19,

Sectron 08-101- 106 Rules Governmg the Manufacture and Sale of

Intoxrcatmg Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amendmg the title to
read. as follows, and further to arnend subsectron (h) to read as follows '

' “§08-101 106 Manufacturer brew_ub and wholesale

dea.ler llcenseeS'

e

@)

@

reta11er as point of sale advertlsement ’l‘hese items 1nclude such

,.-[Manufacturers or wholesale dealers 11censee,] Industrv rnemben o

- 'Furmsh or give a eample of chsttlled sp1r1ts, wine or malt beverages
to a retailer who-has not purchased the brand from that. industry

- member within the last twelve months. Industry member may give
- a sample of not more than three gallons of malt beverage, not more.

- than three liters of any brand of wine, and not more than three liters.

of distilled spirits, which. shall be invoiced and clearly marked

- “sample” on each container.,
Conduct tasting and samplrng act1v1t1es at & licensed premises

authorized for on-premises consumption, Industry member must

‘purchase the products used from ‘the licensee, but may -not
. purchase them from the licensee for:more than the ordinary retail

price. Industry members may, conduct tasting and sampling

" activities upon its licensed premises for the introduction of new
- products, upon obtaining & permit from the director. Industry
- member staff
- and samplrng actrvrtreo or. educatron semrnar to assess the qualrtv

may taste sample liquor while conducting the tastin

ipermrt from the dn'ector Taste shall mean, takmg a sip of sard

sample of lic uor and -~ swirlin 1th1n -.one’s mouth'- wrthout
wallowmg or consummg of said hguor '

‘Give or sponsor educational seminars for employees of retarlers

either at the [wholesaler's -or- manufacturer] industry_member's
premises or at the retailer’s premises. Examples would be seminars
dealing with the use of a retailer's equipment, training seminafs for

' ‘—-employees of retailers, or -tours. of wholesaler's or manufacturer's

premises. This section does not authorize the’ wholesaler or-

- manufacturer to pay a retailer’s or “its employee s expense ‘in

conJunctlon with an educational seminar such as travel and lodging,

- nor does it allow the . consumption: of liquor by any on-duty

employee. This does. not preclude provrdrng nomma.l hospitality

3 _during the event.
Give or sell point of sale advertrsmg specialties to.a retarler 1f these

items .bear advertising matter and are primarily- valuable to the

20




rtl:ungs as posters, p'laca-rdA designs, " inside- signs 'lelectnc,

“mechanical or otherwise), window decorations, trays, -coagters,

mats, menu cards, meal checks, - -paper napkins, foam scrapers,

. .- backbar mats, thermometers, clocks, t-ghifts, hats, and calendars.-
-~ An industry member may add the name or name and address of the
retailet to the advertising: specialty,
“(A) ~ The total value of all a,dvert;smg spec1a1t1es furmshed by aii .

industry member to a retailer may not exceed $300 per brand.
in any one caléndar year per licensed premises. The value of
the. advertising specialty is the actual cost of that item to the
_industry member ‘who- initially purchased it. Transportatmn..
" and installation costs are excluded;

L (8)3 ~Industry members may not pool ‘or comblne their dollar

~ limitation in order to provide a retailer with retail advernsmg .
specialties valued in excess of $300 per brand;

" (C) _All point of sale advertising materials and -consumer

advertising specialties must  bear _conspicuous - and
" substantial advertising matter about the product or the
industry member which is permanently mscnbed or securely
affixed; or ' ‘

(D) - Industry members and retallers are reqmred fo keep and

I )

- -purchased, so.long as the product meets the follcwmg ccndmons
* and limitations for such returns:

" maintain records.on the licensed . premises for a three—year
period of all items furnished to retajlers. .

Accept the return of any liquor product from a retaller tor “ordmary

and usual cornmercial reasons” affer the product has been

(A) Defective products which are unmarketable due to product
o deterioration, leakmg containers, damaged labels,
mutilated and missing strip. stamps; -

| (B) Error in prodicts’ delivered where there is a d1screpancy ‘

between products ordered and- delivered may be corrected
-~ within a reasonable period of time of not more than five
" calendar-days;

{C) Products which may no longer be le.wfully sold due to a change :

in law or regulation, a particular size or brand is no longer
~ permitted to be sold; or there is a change in the formula, proof,
‘label or container of the .product, or where the industry
~ member has discontinued the production or- 1mpcrtat1cn ofa.
product; or -

(D) Termination of business where the - 11censee may return

~ _ products on hand at the time the- licensee- termmates the
- cperat1cn of: the busmess ' - -

.l -‘ 21 O


https://y-not--po�c,,1-.or

_ An mduetry member is under nc obllgatlon nor: requlred to accept :
. the return of products for the reasons listed. :
(6). . - Give.or sell prcduct d1splays to a retarler, subject to the followmg._ _'
© limitations: - :
‘(A) The: tetal value of- all produ.ct dmplays furmshed by. an -
_ ,mduetry member under this section may not exceed $300-per
“brand in use &t any one time in- any one retail establishment..
~ The value of a product display is the actual coet to the-
industry . member who - initiaily purchased t. w1th'
o transportation and installation costs excliaded; - -
- (B). Product display means any wine. racks, bms, barrels casks
: shelving and the like from which distilled spmts wine, or malt, _
- _beverages are displayed-on and sold; '
~(¢)  Industry member may not pool or cembme their dollar
limitations in order to provide a retaller a product d1splay in
. excessof $300 per brand; = - =
(D) Product display shall bear conep1cuous and substantralf.
-+ - advertising matter; and . '
- {E) Industry member may assist a reta11er 1n settmg 4, product
- 7 displayin a retail premises.. - : '
{7 Give or sell outside signs to a reta:ler, prov1d1ng _ '
. (A) . The sign must bear conspicucus and substantial’ advertrsmg
' matter about: the product or the industry- member which is.
o  permanently inscribed orsecurely affixed;
o '(B]' The retailer is not cornpensated directly or 1nd1rect1y, _such as
' through a sign company, for displaying the signs; and . '
: (C) The cost of the signs may not exceed $400. o
(8)  Provide a recommended shelf plan or shelf schemat1c for d1st111ed _
" spirits,; wine or malt-beverages. :
(). . Manufacturers’ or wholesale dealers’ hcensee, shall at a.ll 11quor
establrshments, stock, rotate; and affix the prices to. distilled-spirits, wine, or
malt beverages which they sell, and check for outdated or spoiled liquor
products, at least once a month- a,nd at the time of deltvery of any liquor product, -
unless ‘the retailer requests in writing that this service not be provided or be
- discontinued. ‘[Eff 7/1/00; am and comp 7/ 15/02; am-and comp 3/4/17; am
and c‘omp ] (Auth HRS §§91 -2; 281- 17) (Irnp HRS §281 17)” ’

, 20 Sect1on 08-101~ 112 Rulee chernmg the Manufacture and Sale of
Intoxlcatmg Liquor of the Ceunty of Maui, is amended by amendmg subsectzon
(a) to read as follows:. , ,

“a ) [Any] No holder of a claee 3 whclesale dealere l1censee, or a class
- 1, manufacturer’s-license fwho is a liquor licefisee in other counties within the

State, may] 8 hall refuse to sell liquor to two or more licensees [partrcrpate in-pool



https://amended.by

buymg of 11qucr products] pursuant to any pocl buymg agreement between [the
saine licensee] licensees [frcm different counties,] wh1ch has been ﬁled w1th and‘
approved by the commission; provided that: = - :
(1) .. The pool buying agreement is in wrltmg and des1gnates one of the.
_ licensees as the agent of the others for the purpose of pool buying; -
" (2). Any order for pool buying from the holder of a manufacturer's license
~ .shall be placed by the agent and payment for that order shall be
. made by the agent;
(3) - Each pool buying crder shall contain an inventory and cost of the
' liquor products purchased by each Izqucr l1cense number of the
- different courties; -
. (4) - The holder of & manufacturer s license in selling to the agent shall'
' followinvoice, record keeping, and delivery procedures which-are in
compliance with this chapter and.-the rules of the ccmmlsswn of
IR, each county having jurisdiction over the seller; - -
(5} Licerisee of the pool buying agreement shall maintain 111VOICES and
- “anly records of the liquor products: purchased pursuant to the pool
- buying agreement within the licensed .premises for a period of four
. years and shdll be made available forthwith for mspectwn by the.
- . department or its authorized personnel; and [ -
~ (6)° Each pool buying transaction shall be complctcd on the day'
transacted and where the pool buying agreement is between or
- among licensees from different counties, the transaction shall be
~ deemed: completed when the product has been delivered to a freight
- forwarder, water carrier or private trucking firm for. delivery to the
- licensees. |Eff 7/1/00; am and comp ,.] ‘(Auth HRS §§91-2 ‘281-
17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" : T T

. 21 Section 08-101-113, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of
-Intc:ncatmg Liquor of the County of Maul, is amended tc read as fcllows

"‘§08 101 113 [(Rcserved)] “Cyy

_ gg_gm A growler or other glass, ceramrc.cr metal conteuncrusedby"
manufacturers, restaurants; reta;ll dealers, bremzubs wmenes, and smiall craft
rcducerubs for sale cf uct. off-prer tion b atrcns shall _

- resealable once ope nedf and intended for multr le fills and use. [Eff ] (Auth
“HRS§ - § ) (Imp: HRS §281 17)” ' : _ o

Secnon 08- 101 114, Rules chernmg the Manufacture and bale of

o Intc:ncatmg Liquor of the: Ccunty of Maui, is amended to read as follcws

‘ " “§08 101-114- Trade shows and/ or other exhibitions. Any trade exh1b1tor |
- trade crganlzatlcn or other exhibitor shall apply for the issuance cf a permlt

23



https://ariisa.ie

w1thout hearmgs, fees, notarizing of documents, submission of floor. plans, and :
other requirements, to receive ligquor from w1th1n or outside the State for display

- and sampling on' a not-for-sale basis at trade exhibitions, shows or other.
exhibitions, subject to the following terms and conditions: '

(1

Liquor shipped into the County under this section shall be in [750

- milliliter-sized] containers, be approprmtely marked “Sample - Not
" For Sale or Resale,” and shall come to rest at the warehouse ofa.
- holder of a class 8, wholesale déalers’ licensee, within the County,

" and be heldin the licensed premises for at least forty-eight hours .

~ before delwery to: or picked up by. the person Who was 1ssued a

" . permit to receive such liquor;” '

The applicant shall submit an mventory of all 11quor shxpped into
the County at the time of the application, and a closing invéntory of
all liquor used during the event within five working days after the
close of the event. Any liquor not utilized at the event shall become

A - the property of the department and it shall be the ‘permit holder's. -

@

@

. : " ._('7')1 '

"~ its  employee “sell, serve, or furnish” any liquor ‘to, or allow. the

©

. responsibility to transport all l1quor not uullzed at the event to th1s_ ,
" department for disposal; -

The applicant shéll obtain and cer’ufy that all necessary clea:rances

from other governmental agencies have been obtained for the event;

The- apphcant shall be subject to and shall comply with the rules of
the commission, State liquor laws, a.nd shall be subject to any g

.- . penalties as provided by law;
() .

Sample tasting shall be limited to one ounce, per person per brand.

‘but not more than three ounces of 11quor in total shall be provrded
“to any person;

Liquor may be sampled on a. comphmentary bams only and at no
time under any circumstances shall any holder of a permit or its

~employee, directly or mdirectly, lell or ‘be- compensated for such .
: aarnple'

Af no time under any c1rcumstances shall any holder of a perm1t or

consumption of any liquor by any person at the time under the

. - influence of liguor, drugs, or. any combination. thereof or. to any

@)

person under twenty-one years of age;

- Liguor shall be consumed on the approved area tha,t the holder of

the permit have exclusive control and clear view of, and any liquor

-~ ghall not be removed from the area, except as may be approved by

the director;
The director ‘shell not approve any permit apphcauon unless it

_.includes-a written statement signed by the owner or representative
~ of the property that the function will be subject to the liquor laws

and to inspection: by mvesﬁgators Apphcatmn shall be submltted

24



https://prenii$es.for.at
https://h~~in.gs

23

© at least ten werkmg days ‘prior to- the event [EfE ’7 /1 / 00 At and .
'_'comp ] (Auth HRS §§ 91 2,.281- 1'7) (Imp HRS §281 17)”

"_Secuon 08- 102 11 Ruleb Governmg the Admimstrature Practrces
-..and Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor- Comntrol |
 Adjudication’ Board of the County of Mem is amended by amendmg

- eubeectlon (b) to ree.d as follows: '

“(b) . The: peutmn shall be subm1tted i thlrteen cop1es and shall
- _1nclude : ‘
c (1) A statement of tHe nature ef pet1t1one1 & interest;

o (2)- A draft or'the substance of the proposed.itile or amendment ora

demgnatlon of the provision sought to be: repealed; [and]

o (3) An exp1101t staterhent of the reasons in support of the preposedl

rule, amerndment, or repeall.] and and ’

- '(4) Proposed. rule, smendment; or deletwn shall be wrltten and _

24

Submitted in ifs entirety.in. ramsever and standard formats: ot
any - other format ds may be required by the rules . of the
_.commlssmn and or the Hawaii: Rev1sed Statutes. [Eff 2/7/00; am
and comp-_ ] (Auth: HRS sectmn 91 2, 281- 1’7) (Imp HRS
-section 281- 17)” '

Sectlon 08-102-82, Rules Goverhmg the AdmlmstratWe 'Pre.cuces
and Procedures of -the Liquor. Commission. and Liquor Control

AdJudlcatmn Beard of the Ceunty of Maui, is amended to read as
follows :

' “Sectlon 08-102-82 - Transaction of business. A majority of the
- Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The
. concurring vote of the majonty ef the members shall be necessary ,
" to take any action. ~

(1) If the board is unable to render a dec1s1on or -any compla.lnt '
heard before the board, atid no other motion régarding the

- matter is. passed the compleunt shall be considered
dismissed.

' (2) Whenever- the board is ready 10 vote ot any questwn, the . B

- ¢hairperson shall state the question, puf the. questlon to .
vote,. ancl announce the tesults 0 the. board. '
(3) Unless a present bpard member states that ‘the. beard.
. member ig disqualified or excused frem voting pursuantto
sections 08-102-98 -and/or 08-102- 99 of-the rules of the
commission, the board member’s silence or refusal to. vote
shall be recorded as an [affirmative vote]. abstention. An
_ abstentmn is not a vote and is:not counted as a vote

25



https://08~.102:.99

‘ ,(4) The board or its. dcs1gnee shall render a written décision

U within a reasonable time from ‘the date of the .public

= . hearing. [ef2/7/00; ami and.comp | (Auth HRS sectlons'
C 9159, 281~ 17] (Imp HRS sect1or1 281 17) [

125, Matenal except source notes, ‘to-be repealed is bracketed New :
matem. 1a1 is. underscored

26 Add1t1ons to update source: notes to reﬂect these amendments are
not underscored .

: 2’7 These amendments tor Chapte1s 101 and- 102 shall te.lce eﬂect ten
days afte1 f111ng w1th the Ofﬁce of the County Clerk ' A ,

Coples of the proposed smendments may be viewed or downloaded from .
the Department of Liquor Control web page at www mamcountv gov liquor and
: .selectmg the Rules /Laws tab. : Ca

Coplcs of. the proposed amendments will be maﬂed to any 1nterested
person who requests a copy and pays the required fees for copying and postage.
Requests for:a copy may be made at the Department of Ligquor Control, 2145 -
A Kaohu Street ‘Roem 105, Wsrluku Hawaii 96793, or by calhng (808)244 -4666.

‘The Li uor Comm_ission will conduct a ublic hearin on the rof osed
dmendments on May 8, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. at the Department of Liquor
~ Control Conference Room, 2145 Kaohu Street, Room 108, Wailuku, Maul,

Hawaii

Any mterested -person may submit 'oral or wr1tten testimony on thé
pr oposed amendments at the public hearing. Also, written téstimony may be
submitted by ‘mail ‘to: Liquor Commission, 2145 ‘Kaohu Street, ‘Room 105,
Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii 96793.. Written testimony must be received by- the quuor,
; Comrmssron before the pubhc hesring closes on May 8, 2019

Any person requestmg accomrncde.twns due to d15ab111t1es must call (808) ’
244 4666 at least six (6) days before the date of the scheduled pubhc hearmg

Please contact the Commission Secre %t (808) 24 666 1f further

i 'mformauon is. needed %y . /,%/ (/7,

ey ALULL.
Chair o
Liquor Comrmsswn '

L 20164770 | ' |
'2019 03 20 Notlee: of Pablic Hearing Chapter 101

- 96



https://i>ej,artinetif.of
https://D~partme.nt
www.mauicounty

IV. New Business — Before Public Hearing

B.Discussion and Action on Proposed New HAR
Title 16, Corporate Governance Annual
Disclosure, promulgated by DCCA





mailto:gyama~hi@dcca.hawaii.gov






https://could.be



http://dbedt.hawall.gov/sbrrb/resources/small�
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov
https://state,.or

Attachment to Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement to the Small Business Regulatory
Review Board

Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure (CGAD)

- A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice reqﬁirement in HRS §92-7, p!eése attach a
statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ CGAD Model Act and CGAD Model Regulation
both require an insurer or group of insurers to provide a confidential disclosure regarding its

o rporéte governance practices to the lead state and/or domestic regulator on an annual basis. The
proposed administrative rules set forth the procedures for filing and the required contents of the
corporate governance annual disclosure.

Also, this is a NAIC accreditation requirement that is effective from 1/1/2020.

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing in persan and on the Lieutenant Governor's
Website pursuant to HRS §92-77?

Webpag

Address

If the proposed rule affects smail business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a
reasonable determination of the following:

1. Description of the small businesses that will be requfred to comply with the proposed rules and
how they may be adversely affected. '

There are 27 domestic insurance companies in Hawaii that will be subject to the proposed rules.
As stated in 2. below, costs are not expected to be overly significant.

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect
costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional
services, revenue loss, or dther costs associated with compliance.

It is the understanding of insurance regulators that insurers currently summarize and describe
their corporate governance practices to a number of various stakeholders on a regular basis. In
addition, the disclosure requirements allow reference to existing documents and filings and
provide guidance for filing changes from the prior year to simplify the reporting process.



Therefore, the costs for insurance companies to comply with the proposed rule are not
expected to be overly significant.

The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected,
including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally
imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used.

Monetary.costs should be nominal as regulators can incorporate the corporate governance
annual disclosure with their annual review, financial analysis -and assessment of the insurer’s
solvency.

Asa benef|t the annual filing ensures regulators are provnded w:th sufficient information on
governance practices to assess the solvency of insurer.

The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as
consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, less stringent
deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than design standards,
exemption, or other mitigating techniques.

The insurer may reference other existing documents [e.g., the Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment (ORSA) Summary Report, holding company Form B or Form F filings, U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) proxy statements, foreign regulatory reporting requirements,
etc.) to the regulator in fulfillment of the information requested in various areas.

The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatuves that could be
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules.

The intent of the models is to providé more information to regulators on insurers’ corporate
governance practices on an annual basis. Currently, regulators-obtain a s'ignificant amount of
information on insurers’ corporate governance practices during full-scope examinations, which
typically occur once every 3-5 years. However, information on governance practices, including
changes that can have a substantial impact on current and prospective solvency, is not widely
available to regulators in thé period between onsite examinations. Through the adoption of
proposed rules, regulators can ensuye that sufficient information on governance practices is
available toassess the solvency of insurers on an annual basns

Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those
‘mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an
explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard.

We are not aware of any more stringent standards imposed by this proposed rule. The proposed
rule is an accreditation requirement of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners
that is effective from 1/1/2020.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

Adoption of Chapter 16-XXX,
Hawail Administrative Rules

_ 1. Chapter'l6~XXX, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
entitled "Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure'", is
adopted to read as follows: '

"HAWALT ADQINISTRATIVE RULES
TITLE 16:
DEPARTMENT OF coMMERCE‘AﬁD CONSUMER AFFATRS
CHAPTER XXX

CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL DISCLOSURE

§16-XXX-101 Purpose and authority

§16-XXX-102 Definitions ‘

§16-XXX-103 Filing procedures _

§16~-XXX-104 Contents of corpdrate governance annual
~ disclosure ' : '

§16-XXX~105 " Severability clause

§16-XXX-101 Purpose and authority. The purpose of
these rules is to set forth the procedures for filing

xx-1



and the required contents of the corporate governance
annual disclosure, deemed necessary by the Commissioner
and authorized by [insert statutory reference to
Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure]

[Eff . o ] (Auth: HRS
§8§431:2-201, 431:XX-XXX-CGAD ‘re Rules) {Imp: HRS '
§§431:2~101,,431:XX;XXX+CGAD re‘Purpose and scope)

- §16-XXX-102 xDefinitions. For purposes of this
chapter: :

: "Commissioner" means the insurance commiSSioner of
the State. - '

"Insurance group" means the insurers and affiliates
included within an insurance holding company system as
defined in section 431 XX-XXX, HRS. [CGAD statute re
definitions]

"Insurer" shall have the same meaning as set forth
in section 431:X¥- -XXX ', HRS, [CGAD statute re :
definitions], except that it shall not include agencies,
authorities, or instrumentalities of the United States,
its possessions and territories, the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, the District of Columbia, or a state or
political subdivision of a state.

"Senior management” shall mean any corporate
officer responsible for reporting information to the
board of directors at regular. intervals or providing
this information to shareholders or regulators and shall
include, for example and without limitation, the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, chief
operations officer, chief procurement officer, chief
legal officer, chief information officer, chief
technology officer, chief revenue officer, chief
Visionary officer, or any other "C" level executive,
[Eff ' ]
(Auth: HRS §§431:2- 201 431:XX-XXX~CGAD re Rules) (Imp:
" HRS §§431:1-202, 431:2-~ ~101, 431:XX-XXX-CGAD re '

Definitions) S

xXx-2


https://Distri.ct

§16-XXX-103 Filing Procedures. (a) An
insurer, or the insurance group of which the insurer is
a member, required to file a corporate governance annual
disclosure by the [insert reference to Corporate
Governance Annual Disclosure Model Act], shall, no later
than June 1 of each calendar year, submit to the
Commissioner a corporate governance annual dlsclosure
that contains the information describéd in section 16-
XXX-104, Hawaii ‘Administrative Rules. '

(b) "The corporate governance annual,disClosure
must include a signature of the insurer's or insurance
group's chief executive officer or corporate secretary
attesting to the best of that individual's belief and
knowledge that thé insurer or insurance group has ‘
implemented the corporate governance practices and that
a copy of the corporate governance annual disclosuré has
been provided to the insurer's or insurance group's
board of directors {(hereafter ."board") or the
appropriate committee thereof.

(c) The insurer or insurance group shall have
discretion regarding the appropriate format for
providing the information required by these regulatlons
and is permitted to customize the corporate governance
annual disclosure to provide the most relevant
information necessary to permit the Commissioner to gain
an understanding of the corporate governance structure,
policies, and practices utilized by the insurer or
insurance group.

{d) For purposes of completing the corporate
governance annual disclosure, the insurer or insurance
group may choose to provide information on governance
activities that occur at the ultimate controlling parent
-level, an intermediate holdihg company level,. or the’
individual legal entity level, depending upon how the
insurer or insurance groﬁp has structured its system of
corporate governance. The. insurer or insurance group is
encouraged to make the corpérate governance annual
disclosures at the level at which the insurer's or
insurance group's risk appetite is determined, or at
which the earnings, capital, liquidity, operations, and
reputation of the insurer are overseen collectively and
at which the supervision of those factors are

xx-3



coordinated and exercised, or the level at which legal
liability for failure of general corporate governance
duties would be placed. If the insurer or insurance
group determines the level of reporting based on these
criteria, it shall indicate which of the three criteria
‘was used to determine .the level of reporting and explaln
‘any subsequent ‘changes in level of reporting.

- (e) Notwithstanding section 16-XXX-103(a), Hawaii
Administrative Rules, and as outlined in 431: - C
Disclosure Requirement, HRS, if the corporate governance
annual disclosure is completed at the insurance group
level, then it must be filed with the lead state of the
group as determined by the procedures. outlined in the
most recent Financial Analysis Handbook adopted by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners. In '
these instances, a copy of the corporate governance
annual disclosure must also be provided to the chief
regulatory official of any state in which the insurance
group has a domestic insurer, upon request.

(f) An insurer or insurance group may comply with
this section by referencing other existing documents
including, but not limited to Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment Summary Report,.Holding Company Form B or F
Filings, Securities and Exchange Commission Proxy
Statements, or foreign regulatory reporting -
~requirements, if the documents provide information that
is comparable to the information described in section
16-XXX~104, Hawaii Administrati#e Rules. The insurer or
insurance group shall clearly reference the location of
the relevant information within the corporate governance
annual disclosure and attach the referenced document if
it is not already filed or available to the regulator.

{g) Each year following the initial filing of theé
corporate governance annual disclosure, the insurer.or -
insurance group shall file an amendeéd version of the
. previously filed corporate governance annual disclosure
f'indicating where changes have been made. If no changes

were made in the information or activities reported by
the insurer or insurance group, the filing should so

state. [Eff , ] {Auth:
HRS §8431:2-201, 431 i XX-XXX-CGAD re Rules) (Imp: HRS
§431:2-101)

xx-4


https://insurer.or

$16-XXX-104 Contents of corporate governance
annual disclosure. (a) The insurer or insurance group
shall-be descriptive as possible in completing the
" corporate governance annual disclosure, with inclusion
of attachments or example documents . that are used in the
governance process, since these may provide a means to
demonstrate the strengths of their’ governance framework
-and practices.

(b) . The corporate governance'annual disclosure
shall describe the insurer's or insurance group's.
corporate governance framework and structure including
consideration of the following:

(1) The board and various committees thereof
ultlmately responsible for overseeing the
insurer or insurance group and the level at
which that oversight occurs, such as the
ultimate control level, an intermediate
holding company level, or an individual
legal entity level. The insurer or insurance .
group shall describe and discuss the
rationale for the current board size and
structure; and ‘

(2) The duties of the board and each of its
51gn1f1cant comnittees and how they are
governed such as bylaws, charters, or
informal mandates, as well as how the board's
leadership is structured,- - including a
discussion of the roles of the chief
executive officer and chairman: of the board
within the organization. .

(c) The insurer or insurance group shall descrlbe

‘the policies and practices of the most senior governing
.entity and significant committees thereof, including a
discussion of the following factors:

(1) How the qualifications, expertise, and

’ experience of each board member meet the
needs of the insurer or insurance group;

XX-5



(d)

How an appropriate amount of independence is
maintained on.the board and its significant

committees;

The number of meetings held by the board and
its Significant committees over the past year .
as well. as information on director
attendance;

How. the ‘insurer or insurance group

. identifies, nominates, and elects members. to’

the board and its committees. The discussion

should include, .for example: ‘

{B) - Whether a nomination committee is in
place to identify and select indiViduals
for consideration;

{B) Whether term limits are placed on
directors;

(C) How the election and re- election
processes function;

{D) Whether a board diversity policy 1is in
place, and if so, how it functions; and

The processes in place for the board to

evaluate its performance and the performance

of its committees, as well as any recent
measures taken to improve performance

(including any board or committee training

programs that have been put in place).

‘The insurer or insurance group shall describe

the policies and practices for directing senior
management, including a description of the following

factors:

(1)

Any processes or practices (i.e., suitability

standards) to determine whether. officers and -
key persons- in control functions have the
appropriate background, experience, and
integrity to fulfill their prospective roles,
including:

{B) Identification of the specific positions

for which suitability standards have
been developed and a description of the
standards employed; and

(B) Any changes in an officer's or key
person's suitability as outlined by the

xx-6



insurer's or insurance group's standards
and procedures to monitor and evaluate
such changes;
The insurer's or insurance group's code of
business conduct and ethics, the discussion

“of which considers, for example:

(&) Compliance with statutes and rules; and’

A(Bf' Proactive reporting.of any 1llegal or -

unethical behav1or, _

The insurer's or insurance group's processes

for performance evaluatlon, compensation, and

corrective action to ensure effective senior
management throughout the organization,
including a-description of the general:
objectives of significant compensation
programs and what the programs are designed
to reward. The description shall include
sufficient detail to allow the commissioner
to understand how the organization ensures
that compensation programs do not encourage
or reward excessive risk taking. Elements to
be discussed may include, for example:

{A} The board's role in overseeing
management compensation programs and
practices;

{B) . The various elements of compensation
awarded in the insurer's or insurance
group's compensation programs and how
the insurer or insurance group
determines and calculates the amount of
each element of compensation paid;

. (C) How compensation programs -are related to

both company and individual performance
over time;

(D) Whether compensation programs include
risk adjustments and how those
adjustments are incorporated into the
‘programs for employees at different
levels;

(E) Any clawback provisions built into the
programs to recover awards or payments
if the performance measures upon which

xXx-7



(4)

they are based are restated or otherwise
adjusted;

Any other factors in understandlng how
the insurer or insurance group monitors
its compensation policies to determine

'whether its risk management objectives

are met by incentivizing its employees.
The insurer's or insurance. group's plans
for chief executlve offlcer and senior .
management succe581on

(e} The. insurer or insurance group shall describe
the processes by which the board, its committees, and
senior management énsure an appropriate amount of
" oversight to the critical risk areas impacting the
insurer's business activities, including a discussion

of:
(1)

(2)

(3}

(B}

How oversight and management
responsibilities are delegated between
the board, its committees, and senior
management;

How the board is kept informed of the
insurer's strategic plans, the
associated risks, and steps that senior
management is taking to monitor and
managé those risks;

How reporting responsibilities are

"organized for each critical risk area.

The description should allow the
commissioner to understand the frequency
at which information on each critical
risk area is reported to and reviewed by
senior management and the board. This

‘description may include, for ‘example,

the following critical areas of the
insurer:

An insurer, or the insurance group. of
which the insurer is a member, may refer

_to its Own Risk and Solvency Assessment

Summary Report pursuant to Article 3D,
Risk Management and Own Risk and
Solvency Assessment Model Act,
Actuarial function;

xx-8


https://group.of

(C) Investment decision-making processes;
(D) Reinsurance decision-making processes;
(E) Business strategy and finance decision-
making processes; :
(F) Compliance function;
{(G) Financial reporting and internal
‘ ‘auditing; and . - '
(H) Market conduct decision-making
S processes, - :
[EfE ' 1 {(Auth: HRS
§§431:2-201," 431:XX~-XXX~CGAD re Rules) (Imp: HRS
§§431:1-202, 431:2-101, 431:XX-XXX-CGAD re Contents of
corporate governance . annual disclosure)

§$16-XXX-105 Severability clause. If any provision
of these regulations, or the adpplicaticon thereof to any
person or circumstance, is held invalid, such
determination shall not affect other provisions or
applications of these regulations which can be given
effect without the invalid provision or application, and
to that end the provisions of these regulations are
severable. " [Eff 1
(Auth: HRS §8§431:2-201, 431:XX-XXX-CGAD re Rules) (Imp:
HRS §8§431:1-202, 431:2-101, 431:XX-XXX~CGAD re
Severability)

2. The adoption of chapter 16-XXX, -Hawaii
Administrative rules, shall take effect ten days after
filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.
entitled "Corporate Governance Bnnual Disclosure,” is
adopted. ' S

xx-9



I certify that the foregolng are copies of the
rules drafted in the Ramseyer format, pursuant to the
requirements of secti o vised Statutes,
which were  adopted or and filed with

the Officé of the Lie_._........ .. ... _. '

7 CATHERINE P. AWAKUNI COLON
Department of Commerce and Coensumer
Affairs -

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Attorney General

xx-10



IV. New Business — Before Public Hearing

C.Discussion and Action on Proposed
Amendments to HAR Title 16, Chapter 185,
Annual Audited Financial Reporting,
promulgated by DCCA





mailto:gyamashl@dcca.hawall









http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small-.business-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov

Attachment to Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement to the Small Business Regulatory
Review Board

Revisions to the Annual Financial Reporting Model Regulation

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach a
statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved.

To incorporate an internal audit function requirement for large insurers into the regulation. The
revisions required individual insurers writing more than $500 million or insurance groups writing
more than $1 billion in annual premium to maintain an internal audit function providirg

~ independent, objective and reasonable assurance to the audit committee and insurer management
regarding the insurer’s governance, risk management and internal controls. The function is required
to be aorganizationally independent from management and required to report at least annually to
the audit committee on the results of internal audit activities.

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing in person and on the Lieutenant Governor's
Website pursuant to HRS §92-7?

Webpag

Address

If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a
reasonable determination of the following:

1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the proposed rules and
how they may be adversely affected.

The internal audit function requirements contain the following threshold exceptions:

(1) The insurer has annual direct written and unaffiliated assumed premium, including

" international direct and assumed premium but excluding premiums reinsured with the
Federal Crop insurance Corporation and Federal Flood Program, less than 5500,000,000;
and, Co '

(2) If the insurer is a member of a Group of insurers, the group has annual direct written
and unaffiliated assumed premium including international direct and assumed premium,
but excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and
Federal Flood Program, less than $1,000,000,000.

There are currently 27 domestic insurers consisting of property and casualty companies, life
companies, and mutual benefit societies. Four insurers do not meet the threshold exceptions.



It is important to note that all publicly-held insurers are already required to maintain an internal
audit function through stock exchange listing requirements. In addition, it is a standard industry
best practice for large insurers to maintain internal audit functions of their own volition. The
costs for these companies to meet the new requirements are nominal, given existing practices in
this area.

In doliar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect
costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional
services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance.

See 1. above.

The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected,
including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally
imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used.

The internal audit functions of insurers are already reviewed as part of each full-scope financial
condition examination, The impact on state departments to enforce this new requirement
would be a simple addition to the existing work plan in this area. '

The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as
consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, less stringent
deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than design standards,
exemption, or other mitigating techniques.

If an insurer is a member of an insurance holding company system or included in a Group of
insurers, the insurer may satisfy the Internal audit function requirements set forth in this section
at the ultimate controlling parent level, an intermediate holding company level or the individual
legal entity level.

The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules.

_Seeli. above.

Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compiiance for small businesses.
The businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or directly benefit from the
proposed rules. : :

See 1. above.

Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those

mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an
explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard.



Woe are not aware of any more stringent standards imposed by this proposed rule. The proposed
rule is an accreditation requirement of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners
that is effective from 1/1/2020.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 16-185
Hawaii'Administrative Rules

MMM DD, YYYY

1. Chapter 16-185, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
entitled “Annual Audited Financial Reporting", is
amended and compiled to read as follows:

"HAWATII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES
TITLE 16
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS
CHAPTER 185

ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTING

§16-185-101. Purpbse and scope

§16-185-102  Definitions
§16-185-103 General requirements related to filing

and extensions for filing of annual
audited financial report and audit -
committee appointment

§16~-185-104 Contents of annual audited financial
report :
§16-185-105 Designation of independent certified

public accountant

185-1



§16-185-106

§16-185-107
§16-185-108

§16-185-109

§16-185-110

§16-185-111
§16-185-112

§16-185-113

§16-185-113.1

§16-185-114

§16-185-115

§16-185-116
§16-185-117
§16-185-118

§16-185-101 Purpose and scope. (a)

Qualifications of independent certified
public accountant

Consolidated or combined audits

Scope of audit and report of
independent certified public accountant
Notification of adverse financial
condition .

Communication of internal control
related matters noted in an audit
Accountant's letter of qualifications
Definition, availability, and
maintenance of independent certified
public accountants workpapers
Regquirements for audit committees
Internal audit function requirements
Conduct of insurer in connection with
the preparation of required reports and
documents

Management's report of internal control
over financial reporting

Exemptions and effective dates

Canadian and British companies
Severability provision

The purpose

of this-chapter is to improve the surveillance of the
financial condition of insurers by requiring the

following:

(1) An annual audit of financial statemerits
reporting the financial position and the
results of operations of insurers by
independent certified public accountants;

(2) Communication of internal control related
matters noted in an audit, and

(3) Management's report of internal control over
financial reporting.

(b} Every insurer shall be subject to this

chapter.

(c) A foreign or alien insurer filing the
following documents in another state, pursuant to that

185-2



state's requirement for filing of audited financial
reports, 1is exempt from filing those reports in this
State provided that the other state has substantially
similar requirements to sections 16-185-103 through
16-185-112, Hawaii Administrative Rules, and those
reports are filed with the commissioner of the other
state within the time specified:. ' '

(1) An audited financial report; :

(2) A communication of internal control related

matters noted in an audit; and

(3) BAn accountant's letter of qualifications.

(d) Foreign or alien insurers required to file
management.'s report of internal control over financial
reporting in another state are exempt from filing the
report in this State provided the other state has
substantially similar reporting requirements in
section 16-185-115, Hawaii Administrative Rules, and
the report is filed with the commissioner of the other
state within the time specified.

(e} This chapter shall not prohibit, preclude,
or in any way limit the commissioner from ordering,
conducting, or performing examinations of insurers
under the rules of the insurance division.

[EEE 2/04/10; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-102 Definitions. As used in this chapter:
"Accountant” or "independent certified public
accountant" means.a person or accounting firm licensed

in good standing with the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants [HAFeRAMY] and in all
states in which the accountant or independent
certified public accountant is licensed to practice.
For Canadian and British companies, these terms mean a
Canadian-chartered or British-chartered accountant.

an "affiliate"™ of, or person "affiliated" with a
specific person, is one who directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, controls or is

185-3



controlled by, or is under common contrel with the
person specified.

[fATehAl—means—the Pmericanr—Institate of—
Lerpificd Publiec essuntaris—] |

"Audit committee" means a body established by the
board of directors of an entity for the purpose of
overseeing the accounting and financial reporting
processes of an insurer or group of insurers, the -
internal audit function of an insurer or group of
insurers, if applicable, and external audits of
financial statements of the insurer or group of
insurers. The audit committee of any entity that
controls an insurer or a group of insurers may be
deemed to be the audit committee for one or more of
these controlled insurers solely for the purposes of
this chapter at the election of the controlling person
as discussed in sections 16-185-103(d} and [+&~185—
+43+4Fr]1 16-185-113(g), Hawaii Administrative Rules.
If an audit committee is not designated by the
insurer, the insurer's entire board of directors shall
constitute the audit committee.

"Audited financial report" means and includes
those items specified in section 16-185-104[~] ,
Hawaii Administrative Rules.,

"Commissioner" or "insurance commissicner” means
the Hawail i insurance commissioner, unless otherwise
specified.

"Division" or "insurance division" means the
Hawai'i insurance division. v

"Group of insurers"” means those licensed insureérs
included in the reporting requirements of Hawai’'i
Revised Statutes ("HRS"), chapter 431, article 11, or
" a set of insurers as identified by management, for the
purpose of assessing the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting.

"Indemnlflcatlon" means an agreement of 1ndemn1ty
or a release from liability where the intent or effect
1is to shift or limit in any manner the potential
liability of the person or firm for failure to adhere
to applicable auditing or professional standards,
whether or not resulting in part from knowing of other

185-4



misrepresentations made by the insurer or its
‘representatives.

"Insurer" means a licensed entity as defined in
[seetiens] section 431:1-202, HRS, and a risk '
retention captive insurance company as defined in
section 431:19-101, HRS. .

"Internal audit function" means a person oOr
persons that provide independent, objective, and
reasonable assurance designed to add value and
improvement to an organization's operations and
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic and

disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control, and
governance processes. '

"Internal control over financial reporting"” means-

a process effected by an entity's board of directors,
management, or other personnel designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the
financial statements, i.e., those items specified in
section 16-185-104(2) through (7), Hawaiil
Administrative Rules, and includes those policies and
procedures that: .

{l) Pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of
assets;

{2) Provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of the financial
statements, i.e., those items specified in
section 16-185-104 (2) through (7), Hawaii
‘Administrative Rules, and that receipts and
expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management
and directors; and ‘

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding

' prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or ‘
disposition of assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,
i.e., those items specified in section 16-

185-5



185-104(2) through (7), Hawaii
Administrative Rules.

"Material weakness" has the same meaning as
defined by the Statement on Auditing Standard 1153,
Communication of Internal Control Related Matters
~Identified in an Audit, as amended or replaced.

[ll%;p;ell FREOOFS the NEI'EH‘ OB PSSSEE'EI‘EEI'SH @f
Insurance—Commi-ssioners— .

n "

I! n
Exchange Commissiens]

"Section 404" means section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC's rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.

"Secticn 404 report" means management's report on
"internal control over financial reporting" as defined
by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission and the related attestation report of the
independent ceértified public accountant.

"SOX compliant entity" means an entity that
either is required to be compliant with or voluntarily
is compliant with all of the following provisions of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1} The preapproval requirements of section 201
(section 10A (i) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934);

(2) The audit committee independence
requirements of section 301 (section
10A{(m) (3) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934); and ’

(3) The internal control over financial

" reporting requirements of section 404 {item
308 of United States'Securities and Exchange

Commission Regulation S-K). [Eff 2/04/10; am
and comp ' ]
(Auth: ~ HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS

§§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

185-6



§16-185-103 General requirements related to
filing and extensions for filing of annual audited
financial report and audit committee appointment. {a)
All insurers required by this chapter to file an
annual audit by an independent certified public
accountant shall file an audited financial report with
the commissioner on or before June 1 for the year
ended December 31 immediately preceding. The _
commissioner may require an insurer to file an audited
financial report earlier than June 1, with ninety days
advance notice to the insurer.

(b) Extensions of the June 1 filing date may be
granted by the commissioner for thirty day periods
upon a showing by the insurer and its independent
certified public accountant of the reasons for
requesting an extension and determination by the
commissioner of good cause for an extension. The
request for extension shall be submitted in writing
not less than ten days prior to the due date and in
sufficient detail to permit the commissioner to make
an informed decision with respect to the requested
extension. :

(c) If an extension is granted in accordance
with the provisions in subsection (b), -a similar
extension of thirty days is granted to the filing of
management's report of internal control over financial
reporting.

(d) Every insurer required to file an annual
audited financial report shall designate a group of
individuals as constituting its audit committee, as

defined in section 16-185-102[+] , Hawaii
Administrative Rules. [Eff 2/04/10; am and
comp ' .1 (Auth: " HRS

' §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-104 Contents of annual audited financial
report. The annual audited financial report shall
report the financial position of the insurer as of the
end of the most recent calendar year and the results
of its operations, cash flows, and changes in capital

185-7



and surplus for the year then ended in conformity with
statutory accounting practices prescribed, or
otherwise permitted, by the insurance division. The
annual audited financial report shall include the
following: ‘

(1) A report by an independent certified public

- accountant; '

(2) A balance sheet reporting admitted assets,
liabilities, capital, and surplus;

{(3) A statement of operations;

(4) A statement of cash flow;

{(5) A statement of changes in capital and

' surplus;

{6) Notes to financial statements. These notes
shall be those required by the appropriate
[NAES] National Association of Insurance
Commissioners Annual Statement Instructions
and the [NAXES] National Association of
Insurance Commissioners Accounting Practices
and Procedures Manual. The notes shall
include a reconciliation of differences, 1if
any, between the audited statutory financial
statements and the annual statement filed
pursuant to section 431:3-302, HRS, and the
annual statement filed pursuant to section
431:3-301, HRS, with a written description
of the nature of these differences.

{(7) The financial statements included in the
audited financial report shall be prepared
in a form and using language and groupings
substantially the same as the relevant
sections of the annual statement of the
insurer filed with the commissioner, and the
financial statement shall be comparative,
presenting  -the amounts as of December 31 of
the current year and the amounts as of. the
immediately preceding December 31. In the
first year in which an insurer is required
to file an audited financial report,
however, the comparative data may be.
omitted[}]. [Eff 2/04/10; am and
comp ]

185-8



{Auth: HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS
§§431:2-201, 431:3-301, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-105 Designation of independent certified-
public accountant. (a) Each insurer required by this
chapter to file an annual audited financial report
shall within sixty days after becoming subject to this
requirement, register with the commissioner in writing
the name and address of the independent certified
public accountant or accounting firm retained to
conduct the annual audit set forth in this chapter.
Insurers not retaining an independent certified public
accountant on the effective date of this chapter shall
register the name and address of their retained
independent certified public accountant not less than
.s1x months before the date when the first audited
financial report is to be filed.

{(b) The insurer shall obtain a letter from the
accountant, and file a copy with the commissioner
stating that the accountant is aware of the provisions
of the statutes and the rules of the Hawai i insurance
division or the insurance department of the state of
domicile that relate to accounting and financial
matters and affirming that the accountant will express
his or her opinion on the financial statements in
terms of their conformity to the statutory accounting
practices prescribed or otherwise permitted by the
Hawai'i insurance division or that insurance
department, specifying such exceptions as he or she
may believe appropriate.

(c}y If an accountant, who was the accountant for
the immediately preceding filed audited financial
report, is dismissed or resigns, the insurer shall:

(1) Within five business days notify the .

commissioner of this event;

(2) Furnish the commissioner with a separate
letter, within ten business days of the
notification, stating whether in the twenty-
four months precéding such event there were
any disagreements with the former accountant

185-9



on any matter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure,
cr auditing scope cr procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to the
satisfaction of the former accountant, would
have caused him or her to make reference to
the subject matter of the disagreement in
connection with his or her opinion; :

(3) Report disagreements required to be reported
in response to this subsection including
both those resolved to the former
accountant's satisfaction and those nct
resolved to the former accountant's
satisfaction. Disagreements contemplated by
this section are those that occur at the
decision-making level, i.e., between
personnel of the insurer responsible for
presentation of its financial statements and
perscnnel of the accounting firm responsible
for rendering its report; and

(4) 1In writing, request the former accountant to
furnish a letter addressed to the insurer
stating whether the accountant agrees with
the statements contained in the insurer's
letter and, if not, stating the reasons why
that accountant does not agree. The insurer
shall furnish to the commissioner copies of
its request within five business days of
sending the request and the responsive
letter from the former accountant within
five business days after its receipt.

[Eff 2/04/10;

comp ' 1
Auth: HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS
§$§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-106 Qualifications of independent
certified public accountant. (a) The commissioner
shall not recognize a person or firm as a qualified

185-10



independent certified public accountant if the person
or firm:

(1) TIs not in good standing with the [ATERA]
American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and in all states in which the
accountant is licensed to practice or, for a
.Canadian or British company, that is not a
chartered accountant;. or = '

(2) Has either directly or indirectly entered
into an agreement of indemnity or release
from liability (collectively referred to as
indemnification) with respect to the audit
of the insurer.

{b) Except as otherwise provided in this
chapter, the commissioner shall recognize an
independent certified public accountant as qualified
as long as that person conforms to the standards of
the accounting profession, as contained in the code of
professicnal ethics of the [AFEPA] American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, [HRS] chapter 466[;—
Hawai i AdministrativeRules] , HRS, chapter 16-71,
Hawaii Administrative Rules, and the Hawai i board of
public accountancy, or similar statutes, rules, and
code of conduct regulating the practice of accountancy
in the state in which the accountant is licensed to
practice. :

(c) A gualified independent certified public
accountant may enter into an agreement with an insurer
to have disputes relating to an audit resolved by
mediation or arbitration. However, in the event of a
delinquency proceeding commenced against the insurer
under article 15, chapter 431, HRS, the mediation or
arbitration provisions shall operate at the option of
the insurer's statutory successor.

{d) (1)  The lead or coordinating audit partner
having primary responsibility for the audit
may not act in that'capacity for more than
five consecutive years. Thereafter, that
partner shall be disqualified from acting in
that or a similar capacity for the same
company or its insurance subsidiaries or
affiliates for a period of five consecutive

185-11



(e)

years. An ilnsurer may make application to
the commissioner for relief from the above
rotation requirement on the basis of unusual
circumstances. This application should be
made at least thirty days before the end of
the calendar year. The commissioner may
consider the following factors in
determining if the relief should be granted:
(A) Number of partners, expertise of the
partners, or the number of insurance
clients in the currently registered
firm;
{B) Premium volume of the insurer; or
{C) Number of jurisdictions in which the
insurer transacts business; and
The insurer shall file, with its annual
statement filing, the approval for relief
from subsection (d)(l) with the states in

“which it is licensed in or doing business

and with the [NMAFE~] National Association of

Insurance Commissioners. If the nondomestic

state accepts electronic filing with the
[MAES-] National Association of Insurance
Commissicners, the insurer shall file the

approval in an electronic format acceptable
to the [NAFSs] National Association of
Insurance Commissioners.

The commissioner shall neither recognize as

a qualified independent certified public accountant
nor accept an annual sudited financial report,
prepared in whole or in part, by a natural person who:

(1)

Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a
violation of the Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C.
sections 1961 to 1968, or any dishonest
conduct or practices under federal or state
law; :

Has been found to have violated the
insurance laws of this state; or

Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of
failing to detect or disclose material

185-12



information in previous reports filed under
the provisions of this chapter.

(£) Subject to sections 431:2-308 and 431:3-
302.5, HRS, the commissioner may hold a hearing to
determine whether an independent certified public
accountant is qualified and, considering the evidence
. presented, may rule that the accountant is not
qualified for purposes of expressing his or her
opinion on the financial statements in the annual
audited financial report made pursuant to this chapter
and require the insurer to replace the accountant with
another whose relationship with the insurer is
qualified within the meaning of this chapter.

(g) (1)

The commissioner shall not recognize as

a qualified independent certified public
accountant nor accept an annual audited
financial report, prepared in whole or in
part by an accountant who provides to -an- -
insurer, contemporaneously with the audit,
the following non-audit services:

(A)

(B)

Bookkeeping or other services related
to the accounting records or financial
statements of the insurer;

Financial information systems design
and implementation;

Appraisal or valuation services,
fairness opinions, or contribution-in
kind reports;

Actuarially-oriented advisory services
involving the determination of amounts
recorded in the financial statements.
The accountant may assist an insurer in
understanding the methods, assumptions,
and inputs used in the determination of
amounts recorded in the financial
statement, only if it is reascnable to

conclude that the services provided
'will not be subject to audit procedures

during an audit of the insurer's
financial statements. An accountant's
actuary may also issue an actuarial
opinion or certification on an

185-13



insurer's reserves if the following

conditions have been met:

(1) Neither the accountant nor the
accountant's actuary has performed
any management functions or made
any management decisions;

{ii). The insurer has competent
personnel or engages a third party
) actuary to estimate the reserves
for which management takes
responsibility; and

(iii} The accountant's actuary tests the
reasonableness of the reserves
after the insurer's management has
determined the amount of the

reserves;
(E) Internal audit outsourcing services;
{(F) Management functions or human
resources;

(G} Broker or dealer, investment adviser,
.~ or investment banking services;
(H) Legal services or expert services
unrelated to the audit; or
(I) Any other services that the
commissioner determines, by regulation,
are impermissible.

(2) In general, the principles of independence
with respect to services provided by the
qualified independent certified public
accountant are largely predicated on three
basic principles, violations of which would
impair the accountant's independence. The
principles are that the accountant:

(A) Cannot function in the role of
management;

(B) Cannot audit his or her own work; and

(C) Cannot serve in an advocacy role for
the insurer, |

(h) Insurers having direct written and assumed

premiums of less than $100,000,000 in any calendar
year may request an exemption from subsection (g} .
The insurer shall file with the commissioner a written

185-14



statement discussing the reasons why the insurer
should be exempt from these provisions. If the
commissioner finds, upon review of this statement,
that compliance with subsection (g) would constitute a
financial or organizational hardship upon the insurer,
an exemption may be granted.

(1) A qualified independent certified public
accountant who performs the audit may engage in other
non-audit services, 1nclud1ng tax services, that are
not described in or that do not conflict with
subsection (g), only if the activity is approved in
advance by the audit committee, in accordance with
subsection (j).

(j) All auditing services and non-audit services
provided to an insurer by the qualified independent
certified public accountant of the insurer shall be
preaporoved by the audit committee. 'The preapproval
requirement is waived with respect to non-audit
services if the insurer is a 30X compliant entity or a
direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a SOX
compliant entity or:

{1) The aggregate amount of all such non-audit
services provided to the insurer constitutes
not more than five per cent of the total
amount of fees paid by the insurer to its
qualified independent certified public
accountant during the fiscal year in which
the non-audit services are provided:

(2) The services were not recognized by the
-insurer at the time of the engagement to be
non—audit services; and

{3) The services are promptly brought to the
attention of the audit committee and
approved prior to the completion of the
audit by the audit committee or by one or
more members of the audit committee who are
the members of the board of directors to
whom authority to grant such approvals has
been delegated by the audit committee.

(k) The audit committee may delegate to one or

more designated members of the audit committee the
authority to grant the preapprovals required by

185-15



subsection (j). The decisions of any member to whom
this authority is delegated shall be presented to the
full audit committee at each of its scheduled
meebings.

{1) (1)The commissioner shall not recognize an
independent certified public accountant as
qualified for a particular insurer if a -
member of the board, president, chief
executive officer, controller, chief
financial officer, chief accounting officer,
or any person serving in an egquivalent
position for that insurer, was employed by
the independent certified public accountant
and participated in the audit of that
insurer during the one-year period preceding
the date that the most current statutory
opinion is due. This paragraph shall only
apply to partners and senior managers
involved in the audit. An insurer may make
application to the commissioner for relief
from the above requirement on the basis of
unusual circumstances.

(2) The insurer shall file, with its annual
statement filing, the approval for relief
from subsection (1) (1) with the states that
it is licensed in or doing business in and
the [NAFIE-] Naticnal Association of
Insurance Conmissioners., If the nondomestic
state accepls elecLronic filing with the
[NATG+] National Association of Insurance
Commissiconers, the insurer shall file the
approval in an electronic format acceptable
to the [NAEE.] National Association of

Insurance Commissioners. [Eff 2/04/10; am
and comp ' : 1
(Auth: HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS

§§431:2-201, 431:2-308, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-107 Consolidated or combined audits. An
insurer may make written applicatien to the

185-16



commissioner for approval to file audited consolidated
or combined financial statements in lieu of separate
annual audited financial statements if the insurer is
part of a group of insurance companies that utilizes a
pooling or one hundred per cent reinsurance agreement
that affects the solvency and integrity of the
insurer's reserves and the insurer cedes all of its
direct and assumed business to the pool. In such '
cases, a columnar consolldatlng or combining worksheet
shall be filed with the report, as follows:

(1) BAmounts shown on the consolidated or
combined audited financial report shall be
shown on the worksheet;

{2) Amounts for each insurer subject to this
section shall be stated separately;

{3) Noninsurance operations may be shown on the
worksheet on a combined or individual basis;

{4) Explanations of consclidating and
eliminating entries shall be included; and

(5) A reconciliation shall be included of any
differences between the amounts shown in the
individual insurer columns of the worksheet
and comparable amounts shown on the annual

statements of the insurers. [Eff 2/04/10;
comp ]
(Auth: HRS §431:2-201) {Imp: HRS

§§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-108 Scope of audit and report of
independent certified public accountant. (a)
Financial statements furnished pursuant to section 16-
185~-104 shall be examined by the independent certified
public accountant. '

(b} The audit of the insurer's financial
statements shall be conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. In accordance
with AU section 314 of the Professional Standards of
the [AFIEPAF] American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Understanding the Entity and its
Environment and Assessing the Risks of Material

185-17



[(Misstatment,] Misstatement, as amended or replaced,
the independent certified public accountant shall
obtain an understanding of internal control sufficient
to plan the audit. Tc¢ the extent required by AU 314,
for those insurers required to file a management’'s
report of internal control over financial reporting
pursuant to section i6-185-115, Hawaii Administrative
Eules, the independent certified public accountant
should consider, as that term is defined in Statement
on Auditing Standards [+4SA5+] No. 102, Defining
Professional Requirements in Statements on Auditing
Standards as amended or replaced, the most recently
available report in planning and performing the audit
of the statutory financial statements. = Consideration
shall be given to the procedures illustrated in the
Financial Condition Examiners Handbook promulgated by
the [MAFES] National Association of Insurance
Commissioners as the independent certified public

accountant deems necessary. [Eff 2/04/10; am and
comp ] {Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) {Imp: HRSS§S 431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-109 Notification of adverse financial
condition. (a) The insurer required to furnish the
annual audited financial report shall require the
independent certified public accountant to report, in
writing, within five business days to the hoard of
directors . or its audit committee, any determination by
the independent certified public accountant that the
insurer has materially misstated its financial
condition as reported to the commissioner as of the
balance sheet date currently under audit or that the
insurer does not meet the minimum capital and surplus
requiremeht of the Hawai i insurance code as of" that
date. An insurer that has received a report pursuant
to this paragraph shall forward a copy of the report
to the commissioner within five business days of
receipt of the report and shall provide the
independent certified public accountant making the
report with evidence of the report being furnished to

185-18


https://directors.or

the commissioner., TIf the independent certified public
accountant fails to receive the evidence within the
required five business day period, the independent
certified public accountant shall furnish to the
commissioner a copy of its report within the next five
business days. ,

(b} No independent certified public accountant
shall be liable in any manner to any person for any
statement made in connection with the above paragraph
if the statement is made in good faith in compliance.
with subsection (a).

{c)y Tf the accountant, subsequent to the date of
the audited financial report filed pursuant to this
chapter, becomes aware of facts that might have
affected the report, the accountant shall take
appropriate action as prescribed in volume 1, section
AU 561 of Lhe Professional Standards of the [AFSRA]
American Thstitute of Certified Public Accountants.
[Eff 2/04/10; am and
comp ‘ ] (Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-110 Communication of internal control
related matters noted in an audit. (a) In addition
to the annual audited financial report, each insurer
shall furnish the commissioner with a written -
communication as to any unremediated material
weaknesses in its internal contreol over financial
reporting noted during the audit. Such communication
shall be prepared by the accountant within sixty days
after the filing of the annual audited financial
report, and shall contain a description of any
unremediated material weakness as of December 31
immediately preceding, so as to coincide with the
audited financial report discussed in section 16-185-
103, Hawaii Administrative Rules, in the insurer's
internal control over financial reporting noted by the
accountant during the course of their audit of the
financial statements. [T ne—urnrepmedioted wateriat—
weaknesses—werenotedy—tne]| The communication should

185-19



[se—states] state if no unremediated material
weaknesses were noted. _

(b) The insurer 1s required to provide a
description of remedial actions taken or proposed to
correct unremediated material weaknesses, 1f the
actions are not described in the accountant 's
communication, [Eff 2/04/10; am and _
comp ‘ ] (Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) - (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-111 Accountant's letter of
qualifications. The accountant shall furnish the
insurer in connection with, and for inclusion in, the
filing of the annual audited financial report, a
letter stating:

{a) That the accountant is independent with
respect Lo the insurer and conforms to the standards
of the accounting profession, as contained in the code
of professional ethics of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants,. [HRS] chapter 466[+—
Howai—34 Administrative Rultes] , HRS, chapter 1l6-71,
Hawaii Administrative Rules, and the Hawai i becard of
phblic accountancy, or similar statutes, rules, and
code of conduct regulating the practice of accountancy
in the state in which the accountant is licensed to
practice;

(b) The background and experience in general,
and the experience in audits of insurers of the staff
assigned to the engagement and whether each is an
independent certified public accountant. Nething
within this chapter shall be construed as prohibiting
the accountant from utilizing such staff as he or she
deems appropriate where that use is consistent with
the standards prescribed by generally accepted
auditing standards; - ' ' .

{¢) That the accountant understands the annual
audited. financial report and his or her opinion
thereon will be filed in compliance with this chapter
and that the commissioner will be relying on this

185-20



information in the monitoring and regulation of the
financial position of insurers;

(d}Y That the accountant consents to the
~ reguirements of section 16-185-112 and consents and
agrees to make available for review by the |
commissioner, or the commissioner's designee or
appointed agent, the workpapers as defined in section
16-185-112{+} , Hawalii Administrative Rules;

(e} A representation that the accountant is
properly licensed by an appropriate state licensing
authority and is a member in good standing in the
[AIE6PA+] American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and '

(f) A representation that the accountant is in
compliance with the requirements of section 16-185-
106[=] , Hawaii Administrative Rules. [Eff 2/04/10; am
and comp ] {Auth:
HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §8431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

$16-185-112 Definition, availability, and
maintenance of independent certified public
accountants workpapers. (a) Workpapers are the records
kept by the independent certified public accountant of
the procedures followed, the tests performed, the
information obtained, and the conclusions reached
pertinent to the accountant's audit of the financial
statements of an insurer. Accordingly, workpapers may
include audit planning documentation, work programs,
analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation and
representation, abstracts of company documents and
schedules, or commentaries prepared or obtained by the
independent certified public accountant in the course
of his or her audit of the financial statements of an
insurer and which support the accountant's epinion.

(b} Every insurer required to file an audited
financial report pursuant to this chapter, shall
require the accountant to make available for review by
insurance division examiners, all workpapers prepared
in the conduct of the accountant's audit and any
communications related to the audit between the

185-21



accountant and the insurer, at the offices of the
insurer, at the insurance division or at any other
reasonable place designated by the commissioner. The
insurer shall require that the accountant retain the
audit workpapers and communications until the
insurance division has filed a report on examination
covering the period of the audit but no longer than
seven years from the date of the audit report. '
(c}) In the conduct of the aforementioned
periodic review by the insurance- division examiners,
it shall be agreed that photocopies of pertinent audit
workpapers may be made and retained by the division.
Such reviews by the division examiners shall be
considered investigations and all working papers and
communications obtained during the course of such
investigations shall be afforded the same
confidentiality as other examination workpapers
generated by the division, [Eff 2/04/10;
comp ' 1 (Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-113 Regquirements for audit committees.
(a) This section shall not apply to foreign or alien
insurers licensed in this State or an insurer that is
a SO0X compliant entity or a direct or indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of a SOX compliant entity.

(b) The audit committee shall be directly
responsible for the appointment, compensation, and
oversight of the work of any accountant, including
resolution of disagreements between management and the
accountant regarding financial reporting, for the
purpose of preparing or issuing the audited financial
report or related work pursuant to this chapter. Each
accountant shall report directly to the audit
committee. _

(¢} Beginning January 1, 2020, the audit
committee of an insurer or group of insurers shall be
responsible for overseeing the insurer's internal
audit function and granting the person or persons
performing the function suitable authority and

185-22



resources to fulfill their responsibilities if
required by section 16-185-113.1, Hawaii
Administrative Rules. ‘

[+e+] (d) Each member of the audit committee
shall be a member of the board of directors of the
insurer or a member of the board of directors of an
entlty elected pursuant to subsection [+5—] (g).

[+-] (e) 1In order to be considered .independent
for purposes of this section, a member of the audit
committee may not, other than in his or her capacity
as a member of the audit committee, the board of
directors, or any other board committee, accept any
consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee from
the entity or be an affiliated person of the entity or
any subsidiary thereof. However, if law requires
board participation by otherwise non-independent
members, that law shall prevail and such members may
participate in the audit committee and be designated
as independent for audit committee purposes, unless
they are an officer or employee of the insurer or one
of its affiliates. ’

[te+] (f) If a member of the audit committee
ceases to be independent for reasons outside the
member's reasonable control, that person, w1th notice
by the responsible entity to the commissioner, may
remain an audit committee member of the responsible
entity until the earlier of the next annual meeting of
the responsible entity or one year from the occurrence
of the event that caused the member to be no longer
independent. In determining independence, the
‘commissioner shall consider utilizing guidance
provided in the [8B€'5] Securities and Exchange
Commission's Final Rule No. 33-8220, Standards
‘Relating to Listed Company Audit Committees adopted
April 9, 2003, as amended or replaced.

(48] {g) To exercise the election of the
controlling person to designate the audit
committee for purposes of this chapter, the
ultimate controlling person shall provide
written notice to the commissioners of the
affected insurers. Notification shall be
made timely prior to the issuance of the

185-23



statutory audit report and include a
description of the basis for the election.
The election can be changed through notice
to the commissioner by‘the insurer, which
shall include a description of the basis for
the change. The election shall remain in
effect for perpetuity, until

rescinded. [4e5] (h) (1) The audit

committee shall require the accountant, who

performs. for an insurer any audit requiréd
by this. chapter, to timely report to the
audit committee in accordance with the
requirements of [SAS] Statement on Auditing

Standards 114, The Auditor's Communication

with those charged with Governance, as

amended or replaced, including:

(A) All significant accounting policies and
material permitted practices;

(B) All material alternative treatments of
financial infeormation within statultory
accounting principles that have been
discussed with management officials of
the insurer, ramifications of the use
of the alternative disclosures and
treatments, and the treatment preferred
by the accountant; and(C) Other
material written communications between
the accountant and the management of
the insurer, such as any management
letter or schedule of unadjusted
differences. - '

If an insurer is a member of ‘an insurance

holding company system, the reports required

by subsection [+g+4++] (h) (1) may be
provided to the audit committee on an’

- aggregate basis for insurers in the holding

company system, provided that any
substantial differences among insurers in
the system are identified to the audit
committee. '

185-24



[ (3]

(i) (1)

The proportion of independent

audit committee members shall meet or exceed
the following criteria:

Prior Calendar Year Direct Written and Assumed

Premiums

'$0 - $300,000,000

Over $300,000,000

Over $500,000,000

~$500,000,000
No minimum Majority (50% or Supermajority of
requirements. more) of members members {75% or
See alsc shall be more) shall be
paragraphs independent. See independent. See
[H23+] (i) (2} also paragraphs alsc paragraph
and [4H3++]) (23] (i) (2) [~ (1) (2).
(i) (3} . and [th—3+—+]

(1) (3).

'Y The commissioner has authority afforded by
state law to require the entity's board to
enact improvements to the independence of
the audit committee membership if the '

insurer is in a
action level event,
standards of

[RBE]

risk-based capital

meets one or more of the
an insurer deemed to be in

hazardous financial condition, or otherwise
exhibits qualities of a troubled insurer.

All insurers with less than $500,000,000 in

prior year direct written and assumed
premiums are encouraged to structure their
audit committees with at least a
supermajority of independent audit committee

members.

Pricr calendar year direct written and

assumed premiums shall be the combined total
of direct premiums and assumed premiums from
non-affiliates for the reporting entities.

(-] (3)

assumed premium,

An insurer with direct written and
excluding premiums reinsured . with the

Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and Federal Flood

Program,

less than $500,000,000 may make application

to the commissioner for a wailver from the section 16—

185-113,

Hawali Administrative Rules,

185-25

requirements




based upon hardship. The insurer shall file, with its
annual statement filing, the approval for relief from
section 16-185-113, Hawaiil Administrative Rules, with
the states that it is licensed in or doing business in
and the [NATE+) National Association of Insurance
Commissioners. If the nondomestic state accepts
electronic filing with the [NAXC+] Natienal

" Association of Insurance Commissioners, the insurer
shall file the approval in an electronic format
acceptable to the [NAEES] National Association of
Insurance Commissioners. [Eff 2/04/10; am and

comp ] {Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-113.1 Internal audit function
requirements. (a) The insurer or group of insurers
shall establish an internal audit function providing
independent, objective, and reasonable assurance to the

audit committee and insurer management regarding the
insurer's governance, risk management, and internal
controls. This assurance shall be provided by
performing general and specific audits, reviews, and
tests and by employing other techniques deemed
necessary to protect assets, evaluate control
effectiveness and efficiency, and evaluate compliance
with polic¢ies and regulations.

{b} In order to ensure that internal auditors
remain objective, the internal audit function must be
organizationally independent. Specifically, the
internal audit function will not defer ultimate
judgement on audit matters to others, and shall"

_ appoint an individual to head the internal audit
function who will have direct and unrestricted access
to the board of directors. COrganizational
independence does not preclude dual-reporting
relationships. ' ‘

(c) The head of the internal audit function
shall report to the audit committee regularly, but no
less than annually, on the periodic audit plan,
factors that may adversely impact the internal audit

185-26



function's independence or effectiveness, material
findings from completed audits, and the
appropriateness of corrective actions implemented by
management as a result of audit findings. '

{d) If an insurer is a member of an insurance
"holding company system cor included in a group ocf
insurers, the insurer may satisfy the internal audit:
function requirements set forth in this section at the-
ultimate controlling parent level, an intermediate
holding company level, or the individual legal entity
level. ' ‘ _
(e) An insurer is exempt from the requirements
of this section if:

(1) The insurer has annual direct written and
unaffiliated assumed premium, including
internaticnal direct and assumed premium but
excluding premiums reinsured with the
Federal Crop Insurance Corporaticn and
Federal Flcod Program, less than

~ $500,000,000; and

(2) If the insurer is a member of a group of
insurers that has annual direct written and
unaffiliated assumed premium including
international direct and assumed premium,
but excluding premiums reinsured with the
Federal Corp Insurance Corporation and
Federal Flood Program, less than
$1,000,000,000.

[Eff ] {Auth:
HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: -HRS §§431:2-201,
431:3-302.5) ' i

§16-185-114 Conduct of insurer in connection with-
the preparation of required reports and documents. (a)
No director or officer of an insurer shall, directly
or indirectly: ‘ :
(1) Make or cause to be made a materially false
‘ or misleading statement to an accountant in
connection with any audit, review, or

185-27



communication required under this chapter;
or

(2) Omit to state, or cause another person to
omit to state, any material fact necessary,
in light of the circumstances under which
"the statements were made, so as to mislead
an accountant in connection with any audit,
‘review, or communication required under Lhis
chapter.

{b) No officer or director of an insurer, or any
other person acting under the direction thereof, shall
directly or indirectly take any action to coerce,
manipulate, mislead, or fraudulently influence any
accountant engaged in the performance of an audit
pursuant to this chapter- if that person knew or should
have known that the action, if successful, could
result in rendering the insurer's financial statements
materially misleading.

{(c) - For purposes of subsection (b), actions
that, "if successful, could result in rendering the
instrer's financial statements materially misleading”
include, but are not limited to, actions taken at any
time with respect to the professional engagement
period to coerce, manipulate, mislead, or fraudulently
influence an accountant:

(1) To issue or reissue a report on an insurer's
financial statements that is not warranted
in the circumstances due to material
viclations of statutory accounting
principles prescribed by the commissiocner,
generally accepted auditing standards, or
other professicnal or regulatory standards;

(2). Not to perform audit, review, or other
procedures required by -generally accepted
auditing standards or other professional

standards;
(3) ° Not to withdraw an issued reporbl; or _
(4) Not to communicate matters to an insurer's
audit committee. [Eff 2/04/10;
comp . ]
{Auth: HRS §431:2-201) (Imp: BHERS

§§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

185-28



§16-185-115 Management's report of internal
control over fimancial reporting. {a} Every insurer
required to file an audited financial report that has
annual direct written‘and-assumed premiums, excluding
premiums reinsured with the-Federal Crop Insurance
Corporation and Federal Flood Program, of $500,000,000
or more shall prepare a report of the insurer's or
group of insurers' internal control over financial
reporting, as these terms are defined in section 16-
185-102[~] , Hawaii Administrative Rules. The report
shall be filed with the commissioner along with the
communication of internal control related matters
noted in an audit described under section 16-185-
110[+] , Hawaii Administrative Rules. Management's
report of internal control over financial reporting
shall be as of the December 31 immediately preceding.

(b) Notwithstanding the premium threshold in
subsection (a) the commissioner may require an insurer
to file management's report of internal control over
financial reporting if the insurer is in any risk-
based capital level event, as defined in [¥RS] section
431:3-401, HRS, or meets any one or more of the
standards of an insurer deemed to be in hazardous
financial condition as defined in [HRS] section
431:15-103.5[+] , HRS.

(c}) An insurer or a group of insurers that is:

(1) Directly subject to section 404; ‘

(2) Part of a holding company system whose

parent is-directly subject to section 404;

(3) Not directly ‘subject to section 404 but is a

SOX compliant entity; or '
(4) A member of a holding company system whose
parent is not directly subject to section
404 but is a SOX compliant entity may file
its or its parent's section 404 report and
an addendum in satisfaction of this
section's requirement provided that those
internal controls of the insurer or group of
insurers having a material impact on the

185-29



(d)
financial
(1)

(2)

preparation of the insurer's or group of
insurers' audited statutory financial
statements, those items included in section
16-185-104{2) through (7), Hawaii
Administrative Rules, were included in the
scope of the section 404 report. The
addendum shall be a positive statement by
management that there are no material
processes with respect to the preparation of
the insurer's or group of insurers' audited
statutory financial statements excluded from
the section 404 report. If there are
internal controls of the insurer or group of
insurers that have a material impact on the
preparation of the insurer's or group of
insurers' audited statutory financial
statements and those internal controls were
not included in the scope of the section 404
report, the insurer or group of insurers may
either file a report required by this
section, or the section 404 report and this
section's report for those internal controls
that have a material impact on the
preparation of the insurer's or group of
insurers' auditeéed statutory financial
statements not covered by the section 404
report. .
Management's report of internal contrel over
reporting shall include:

A statement that management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting;

A statement that management has established
internal contrdl over finarncial repeorting
and an assertion, to the best of
management's knowledge and belief, after
diligent inquiry, as to whether its internal
control over financial reporting is ‘
effective to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial
statements in accordance with statutory
accounting principles; '

185-30



(3) A statement that briefly describes the
approach or processes by which management
evaluated the effectiveness of its internal
control over financial reporting;

{4) . A statement that briefly describes the scope
of work that is included and whether any

. internal controls were excluded;
{5) Disclosure of any unremediated material
‘ weaknesses in the internal contrél over '

financial reporting identified by management
as of the December 31 immediately preceding.
Management is not permitted to conclude that
the internal control over financial
reporting is effective to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of
financial statements in accordance with
statutory accounting principles if there is
one or more unremediated material weaknesses
in its internal control over financial
reporting; .

(6) A statement regarding the inherent
limitations of internal control systems; and

(7) Signatures of the chief executive officer
and the chief financial officer or
equivalent position or title.

{e) Management shall document and make available
upon financial condition examination the basis upon
which its assertions required, in subsecticon (d), are
made. Management may base its assertions, in part,
upon its review, monitoring, and testing of internal
controls undertaken in the normal course of its
activities. Additionally:

(1) Management shall have discretion as to the
nature 'of the internal control framework
used, and the nature and extent of
documentation, in order to make its
.assertion in a cost effective manner and, as
such, may include assembly of or reference
to existing documentation; and - -

(2) Management's report on internal control over
financial reporting, required by subsection
{a} and any documentation provided in

185-31



support thereof during the course of a
financial condition examination, shall be
kept confidential by the insurance division.
[Eff 2/04/10; am and

comp : o
{(Auth: HRS §431:2-201). (Imp: HRS
§§$431:2-201, 431:32-302.5, 431:3-401, 431:15-
103.5)

$16-185-116 Exemptions and effective dates. (a)

Upon written application cof any insurer, the
commissioner may grant an exemption from compliance
with any or all provisions of this chapter if the
commissioner finds, upon review of the applicaticn,
that compliance with this chapter would constitute a
financial or organizational hardship upon the insurer.
An .exempticn may be granted at any time and from time
to time for a specified period or periods. Within ten
days from a denial of an insurer's written request for
an exemption from this chapter, the insurer may
request in writing a hearing on 1ts application for an
exemption. The hearing shall be held in accordance
with section 431:2-308, HRS.

(b) Domestic insurers retaining a certified
public accountant on the effective date of this
chapter who qualify as independent shall comply with
this chapter for the year ending December 31, Z201C
and each year thereafter unless the commissioner
permits otherwise. .

(c) Domestic insurers noct retaining a certified
" public accountant who qualifies as independent on the
effdctive date of this chapter may meet the following
schedule for compliance unless the commissioner
permits otherwise: N

(1) As of December 31, 201( file with the

commissioner an audited financial report;
and

(2) For the year ending December 31, 201C and

each year thereafter, such insurers snall

185-32



file with the commissioner all reports and
communication reguired by this chapter.

{(d) Foreign insurers shall comply with this
chapter for the year ending December 31, 2010, and
each year thereafter, unless the commissioner permits
otherwise. '

(e) The requirements of section 16-185-106{d),
Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall be in effect for
audits of the year beginning January 1, 201C and
thereafter. ,

(f) The requirements of section 16-185-113,
Hawaii Administrative Rules, are to be in effect
January 1, 2010. An insurer or group of insurers that
is not required to have independent audit committee
memkers or only a majority of independent audit
committee members, as opposed to a super majority,
because the total written and assumed premium is below
the threshold and subsequently becomes subject to one
of the independence requirements due to changes in
premium, shall have one year following the year the
threshold is exceeded, but not earlier than January 1,
2010, or the effective date of this section, whichever
is later, to comply with the independence
requirements. Likewise, an insurer that becomes
subject to one of the independence requirements as a
result of a business combinaticn shall have one
calendar year following the date of acquisition or
combination to comply with the independence
requirements.

[4g)—Seettens] {(g) (1) Except for risk

retention captive insurers, sections 16-185-101
through [%%8——exeep%—4%&%{%%%&@ﬁ~%6—&85—%&8—] 112, and
sections 16-185-114 through 118, shall be effective
beginning with the reporting peried ending '
December 31, 2010,.-and each year thereafter; [execept—
that—sections]

(2) Sections 16-18:5-101 through [%&8—] 112, and
sections 16-185-114 through 16-185-118, Hawaii
Administrative Rules, shall be effective for risk
retention captive insurers beginning with the
reporting period ending December 31, 2011, and each
year thereafter.

185-33



{3) Section 16-185-113.1, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, shall be effective January 1, 2020. TIf an
insurer or a group of insurers that is exempt from the

section 16-185-113.1, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
requirements no longer gqualifies for that exemption,
it shall have one year after the year threshold is
exXceeded to comply with the requirements of this
chapter. [Eff 2/04/10; am and

comp ' 1 {(Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:2-308, 431:3-
302.5) : :

§16-185-117 Canadian and British companies. (a)
In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the
annual audited financial report shall be defined as
the annual statement of total business on the form
filed by such companies with their supervision
authority duly audited by an independent chartered
accountant. '

{b) TFor such insurers, the letter required in
section 16-185-105(b), Hawaii Administrative Rules,
shall state that the accountant is aware of the
requirements relating to the annual audited financial
report filed with the commissioner pursuant to section
16-185-103, Hawaii Administrative Rules, and shall
affirm that the opinion expressed is in conformity
with those requirements. [Eff 2/04/10; ‘
comp ] {(Ruth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

§16-185-118 Severability provision. If any
section or portion of a section of this chapter or its
applicability to any person or circumstance is held
invalid by a court, the remainder of the chapter or
the applicability of the provision to any other person
‘or circumstance shall not be affected." [Eff 2/04/10;
comp ] (Auth: HRS
§431:2-201) (Imp: HRS §§431:2-201, 431:3-302.5)

185-34



185-35



2. Material, except source nctes and other notes, to
be repealed is bracketed and stricken. HNew
material is underscored.

3. Additions to update source notes and other notes to
reflect these amendments and compilations are not
underscored,

4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 16-

- 185, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take effect
ten days after filing with the Office of the
Lieutenant Governor.

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the
rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the
requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaili Revised Statutes,
which were adopted _
on ' and filed with the
Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

CATHERINE P. AWAKUNI COLON
Department cof Commerce and Consumer
Affairs

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Attorney General

185-36



~ IV. New Business — Before Public Hea.ring': o

* D.Discussion and Action on Proposed
Améndments to HAR Title 11, Chapter 186,
Certificate of Need Program, promulgated by
DOH



PRE-PUBLIC HEARING SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT
TO THE

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201M-2)
Date: 4/10/2019

Department or Agency: State Health Planning and Development Agency

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: Title 11 Chapter 186

Chapter Name: Certificate of Need Program

Contact Person/Title: Romala Sue Radcliffe Administrator

E-mail: romala.radcliffe@doh. hawaii.gov Phone: 808-587-0786

A.

To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS 892-7, please attach
a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved.

Are the draft rules available for viewing in person and on the Lieutenant Governor’'s Website
pursuant to HRS §92-7?

Yes D No

If “Yes,” provide details:

I. Rule Description:

New Repeal [ | Amendment [] |Compilation

II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business?
[ Yes No

(If “No,” no need to submit this form.)

* “Affect small business” is defined as “any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . . . that will cause a
direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion
of a small business.” HRS §201M-1

* “Small business” is defined as a “for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole
proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned
and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part- time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1

lll. I1s the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that
does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the
statute or ordinance?

Yes |:| No

(If “Yes” no need to submit this form. E.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the
agency thediscretion to consider less restrictive alternatives. HRS §201M-2(d))

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HrRs §201M-2(a))
Yes [1{No

(If “Yes” no need to submit this form.)

* * *

RECEIVED

Revised 09/28/2018 By JetaimeA at 6:14 am, Apr 11, 2019



JetaimeA
Received


Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement — Page 2

If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above,
please provide a reasonable determination of the following:

1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the proposed rules
and how they may be adversely affected.
Health care small businesses will be required to comply with the proposed rule
amendments. It is not anticipated that these businesses will be adversely affected

as there are no new fees or new regulatory burdens associated with the rule
amendments.

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect
costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional
services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance.

None

If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee or fine:

a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased.
No new or increased fees or fines are proposed in the amendment.

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase.

c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine.

d. Criteria or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee or fine (i.e.,
Consumer Price Index, Inflation rate, etc.).

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected,
including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally
imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used.

As a result of the deletion of the minor standard categories of services in the
amendment, the Agency may see a decrease in overall certificate of need application
fees which are deposited into its special fund, however, this potential decease would
be nominal as there are few applications which are associated with the minor
categories of services being deleted. The proposed rule amendments will not result in
any monetary costs or benefits to any other agency.

Revised 09/28/2018



Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement — Page 3

4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business
such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements,
less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than
design standards, exemption, or other mitigating techniques.

The proposed rule amendments reduce the impact on small business by eliminating the
one-year deadline for small businesses to complete their project, making letters of intent
permissive rather than mandatory, by deleting minor standard categories of services, by
updating terminology and resolving inconsistencies between the rules and statutes which
have arisen as a result of changes that have been made to those statutes.

5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules.

There are no practical less restrictive alternatives available that could be implemented in lieu
of the proposed amendments.

6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small
businesses. The businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or
directly benefit from the proposed rules.
The elimination of the one-year deadline for small businesses to complete their project and
making letters of intent permissive rather than mandatory will provide more flexibility for
small businesses in complying with the rules.

7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules.

As there are no new fees or new regulatory burdens associated with the proposed
amendments, the Agency did not meet/consult with small businesses in the development of
the rule amendments.

a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the
recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If no,
why not.

Revised 09/28/2018



Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement — Page 4

8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those
mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an
explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard.

There are no amendments proposed that are more stringent than those mandated by
any comparable or related federal, state, or county standard.

If yes, please provide information comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rules to
the costs and benefits of the comparable federal, state, or county law, including the following:

a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule.

b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information about
the purposes and applicability of the law.

c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or
county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and
administration.

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with the
costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, or
county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any additional fees
from the proposed rule will be used.

€. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the
proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or county
law.

* * *

Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT
Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov
This Statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: http:/dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small- business-impact-statements

Revised 09/28/2018


http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small-business-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov

RECEIVED

By JetaimeA at 6:19 am, Apr 11, 2019

Statement of the Topic of the Proposed Rules

The proposed rule amendment revises the State Health Planning and Development Agency’s
Certificate of Need program’s rules. The Certificate of Need program is established pursuant to
Chapter 323D, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS). The purpose of Chapter 323D, HRS is to
establish a health planning and resources development program to promote accessibility for all
the people of the State to quality health care services at reasonable cost.


JetaimeA
Received


RECEIVED

By JetaimeA at 6:16 am, Apr 11, 2019

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 11-186
Hawaii Administrative Rules

2019

1. Chapter 11-186, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
entitled "Certificate of Need Program", is amended and
compiled to read as follows:

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

TITLE 11

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

STATE HEALTH PLANNING AND DEVELCPMENT AGENCY

CHAPTER 186

CERTIFICATE OF NEED PROGRAM

Subchapter 1 General Provisions

11-186-1 Scope

11-186-2 Construction of rules

11-186-3 Definitions

11-186-4 Total capital expenditure

11-186-5 Standard categories of health care services

11-186-6 Change of health care service requiring a
certificate of need

11-186-7 Change of beds requiring a certificate of
need

77,1 Wh W W th h

Subchapter 2 Consolidation for Review

186-1


JetaimeA
Received


W U W W U Y W W W W

W W W W W W W @ Kh ) W Y ) W 1 W WY 1 W W L Y

11-186-10

Subchapter 3

11-186-15
11-186-16

Subchapter 4

11-186-20
11-186-21
11-186-22
11-186-23
11-186-24
11-186-25
11-186-26
11-186-27
11-186-28
11-186-29
11-186-30

Deadlines for filing and completion of
applications

Criteria for Agency Reviews

Criteria
Repealed

Letters of intent

Technical assistance

Filing of application
Application forms

When to file application
Filing fee for application
Number of copies filed

File number assigned to application
Separate applications
Completed application required
Determination of completeness

Subchapter 5 Review Procedures

11-186-35
11-186-36
11-186-37
11-186-38
11-186-39
11-186-40
11-186-41
11-186-42
11-186-43
11-186-44
11-186-45

11-186-45.

11-186-46
11-186-47
11-186-48
11-186-49
11-186-50
11-186-51
11-186-52
11-186-53
11-186-54
11-186-55

Written notification to persons
Review schedule

Length of review period

Date of notification

Method of notification

Additional copies

Extension of review period

Burden of proof

Order for review

Staff review and reports

Review of completed standard application
1 Joint review

Location of meetings

Right to attend public meeting
Appearances

Review panel quorum

Record of votes

Conflicts of interest

Repealed

Repealed

Request for additional information
Technical advisory committees and experts

186-2

Filing and Completion of Applications



W G W ) G U h L v it hhthh b i &

ih W ¥ th

11-186-56
11-186-57
11-186-58
11-186-59
11-186-60

Subchapter 6

11-186-70
11-186-71
11-186-72
11-186-73
11-186-74
11-186-75
11-186-76
11-186-77

Subchapter 7

11-186-82
11-186-83
11-186-84
11-186-85
11-186-86
11-186-87
11-186-88
11-186-89
11-186-90
11-186-91

Subchapter 8

11-186-96
11-186-97
11-186-98
11-186-99

11-186-99.

Notification of status
Amendment to application
Prohibited conduct
Dismissal without prejudice
Withdrawal of application

Decision and Findings

Decision on the merits

Failure to act within the required time

Repealed

Repealed

Terms of issuance
Increase in project cost
Statement of reasons
Conditional certification

Post-Decision Procedures

Request for reconsideration

Repealed

Repealed

Prohibition on transfers

Effect of decision on future proposal
Periodic monitoring

Agency's right to inspect

Periodic reports

Repealed

Withdrawal of certificate of need

Emergency Situation

Repealed

Repealed

Repealed

Emergency situation

1 Administrative review of certain
proposals

Subchapter 9 Miscellaneous Provisions

11-186-120
11-186-125

Repealed
Severability

186-3



§11-186-1

Historical Note: Chapter 186 of Title 11,
Administrative Rules, is based substantially upon the
Certificate of Need Rules of the State Health Planning
and Development Agency, State of Hawaii.

[Eff. 3/4/78; R]

SUBCHAPTER 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 11-186-1 Scope. The rules in this chapter
govern procedure before the state health planning and
development agency, the statewide health coordinating
council, the review panel, the reconsideration
committee, the countywide review committee, and the
subarea health planning councils. The rules in this
chapter are adopted by the State pursuant to chapter
323D, Hawaii Revised Statutes, to carry out the
provisions of chapter 323D, Hawaii Revised Statutes
relating to the administration of the certificate of
need program by the state health planning and
development agency. ({Eff. 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; comp

]  (ARuth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-12)

§ 11-186-2 Construction of rules. The rules in
this chapter shall be liberally construed to promote
mandatory planning for health care facilities and
health care services in the State, in order to promote
accessibility for all the people of the State to
quality health care services at reasonable cost and to
promote the development of health delivery systems that
meet the people's health care needs. [Eff. 2/9/81l; am
1/21/88; comp 1 (Ruth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-1)

§ 11-186-3 Definitions. Whenever used in this
chapter and in proceedings brought under this chapter,
unless the context requires otherwise:

186-4



§11-186-3

[h 2 1] . . .
. _i&e;;isn S?£°isesli“5idﬂa o EFEEaEiE“ ?513
fobos—]

"Acute" bed services [refer—te] means those
inpatient services provided to patients whose average
length of stay is usually less than thirty days.

"Acute/long term swing bed" services [refer—te]
means those acute or long term services which are
provided through beds which have been designated to
serve either acute or long term inpatients.

"Acute psychiatric" services means twenty-four-
hour inpatient acute care services for mentally
disordered patients whose length of stay is usually
less than thirty days.

"Administrator" means the administrator of the
state health planning and development agency as
established in section 323D-11, HRS.

"Agency" means the state health planning and
development agency as established in section 323D-11,
HRS.

Is—eapabier]

"Applicant" means any person who applies to the
agency for a certlflcate of need
éaeé%fEy——ae—deé*ﬁed—&ﬁ—see%feﬁ—%}—ga—ék—]

"Burn center"” services means intensive care
services staffed by specially trained personnel for
acute therapeutic, supportive, and rehabilitative care,
including preparation for extensive grafting, for
severely burned patients.

"Cardiac catheterization" means a special
diagnostic procedure that is used to examine and
evaluate the heart and the blood vessels which function
to bring blood to, or away from, the heart. Cardiac
catheterization includes left or right heart
catheterization, angiography, and coronary
arteriography.
see%te&—%%-%y}é}d

"Children's orthopedic" services means long-term
therapeutic and restorative services to children with
orthopedic problems.

"Chronic renal dialysis" services means services

186-5



§11-186-3

for the treatment of irreversible kidney failure
involving the removal of waste substance from a
patient's blood by hemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis.

o "

e e e e e el

"Comprehensive outpatient rehabilitation facility
({CORF) "™ means a comprehensive outpatient rehabilitation
facility as defined in 42 Code of Federal Regulations
section 485.51.

"Computed tomography"” services include diagnostic
procedures involving computer analysis of a series of
x-ray scans of the head or body resulting in the
construction of an image.

"Countywide review committee" means a countywide
review committee established pursuant to section 11-
186-45.

"Critical care" services means those services
which provide maximum observation and support of vital
functions and definitive therapy for patients with
acute but reversible life-threatening impairments of
single or multiple vital organ systems.

"Diagnostic radiology" services means services for
the detection of physical disease and other ili-health
conditions through the use of radiant energy including
x-rays, cine fluorography, ventriculography and
angiocardiology.

["Efilg rebabbdidd-bationt servicos—mMoans—seriioes—Eo

= I I Lied 11ied
Sdrggs e restore the porson to the fuslast pRysiests
: : 1

"Emergency room" services means services provided
in a designated unit within a hospital for the
immediate treatment of injury and other types of health
emergencies.

"Expenditure minimum for capital expenditures"
means $4,000,000 for capital expenditures, $1,000,000
for new or replacement medical equipment and $400,000
for used medical egquipment.

"Extracorporeal shock wave lithotripsy (ESWL)"
means a non-invasive procedure by which renal and
ureteral calculi are pulverized using electrohydraulic
shock waves.

186-6



§11-186-3

"Freestanding emergency care facility" means an
establishment, place or facility structurally distinct
and separate from a hospital which represents itself
either through advertising or name as providing
emergency medical care services in life, limb, or
function threatening conditions beyond the occasional
emergency that occurs in the normal course of any
clinical practice.

"Hansen's disease" services means therapeutic,
supportive and restorative services for patients with
Hansen's disease requiring long-term inpatient
services.

"Health care provider" means an individual who is
a direct provider of health care (including a
physician, dentist, nurse, podiatrist, optometrist,
physician assistant, or ancillary personnel employed
under the supervision of a physician} in that the
individual's primary current activity is the provision
of health care to individuals or the administration of
facilities or institutions (including hospitals, long-
term care facilities, rehabilitation facilities,
alcohol and drug abuse treatment facilities, cutpatient
facilities, and health maintenance organizations) in
which such care is provided and, when required by State
law, the individual has received professional training
in the provision of such care or in such administration
and is licensed or certified for such provision cr
administration.

"Heart surgery” means a surgical procedure
requiring the circulation of the blood by a heart lung
machine while the heart or surrounding blood vessels
are repaired.

[ " 3 4= a " 3 1
N Hel&;sgcaf FEE aq%aiagse SEEVEEES S
Sranspertation Ef a—patient—inahy helicoptes
5F35i£iiai%3 eqrippei‘an? epEﬁaEeﬁ ésf.Ehs ??EEEEE =

"Home health agency" means a "home health agency"

186-7



§11-186-3

as defined in 42 Code of Federal Regulations section
[465—3203=] 440.70(d).

"Hospice™ means hospice services as defined in 42
Code of Federal Regulations section 418.3.

"Intermediate care facility” (ICF) means [2] an
"[geprerad] intermediate care facility" as defined in
[42—Fh—5440-150+) section 11-94-2, HAR.

[“Ertermediate—eare—faoil ity far the-—mentally
J e L T R Tl e e e B e R
fer—thementally returded as defined 442 S FR—5
446-3564e+]) "Intermediate care facility for
individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID)"™
means an intermediate care facility for individuals
with intellectual disabilities as defined in 42 Code of
Federal Regulations section 440.150(a).

"Long term" bed care services [sefes—ts] means
those inpatient services provided to patients who are
chronically ill, aged, disabled, or [setarded]
intellectually disabled and whose average length of
stay is usually thirty days or more.

"Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI)'" means a
diagnostic imaging technique that employs magnetic and
radio~frequency fields to image body tissues and
monitor body chemistry noninvasively.

"Medical/surgical" services include those
inpatient diagnostic and treatment services utilizing
medical or operative procedures

[" 3 = 1]

"Neonatal intensive care" services [refoer—ie]
means the provision of care for newborns who require
prolonged respiratory support, continuous
cardiopulmonary support, intravencus therapy, major
surgery, or treatment for infections.

"Neurosurgery" means surgery of any part of the
nervous system.

"Nuclear medicine" services means the services of
a medical specialty that uses radionuclides {(elements
which give off an emanation which is detectable by

186-8



§11-186-3

various instruments) for diagnosis and treatment.

"Obstetric" services means those services for the
care of women during pregnancy, childbirth, and after
delivery, including prenatal care, labor, delivery, and
postpartum care.

["Qutpata’ent aldindel ooruioanmaong E!EgEFH'ZEd Aop

; ) .
SREFgenTy f55°i555 fe§ 2o d*a%“iS*s s A =
hospitalizations]

"OQutpatient surgery (surgicenter)" services means
services provided to treat a medical condition by
surgery in an outpatient or ambulatory surgical center
where the patient is not kept overnight.

"Pediatric" services means those inpatient
services for the diagnosis and treatment of diseases
and conditions of children.

[" 11 1

Eha;maey eahs iEEaE?Eﬂ ”??fe drugs—are
BHEegRT AR remern—]

"Psychiatric” services means services for the
diagnosis and treatment of mental illness or mental
disorder in persons.

"Radiation therapy" services [imrelude] means
services for the treatment of physical conditions or
illness, primarily cancer, through the use of external
ionizing radiation.

[tRecompression—<cernter—sorvices meons Services ok

relatod—ddserdors—)

"Reconsideration committee” means the
reconsideration committee as established in section
323D-47, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Rehabilitation" services means inpatient services
to restore the ill or disabled person to achieve the
fullest physical, mental, social, vocational, and
economic usefulness of which the person is capable.

"Review panel"” means the review panel established
pursuant to chapter 323D, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Skilled nursing facility” (SNF) means a "skilled
nursing facility" as defined in [42&-FR—S5440-406-]
section 11-94-2, HAR.

[ 11} . s 11 3

. iSee&a} 59?’*555 Ffa“ §£E§?am5'§25°??96 Ei] :

186-9



§11-186-3

et ST dhesd bl bR pibeboemms S Sk Do B
patient'ls—seeial functionrand—well—being-]

"Special treatment facility™ means a "special
treatment facility" as defined in section 11-98-02,
HAR.

"~ "State health services and facilities plan
(SHSFP)" means the state health services and facilities
plan established pursuant to [emaptesr—323B;] section
323D-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Statewide council" means the statewide health
coordinating council established pursuant to [shapter
2230+] section 323D-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Subarea" means a geographical area designated by
the agency pursuant to [ehaptesr—323B+] section 323D-2,
Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Subarea council" means a subarea health planning
council established pursuant to [ekeptesr—=23B+] section
323D-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Surface ambulance" services [imelude] means
transportation of a patient in any motor vehicle or
watercraft specifically equipped, designed or
constructed, and maintained or operated for the purpose
of accommodating the medical needs of patients.

"Transplant surgery" services [+metude] means
services for the transplantation of an organ from one
person to another person.

"Tuberculosis" services means therapeutic and
supportive services for patients with tuberculosis who
require long-term inpatient care.

[‘Hbrasound! Serviees moaRs Servtors e vt
W—&Eﬁéﬂﬁﬁt&—ﬁﬁ—&&&ﬁ%ﬂ&%—fﬁeﬁtm
: 1y 20,065 ; i i
-] [(Eff. 2/9/81; am 7/1/82; am 1/21/88; am

1/21/88; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-4 Total capital expenditure. (a) For
purposes of computing the amount of the total capital
expenditure:

(1) The total cost of all items to be obligated
for or purchased within a twelve month period
for a program, service, plan, or project,
regardless of whether or not the cost of any
individual item is in excess of the

186-10



(2)

(3)

(4)

{5)

(b)

§11-186-4

expenditure minimum, is included in the
computation;

The cost of equipment which is not used for
diagnosis or treatment, and which does not
exceed the expenditure minimum for a single
item or for a system, such as office
equipment, usual business equipment, and
office and waiting room furniture, is exempt
from the computation;

The cost of normal inventories of supplies
such as glassware, chemicals, drugs, linens,
and paper, is exempt from the computation;

In the case of the acquisition of equipment
or capital items, the cost of installaticn
and the cost of initial training and
instruction attendants to the use of the
equipment or capital items are included in
the computation; and

In the case of the acquisition of equipment
or capital items, the operating costs beyond
the cost of installation and the cost of
initial training and instruction attendant to
the use of the equipment or capital items are
exempt from the computation.

An obligation for a capital expenditure shall

be deemed to have been incurred by or on behalf of a
health care facility or health maintenance
organization:

(1)

(3)

(c)

When an enforceable contract is entered into
by the facility or organization or by a
person proposing the capital expenditure on
behalf of the facility or organization for
the construction, acquisition, lease, or
financing of a capital asset; or

Upon the formal internal commitment of fund
by the facility or organization for a force
account expenditure which constitutes a
capital expenditure; or

In the case of donated property, the date on
which the gift vested.

Studies, surveys, plans, schematic designs,

and preliminary designs for a project shall not require
a certificate of need unless or until their total cost
for the project exceeds the expenditure minimum for
capital expenditures.

(d)
of cost,

Final designs or working drawings, regardless

shall require a certificate of need if the

186-11



§11-186-4

facility being designed may result in a total capital
expenditure in excess of the expenditure minimum for
capital expenditures.

(e} If a single project or the substantial
equivalent of a single project is divided into separate
components, so that the project or any component does
not require a total capital expenditure in excess of
the exXpenditure minimum, the agency may combine the
components for purposes of computing the amount of the
total capital expenditure and may treat the combined
components as a single project. ([Eff. 2/9/81; comp

] (RAuth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-43)

§ 11-186-5 Standard categories of health care
services. The standard categories of health care
services are:

{1} Acute Bed Services

(A) Medical/Surgical

(B) Obstetrics

(C) Pediatrics

{D) Neonatal Intensive Care

(E) Critical Care

(F) Psychiatric

(G) Acute/long term swing
(2} Long Term Bed Services

(A) Psychiatric

(B) Tuberculosis

B T s e e e

[—B-]1 (C) Hansen's Disease
(&) (D) Children's Orthopedics
(=] (E) Rehabilitation
-1 (F) SNF
(-1 (G) ICF
[——] (H) SNF/ICF
[—o—] (I) [FeF/MR] ICE/IID
(] (J) Special Treatment Facility
[ e e

(3) Non-Bed Services
[ e |
(B8] (A) Emergency Room
[+e-] (B) Outpatient Surgery

(Surgicenter)

{(+B+] (C) Diagnostic Radiology

186-12



§11-186-6

[+&+] (D) Computed Tomography Stationary
[+FF]) (E)} Computed Tomography Mobile
[4&—] (F) Nuclear Medicine
[HH— Bl eraseund
H——Cliadeal—Ttaberatery
+3H—Pharmaey
Ho—FSesiagt—Services
=] (G) Home Health Agency
(M —DPrugRehabilitation
() Alcohol Rehabils .
(5) R . -
+P——>Mental—Health Center
: . ST
) S E*a”?*?g Saicas
E:? ;rena;ai g?gn%s
+£]  (H) Surface Ambulance
[+ ——Fixed-WingAisAmbulance
el ieanfes Pdse Rombulosec
“HH—Birthing—-center]
(-] (I) Extracorporeal Shock Wave
Lithotripsy (ESWL)
(=] (J) Magnetic Resonance Imaging
(MRI) Stationary
[+&+] (K) Magnetic Resonance Imaging
{MRI) Mobile
[A&&F] (L) Freestanding Emergency Care
Facility
(+BB+] (M) Comprehensive Qutpatient
Rehabilitation Facility
(4) Special Services
(A) Chronic Renal Dialysis
(B) Cardiac Catheterization
(C) Burn Center
(D) Neurosurgery
(E) Heart Surgery
(F) Transplant Surgery
(G) Radiation Therapy
(H) Hospice |[Eff. 2/9/81; am 7/1/82; am
1/21/88; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §

323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-43)

§ 11-186-6 Change of health care service
requiring a certificate of need. {a2) The addition or
deletion of any standard category of health care

186-13



§11-186-6

service listed in section 11-186-5 is a change of
service that requires a certificate of need. If a
health care facility proposes the addition or deletion
of a health care service that is not clearly included
in one of the standard categories, the agency shall
determine whether or not the change is a change of
service that requires a certificate of need.

{b) Any change of location of a health service is
a change of service that requires a certificate of need
unless the agency determines in writing that the change
of location does not significantly affect the delivery
of service to the target group. In making this
determination, the agency shall consider:

{1) The distance from the old location to the new

location;

(2) The accessibility and acceptability of the

new location to the target group; and

{3} Any other factors that the agency deems

relevant to an informed determinaticn.

{c) The addition or deletion of a mobile service
shall require one certificate of need only.

(d) The termination of services by a provider of
health care services that is ceasing its entire
operation shall not require a certificate of need. A
provider of health care services that is ceasing its
entire operation shall provide written notice to the
agency at least ten days before the termination of
services, [Eff., 2/9/81; comp ] (Auth:
HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-43)

§ 11-186-7 Change of beds requiring a certificate
of need. (a) Each standard bed service category is
listed in section 11-186-5(1) and (2). The addition or
deletion of any bed service category requires a
certificate of need. The increase or decrease in the
number of beds in any bed service category reqguires a
certificate of need. The relocation of beds from one
physical facility or site to another physical facility
or site requires a certificate of need.

(b} Any increase or decrease in the number of
beds in any standard bed service category does not
require a certificate of need if it is a temporary
change that does not exceed ninety days. [Eff. 2/9/81;
am and comp ] (Buth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:

186-14



§11-186-10

HRS § 323D-43)

SUBCHAPTER 2

CONSOLIDATION FOR REVIEW

§ 11-186-10 Deadlines for filing and completion
of applications. (a) For purposes of consolidating
for review completed applications that are or may be
mutually exclusive or that present conflicting claims,
the agency shall require that an application for a
certificate of need pertaining to any of the following
health care services, health care facilities, or
equipment affecting the same health service area be
filed and completed by the applicant on or before the
folleowing deadlines:

(1) Acute bed services involving new
construction: the agency's first business
day in January, May and September.

(2} Long term bed services involving new
construction: the agency's first business
day in March, July and November.

{3} Computed tomography, Magnetic resonance
imaging and extracorporeal shock wave
lithotripsy: the agency's first business day
in February, April, June, 3August, October and
December,

{b) In the event that the agency determines that
the same application pertains to two or more paragraphs
of subsection (a), the agency shall determine the
paragraph to which the application substantially
belengs and the agency shall assign the application to
that paragraph.

(¢) Each paragraph of subsection (a) has three or
more deadlines. Each deadline is the beginning of a
review cycle for agency review of the applications
pertaining to the same paragraph. The Agency shall
consolidate for review in a review cycle those
applications pertaining to the same paragraph that are
filed and completed on or before an applicable
deadline. If an application is not filed and completed
on or before an applicable deadline, the agency shall
not begin the agency review of the application until

186-15



§11-186-10

the next applicable review cycle after the application
is filed and completed.

(d) Notwithstanding anything in this section to
the contrary, this section shall not apply to an
application for a certificate of need that satisfies
the requirements of section 323D-45.3, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, for required approval or to an emergency
application for a certificate of need filed pursuant to
section 11-186-99,

(e) Notwithstanding anything in this section to
the contrary, this section shall not apply to an
application for a certificate of need from any acute
inpatient facility located outside the island of Oahu,
[Eff. 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; comp ] (Auth:
HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §§ 323D-44, 323D-45,3)

SUBCHAPTER 3

CRITERIA FOR AGENCY REVIEWS

§ 11-186-15 Criteria. fa) The agency shall
consider the following criteria in the review of an
application for a certificate of need:

(1) The need that the population served or to be
served has for the services proposed to be
offered or expanded, and the extent to which
all residents of the area, and in particular
low income persons, racial and ethnic
minorities, women, [kandicapped-pessonss]
persons with disabilities and other
underserved groups, and the elderly, are
likely to have access to those services;

{2} In the case of reduction or eliminaticn of a
service, including the relocation of a
facility or service:

(A) The need that the population presently
served has for the service;
(B) The extent to which that need will be

met adequately by the proposed
relocation or by alternative
arrangements; and

(C) The effect of the reduction,
elimination, or relocation of the

186-16



§11-186-16

service on the ability of low income
persons, racial and ethnic mincrities,
women, [kandicapped—persenss] persons
with disabilities, and other
underserved groups, and the elderly,
to obtain needed health care;

The probable impact of the propesal on the

(4)

overall costs of health services to the

community;
The probable impact of the proposal on the

(5)

costs of and charges for providing health
services by the applicant;
The immediate and long term financial

(6)

feasibility of the proposal;
The applicant's compliance with federal and

{7}

state licensure and certification
requirements;
The quality of the health care services

(8)

proposed;
In the case of existing health services or

(9)

facilities, the quality of care provided by
those facilities in the past;
The relationship of the proposal toc the state

(10}

health services and facilities plan;
The relationship of the proposal to the

(11}

existing health care system of the area;
The availability of less costly or more

(12)

effective alternative methods of providing
service;
The availability of resources (including

health personnel, management personnel, and
funds for capital and operating needs) for
the provision of the services proposed to be
provided and the need for alternative uses of
these resources as identified by the state
health services and facilities plan. [Eff.
2/9/81; am 1/21/88; am and comp

] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:

HRS § 323D-43)

§ 11-186-16 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]

186-17



§11-186-20

SUBCHAPTER 4

FILING AND COMPLETION OF APPLICATIONS

§ 11-186-20 Letters of intent. Any person
proposing a project that requires a certificate of need
[shadd] may file a letter of intent with the agency at
the earliest possible opportunity. The letter of
intent shall describe the propocsed project in such
detail as may be necessary to inform the agency of the
nature and scope of the proposed project. The letter
of intent shall include a description of the proposed
project, its estimated cost, its location, and its
estimated schedule. The agency may require the person
proposing the project to file additional information
about the project with the agency as the information
becomes avalilable during the course of planning for the
project. A letter of intent and any information filed
with the agency in acccrdance with this section shall
not constitute an application for a certificate of
need., [Eff. 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; am and comp

] Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §§
323D-12, 323D-52)

§ 11-186-21 Technical assistance. The agency
shall provide technical assistance to the applicant in
the preparation and filing of the application. [Eff.
2/9/81; comp ]  (Ruth: HRS § 323D-

62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-22 Filing of application. The applicant
for a certificate of need shall file an application
with the agency. The application shall be filed on the
form prescribed and furnished by the agency. The
agency shall not accept for filing any application that
is not submitted on the correct form. If the agency
inadvertently accepts for filing an application that is
not submitted on the correct form, the agency shall
return the application to the applicant and require the
applicant to submit the application on the correct
form, [Eff, 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; comp |

186-18



§11-186-25

(Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-23 Application forms. The application
form prescribed by the agency may vary according to the
type of project proposed. The agency may revise or
amend the application forms from time to time. An
application form may require the applicant to provide
any information that is reascnably necessary for an
informed review of the application, and the applicant
shall provide the information in the form and manner
that the agency may prescribe. The agency may require
the application to provide supporting documentation for
the information submitted in the application. [EfE.
2/9/81; comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-24 When to file application. The
applicant may file the application at any time during
the year, provided that if the agency has established a
deadline for the application pursuant to section 11-
186-10, then the applicant shall file and complete the
application on or before the applicable deadline.

[Eff. 2/9/81; comp ] (Ruth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323b-12)

§ 11-186-25 Filing fee for application. (a) There
shall be a non-refundable filing fee for each
application which shall be the sum of $200 plus .001 of
the [feta}] capital [ecest—efthepreoiecst] expenditure
as defined in section 323D-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes
up to $1,000,000 plus .0005 of the [+etail-cost—ef +the
proeject] capital expenditure as defined in section
323D-2, Hawail Revised Statutes in excess of
$1,000,000.

(b} The applicant shall pay the filing fee when
the application is filed and the agency shall accept an
application only when such application is accompanied
by the filing fee paid in full, [Eff. 2/9/91; am
5/27/00; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

186-19



§11-186-26

§ 11-186-26 Number of copies filed. Unless the
agency directs otherwise, the applicant shall file with
the agency the original and [&kixty] two copies of the
application. 1In the case of a standard application
which has been determined to be complete pursuant to
section 11-186-30, HAR, the applicant shall mail copies
of the application to members of the reviewing bodies
including the subarea health planning council or the
countywide review committee, the review panel and the
statewide council. The agency shall provide the
applicant with the names and mailing addresses of the

members of the reviewing bodies. (Eff. 2/9/81; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62}) (Imp: HRS
§ 323D-12)

§ 11-186-27 File number assigned to application.

For administrative purposes, the agency shall assign a
file number to each application that is filed with the
agency. The file number shall indicate the year of the
filing and the order of filing within the year. The
agency shall not assign the same file number to any
other application. A file number shall not be
transferred from one application to any other
application, [Eff. 2/9/81; comp ] (Auth:
HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-28 Separate applications. When the same
applicant has more than one proposal, the agency may
direct the applicant to file a separate application for
each proposal if the agency determines that separate
consideration of the proposals may assist the agency in
reaching an informed decision on the merits of each
proposal. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp
(Auth: HRS § 323D-62) {Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-29 Completed application required. The
agency requires a completed application for review. The
filing of the application with the agency does not by

186-20



§11-186-35

itself mean that the application is complete. [Eff.
2/9/81; comp ] {(Auth: HRS § 323D-
62) {Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-30 Determination of completeness.

{a} An application is complete when the agency
determines that the application is properly filled out
and includes all necessary information.

{b) The agency shall determine if the application is
complete within thirty days after the application is
filed. 1If the application is incomplete, the agency
shall notify the applicant of the actions or additional
information required to complete the application. The
applicant shall have sixty days in which to complete
the application. The sixty days shall be computed from
the date when the agency provides notification to the
applicant.

{c) If the applicant fails to complete the
application within the sixty days, the agency [shail]
may dismiss the application without prejudice pursuant
to section 11-186-59, [Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp

] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) {Imp: HRS §
323D-12)

SUBCHAPTER 5

REVIEW PROCEDURES

$ 11-186-35 Written notification to [affeeted]
persons.

(a) When the agency determines that the
application is complete, the agency shall provide
written notification of the beginning of the period for
the agency review of the applicaticn to [affeeted
peesens] the applicant and to any person who has asked
the agency to place the person's name on a mailing list
maintained by the agency. The written notification
shall include the review schedule for the application.

(b} This section shall not apply to any emergency
application for a certificate of need pursuant to
section 11-186-99. This section shall not apply to an

186-21



§11-186-35

application for a certificate of need for which the
agency has established a deadline pursuant to section
11-186-10, until the beginning of the next applicable
review cycle after the application is filed and
completed. ([Eff. 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; am and comp

1 {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS
§ 323D-44)

§ 11-186-36 Review schedule. The agency shall
prepare a review schedule for the application. The
review schedule shall list the dates, times, and
locations of the public meetings at which the
appropriate subarea council or countywide review
committee, the review panel, and the statewide council
shall review the application. The review schedule is
subject to later revision upon notice to [affeekted
pessers] the applicant and to any person who has asked
the agency to place the person's name on a mailing list
maintained by the agency. [Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp

]  (Ruth: HRS § 323D-62) {Imp: HRS §

323D-44)

§$ 11-186-37 Length of review period. To the
extent practicable, the period for agency review of the
application shall not exceed ninety days from the date
of notification to the date when the agency files its
decision on the merits of the application. The agsncy
may extend the period for agency review beyond the
ninety days as provided in section 11-186-41. [Eff.
2/9/81; comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:

HRS § 323D-44)

§ 11-186-38B Date of notification. The date of
notification is the date on which the agency mails
written notification of the beginning of the period for
agency review of the application to the applicant
pursuant to section 11-186-39 or the date on which the
written notification appears in a newspaper of general
circulation pursuant to section 11-186-39, whichever
date is later. The period for agency review shall

186-22



§11-186-41

begin on the date of notification. [Eff. 2/9/81l; comp
| (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-44)

§ 11-186-39 Method of notification. The agency
shall provide written notification of the beginning of
the period for agency review of the application to
members of the public and third party payers through a
newspaper of general circulation in the State. At its
discretion, the agency may provide written notification
through [theagerey!ls newstetter—e#] additional public
information channels. The agency shall provide written
notification to the applicant by mail. [Eff. 2/9/81;
am 1/21/88; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-44)

§ 11-186-40 Additional copies. If the
application is completed after it is filed, the agency
may direct the applicant to provide the agency with
thirty copies of the additional information required to
complete the application or, if the additional
information resulted in extensive revisions, additions,
or deletions to the application, the agency may direct
the applicant to provide the agency with thirty copies
of the completed application. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp

]  (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-12)

§ 11-186-41 Extension of review period. {a} The
agency may extend the period for agency review of the
application for an additional sixty days beyond the
ninety days if the agency determines that it would not
be practicable to complete the review within ninety
days. If the review period is extended, the agency
shall notify the applicant in writing during the ninety
days. The notification shall include a statement of
the reason or reasons for the extension.

{(b) The agency shall extend the period for agency
review fifteen days at the request of the applicant if,
during the period for agency review of the application,

186-23



§11-186-41

the agency requests the applicant to provide additional
information respecting the subject of the review
pursuant to section 11-186-54, If the review period is
extended, the agency shall notify the applicant in
writing. The extension shall apply to all other
applications which have been consolidated for review
with the application for which additional information
is required. In that event, the agency shall notify
the other applicants in writing of the extension.

(c} The agency may extend the period for agency
review for a length of time eguivalent to the length of
time during which the period for agency review of the
application did not run pursuant to section 11-186-59.

If the review period is extended, the agency shall
notify the applicant in writing.

(d) The agency may extend the period for agency
review 1f the agency and the applicant agree in writing
to the extension and the length of the extension.

[Eff. 2/9/81; am 1/21/88; comp ] (Auth:
HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS 323D-44)

§ 11-186-42 Burden of proof. The applicant for a
certificate of need | = :
£ £ ieamants] shall have the burden
of proof, including the burden of producing evidence
and the burden of persuasion. The degree or quantum of
proof shall be a preponderance of the evidence. [Eff.
2/9/81; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-43 Order for review. To the extent
practicable, each application shall be reviewed in the
order in which the agency determined that the
application was complete. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp

] {Ruth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-12)

§ 11-186-44 staff review and reports. The agency
staff shall review the file of each application filed

186-24



§11-186-45

with the agency. The agency staff may prepare one or
more written staff reports on the application. A staff
report may include an analysis of the application,
identification of issues and a discussion of their
relationship to the applicable criteria for a
certificate of need [er—arexemptien,] and any staff
recommendations on the application. 1In the case of
applications consolidated for review, a staff report
may include a comparative analysis of the applications,
identification of issues and a discussion of their
relationships to the applicable criteria for a
certificate of need, and any staff recommendations of
the applications. The staff report shall be made a
part of the file of the application. The staff report
shall be provided to the applicant, any other persons
upon written request, any subarea council or countywide
review committee that reviews the application, and to
the review panel and the statewide council if the
review panel and the statewide council review the
application. The agency staff may participate in any
public meeting or public hearing held on any
application. [Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp 1
(Auth: HRS Sec 323D-62 ) (Imp: HRS Sec 323D-12)

§ 11-186-45 Review of completed standard
application. (a) The agency shall refer a completed
application other than an emergency application [er—an
apptiecation—fer—ar—erempEion] o the appropriate
subarea council or countywide review committee, the
review panel, and the statewide council for review and
recommendations.

(b) The agency shall determine the primary target
group for the proposal. Prior to the determination,
the agency may consult with the chairperson of any
subarea council or the chairperson of any countywide
review committee.

(1) TIf the agency determines that the
application's primary target group is the
population of one subarea, the application
shall be referred to the subarea council for
that subarea.

(2) If the agency determines that the
application's primary target group is the
population of two or more subareas in a

186-25



§11-186-45

(3}

(c)

county, the application shall be referred to
a countywide review committee consisting of
two members from each subarea council in the
county to be appointed by the subarea
council.

If the agency determines that the
application's primary target group is the
entire population of the State, the
application shall be referred to each subarea
council in the State.

As far as practicable, the application shall

be reviewed in the following order:

(1)

(3)

(d)
countywide

The appropriate subarea council or countywide
review committee shall review the application
at one or more public meetings called for the
purpose and shall submit any recommendations
to the review panel, the statewide council,
and the agency.

The review panel shall review the application
at one or more public meetings called for the
purpose and shall submit any recommendations
to the statewide council and the agency.

The statewide council shall review the
application at one or more public meetings
called for the purpose and shall submit any
recommendations to the agency.
Recommendations of the subarea council, the
review committee, the review panel, or the

statewide council shall be submitted to the agency at
least seven days before the pericd for agency review of
the application expires.

(e)
countywide

Recommendations of the subarea council, the
review committee, the review panel, or the

statewide council are not binding on the agency. [Eff.
2/9/81; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §

323D-62)

§ 11-
council or

(Imp: HRS §§ 323D-44, 323D-45)

186~45.1 Joint Review. (a} The subarea
the countywide review committee may join

together with the review panel for a joint review of a
certificate of need application.

(b)

The review panel and the statewide council

may join together for a joint review of a certificate
of need application. [Eff. 1/21/88; comp

186-26



§11-186-438

| {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: SLH
1987, Act 270, § 2)

§ 11-186~46 Location of meetings. (a) The
statewide council, [ard] the review panel and the
reconsideration committee may meet and exercise their
powers in any part of the State.

(b) A countywide review committee may meet and
exercise its powers in any part of the county.

(c) Each subarea council may meet and exercise
its power in its geographical area. [Eff. 2/9/81; am
and comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-45)

§ 11-186-47 Right to attend public meeting. Each
meeting of the statewide council, the review panel, a
countywide review committee, or a subarea council shall
be open to the public unless the meeting is closed to
the public pursuant to chapter 92, Hawail Revised
Statutes. Any orderly person shall have the right to
attend a meeting open to the public; provided that any
person who {[wittfudly] wilfully disrupts a meeting to
prevent and compromise the conduct of the meeting shall
be removed from the meeting. [Eff. 2/9/81; am and
comp ] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:
HRS § 323D-45)

§ 11-186-48 Appearances. In any proceeding
before the statewide council, the review panel, a
countywide review committee, [e+] a subarea council, or
the reconsideration committee, any person may appear
(#a—his—er—hexr] on their own behalf or the person may
appear by or with an attorney or another person
designated as a representative., 1If a person is
represented by an attorney, the attorney shall be
licensed to practice law by the Supreme Court of
Hawaii. The statewide council, the review panel, a
countywide review committee, f[e#] a subarea council, or

the reconsideration committee may at any time require
any person who is appearing in a representative

186-27



§11-186-48

capacity to show [Bis—er—Hhes] their authority to act in
that capacity. [Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp
] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §

323D-45)

§ 11-186-49 Review panel quorum. A guorum for
the review panel to transact business shall ceonsist of
a majority of the number of members to which the review
panel is entitled. While a quorum is in attendance,
the concurrence of a majority of the members in
attendance shall make any action of the review panel
valid. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp ] (Buth:
HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §§ 323D-42, HRS 323D-45)

§ 11-186-50 Record of votes. An accurate record
of votes and actions taken at any statewide council,
review panel, countywide review committee, or subarea
council public meeting shall be set forth in the
minutes of the meeting. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp

] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) {Imp: HRS
§ 323D-45)

§ 11-186-51 Conflicts of interest. (a) No member
of a subarea council, a countywide review committee,
the review panel, or the statewide council shall vote
on any matter respecting an applicant with which the
member, the member's spouse, the member's child, or the
member's parent has (or within the twelve months
preceding the vote, had) any substantial ownership,
directorship, officership, employment, prospective
employment for which negotiations have begun, medical
staff, fiduciary, contractual, creditor, debtor, or
consultative relationship.

(b) If such a relationship exists or has existed,
the member shall make a written or oral disclosure of
the relationship before any action is taken with
respect to the applicant by the subarea council,
countywide review committee, review panel, or statewide
council, to which the member belongs and the member
shall make the relationship public in any meeting in

186-28



§11-186-55

which action is to be taken with respect to the
applicant.

(c} Where any other conflict of interest exists,
a member of a subarea council, countywide review
committee, review panel, or statewide council shall be
disqualified from voting in the review of an
application. The provisions of chapter 84, Hawaii
Revised Statutes, and the decisions, advisory opinions,
and informal advisory opinions of the state ethics
commission shall serve as guidelines in determining
whether a conflict of interest exists. [Eff. 2/9/81;
am and comp ] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-45)

§ 11-186-52 Repealed. (R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-53 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-54 Request for additional information.
At any time during the period for agency review of the
application, the agency may request the applicant to
provide additional information respecting the subject
of the review. If the agency does make such a request,
the applicant shall have fifteen days in which to
provide the information to the agency, and the period
for agency review shall, at the request of the
applicant, be extended fifteen days. This extension
shall apply to all other applications which have been
consolidated for review with the application for which
additional information is requested. If the applicant
fails to provide the additicnal information to the
agency within the fifteen days, the agency may dismiss
the application without prejudice pursuant to section
11-186-59. [Eff., 2/9/81; comp ]
(Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-55 Technical advisory committees and
experts. The agency may call upon technical advisory

186-29



§11-186-55

committees and individuals who have special expertise
to provide technical assistance in the review of an
application.  [Eff. 2/9//81; comp ]
(Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-56 Notification of status. Upon
request, the agency shall provide information about the
status of the agency's review and other appropriate
information about the review to the applicant and
members of the public. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp

| (Buth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS
§ 323D-12)

$ 11-186-57 Amendment to application. (a) The
applicant may amend the application. The applicant
shall file the amendment in writing with the agency
along with any other information which the agency may
require.

(b) Pursuant to section 11-186-59, the agency may
dismiss the application without prejudice if the agency
determines that the amendment is a material change in
the application, that the amendment necessitates major
revisions to the application, and that there is
insufficient time remaining in the period for agency
review for the agency to make an informed decision on
the merits of the application as amended. [Eff.
2/9/81; comp ]  (Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
{(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-58 Prohibited conduct. (a) No perseon
shall influence or attempt to influence or attempt to
influence action on any application by fraud,
misrepresentation, or corruption.

{b) No person shall submit or cause to be
submitted false statements or information in connection
with any application.

(c} No person shall disrupt or interfere with the
fair and orderly review of any application.

(d}y If any person viclates any subsection of this
section, the agency may take appropriate action to

186-30



§11-186-59

protect the public interest, including, but not limited
to, issuing a verbal or written warning to the person,
excluding the person from any public meeting or public
hearing on the applicaticn, denying any request made by
the person in connection with the application, or
dismissing without prejudice any application of the
person pursuant to section 11-186-59. [Eff. 2/9/81;
comp ] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:
HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-59 Dismissal without prejudice. (a)
Without reaching a decision on the merits of the
application, the agency may dismiss the application for
any of the following reasons:

(1) Failure of the applicant to complete the

application within the time prescribed in
section 11-186-30;

(2) Failure of the applicant to pursue the
application;

{3) Failure of the applicant to respond to
written agency correspondence addressed to
the applicant;

(4) Failure of the applicant to provide any
additional information requested by the
agency within the time prescribed in section
11-186-54;

{5) An amendment to the applicant, if the
amendment meets the criteria prescribed in
section 11-186-57; or

(6) Prohibited conduct by the applicant pursuant
to section 11-186-58.

(b) Before dismissing the application, the agency
shall provide the applicant with written notice and an
opportunity of ten days in which to respond, during
which the period for agency review of the application
shall not run.

(c) If the agency dismisses the application, the
agency shall explain in the record the reason or
reasons for the dismissal and shall furnish the
applicant with a copy of the explanation.

(d} Except as provided in section 11-186-10,
dismissal of an application for any of the reasons in
subsection (a) of this section shall be without
prejudice to the applicant's right to refile the

186-31



§11-186-59

application or to file an amended application. [Eff.
2/9/81; comp ] {(Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-60 Withdrawal of application. The
applicant has the right to withdraw the application at
any time before the agency files a written decision on
the merits of the application or before the agency
dismisses the application without prejudice. [EfE.
2/9/81; comp ] {(Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

SUBCHAPTER 6

DECISION AND FINDINGS

§ 11-186-70 Decision on the merits.

(a) Unless the application for a certificate of need
has been withdrawn or dismissed, the agency shall file
a decision on the merits of the application within the
required time. The decision shall be in writing and

shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law.

{b) On the date that the agency files its
decision, the agency shall send the decision to the
applicant by certified mail, return receipt requested,
and deliver to addressee only. The agency shall send
or make available the decision te any other person upon
the person's written request.

(c) The decision on the merits of an application,
other than an emergency application for a certificate
of need, is not a final decision of the agency when it
is filed. The decision shall become final after there
is an opportunity for any person to request a public
hearing for reconsideration of the decision pursuant to
section 11-186-82.

(d) When the agency sends or makes available the
decision to any person, a written notice shall
accompany the decision. The written notice shall state
that the decision is not a2 final decision of the agency
when it is filed; that any person may request a public
hearing for reconsideration of the decision pursuant to

186-32



§11-186-75

section 11-186-82; that the decision shall become final
if no person makes a timely request for a public
hearing for a reconsideration of the decision; that if
there is a timely request for a public hearing for
reconsideration of the decision and after the agency's
final action on the reconsideration, the decision shall
become final. [Eff. 2/9/81; am 7/1/82; am 1/21/88;
comp ] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:
HRS § 323D-44)

§ 11-186-71 Failure to act within the required

time. A certificate of need (e arexemptionfrem
eertificate of need reguirements] shall not be issued

or denied solely because the agency failed to file a
decision within the required time. ([Eff. 2/9/81; am
and comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-72 Repealed. ([R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-73 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-74 Terms of issuance. If a certificate

of need [ef—aﬂ—e*emp%teﬁ—éfemﬂeeftiéiea%e—eé—ﬁeed
reguirements] is issued, the certificate of need [ee

he-exemption] shall specify terms of issuance,
including a description of the nature and the extent of
the activity or activities authorized by the
certificate of need [exr—theexemptien]. [(Eff. 2/9/81;
am and comp ] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

$§ 11-186-75 Increase in project cost. {a) In
issuing a certificate of need [er—anexemptien], the

agency shall specify in writing the maximum capital
expenditure that may be obligated under the certificate

186-33



§11-186-75

of need [er—erxemption].

(b} Any increase in the cost of the approved
project that exceeds or may exceed the maximum capital
expenditure by fifteen per cent or by the expenditure
minimum shall require the agency's prior written
approval or, if the agency directs, an additional
certificate of need [er—exemption]. [(Eff. 2/9/81; am
and comp ] (ARuth: HRS § 323D-62)
{Imp: HRS § 323D-43)

5 11-186-76 Statement of reasons. (a) If the
agency's final decision on a certificate of need is
inconsistent with a recommendation, the agency shall
send to the subarea ccouncil, the countywide review
committee, the review panel, or the statewide council
that made the recommendation a written explanation for
the inconsistency.

(b) If the agency's final decision is
incensistent with the goals of the state health plan
[ el LMy e i) ; il
the agency shall send a written explanation for the
inconsistency to the subarea council or countywide
review committee that reviewed the application, the
review panel, and the statewide council. [Eff. 2/9/81;
am and comp ] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62)
(Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

$ 11-186-77 Conditional certification. At its
discretion, the agency may issue a conditional
certification to an application which, by modification
of specific items of the application, may successfully
meet the criteria for the issuance of a certificate of
need. The agency shall not make the decision subject
to any condition unless the condition directly relates
to criteria established by law. The agency shall
notify the applicant in writing of the modifications
required and of the time period within which the
modifications are to be made. The agency shall
establish a time period not to exceed one hundred fifty
days from the date of the conditional certification
within which the applicant shall certify in writing to
the agency that the required modifications to the

186-34



§11-186-82

application have been made. The agency shall deny any
application in which the required modifications have
not been made within the time period established by the
agency. [Eff. 2/9/81l; comp 1 (Ruth:
HRS § 323D-46) (Imp: HRS § 323D-46)

SUBCHAPTER 7

POST-DECISION PROCEDURES

§ 11-186-82 Request for reconsideration. (2) Any
person may, for good cause shown, request in writing a
public hearing before a reconsideration committee for
reconsideration of the agency's decision on the merits
filed in section 11-186-70. The request shall be in
writing and shall include a statement of the nature of
the person's interest and a statement of the reasons
why the person believes that good cause exists for a
public hearing for reconsideration of the decision.
The request shall be filed with the committee within
[Ehiety] ten working days [aftex] of the decision [&5
£ited]. The committee shall deny any request for a
public hearing for reconsideration that is not timely
filed, that fails to show good cause for a public
hearing for reconsideration, or that is frivelous.

(b) A request for a public hearing shall be
deemed by the committee to have shown good cause, if:

(1) It presents significant relevant information
not previously considered by the agency
which, with reasonable diligence, could not
have been presented before the agency made
its decision;

(2) It demonstrates that there have been
significant changes in factors or
circumstances relied upon by the agency in
reaching its decision;

(3} It demonstrates that the agency has
materially failed to follow the agency's
rules in reaching its decision;

(4) It provides any other basis for a public
hearing which the agency determines
constitutes good cause; or

186-35



§11-186-82

(5) The decision of the administrator differs
from the recommendation of the statewide
council.

(c) 1If the request for a public hearing for
reconsideration is denied, the committee shall file a
written explanation for the denial and shall send it to
the person who made the request by certified mail,
return receipt requested, and deliver to addressee
only. The explanation shall include a written notice
stating that:

(1) The denial is the agency's final action on

the reconsideration; and

(2) The decision which was sought to be
reconsidered is the final decision of the
agency.

(d) If good cause has been shown to exist, the
committee shall schedule a public hearing for
reconsideration of the decision. To the extent
practicable, the public hearing shall be held within
thirty days after [the—reguest—is—filed—withthe
eeommi-ttee] good cause has been shown to exist. Prior
to the hearing, the agency shall provide written notice
of the hearing to the person who made the request, the
parties to the hearing, and to any other perscns upon
written request. The committee shall file a decision
on the reconsideration within forty-five days after the
conclusion of the hearing. The committee shall send
the decision to the parties to the hearing and the
person who requested the hearing by certified mail,
return receipt requested, and deliver to addressee
only. The committee shall send the decision to any
other persons upon written request. A written notice
shall accompany the decision. The written notice shall
state that:

(1} The decision is the agency's final action on

the reconsideration; and

{2} The decision is the final decision of the
agency.

{e} The number of members necessary to constitute

a quorum to do business shall consist of a majority of
all members. When a guorum is in attendance, the
concurrence of the majority of the members in
attendance shall make any action of the committee
valid. [Eff. 2/9/81l; am 7/1/82; am 1/21/88 1988; am
and comp ]  (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:
HRS § 323D-47)

186-36



§11-186-87

§ 11-186-83 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]
§ 11-186-84 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-85 Prochibition on transfers. 2

certificate of need [ef—aﬁ—e*emp%&eﬁ—éfem—eef%&éiea%e
eé—ﬂeed—feqa&femeﬁ%ﬁl is issued only to the applicant
named in the application. The certificate of need [ex
the—exemption] shall not be sold, assigned, leased,
donated, or otherwise transferred to any other person
[Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp ]  (Auth: HRS
§ 323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

§ 11-186-86 Effect of decision on future
proposals. [+=] The issuance or denial of a
certificate of need for a specific project in an
applicant's long-range development plan shall be
without prejudice to any agency action or decision on
any future or other application for a certificate of
need filed by the same applicant for another project in
its long-range development plan.

[ —Fre—Sssuanrcse—er—denial of an cxemption from
sertificate of need reqguirementsshall be-without

ek . oo

= . £

the—same—appricants] [Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp
] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS §
323D-12)

§ 11-186-87 Periodic monitoring. After a
certificate of need :ef—aﬁ—e¥emp%&eﬁ—éfem—eef%éééea%e
ofneed—reguirements] 1s [wsed] issued, the agency
shall periodically monitor the development and progress
of the project that is the subject of the certificate
of need [exr—the—exemption]. [Eff. 2/9//81; am and comp

]  (ARuth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS
§§ 323D-46.2, 323D-53)

186-37



§11-186-88

§ 11-186-88 Agency's right to inspect. The
agency or an authorized representative designated by
the agency shall have the right to inspect any
facility, site, location, book, document, paper, filed,
or other record of the holder of the certificate of
need [er—the exemption] that is related to any project
authorized by the certificate of need [exr—the

: ], in order to monitor and evaluate the
holder's compliance with the certificate of need's [ex
theerempiionls] terms of issuance. [Eff. 2/9/81; am
and comp ]  (Ruth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp:
HRS &§§ 323D-46.2, 323D-53)

§ 11-186-89 Periodic reports. After a
certificate of need [ = i
i ] is issued, the holder of the
certificate of need [er—exemptier] shall file with the
agency such periodic reports as the agency may from
time to time require on the development and progress of
the project that is the subject of the certificate of
need [es—the—enemption]. The periodic reports shall be
in the format designated by the agency, shall contain
the information required by the agency, and shall be
filed within the deadlines specified by the agency.
[Eff. 2/9/81; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
323D-62) ({(Imp: HRS §§ 323D-12, 323D-46.2, 323D-53)

i -] (Eff. 2/9/81; R
] {Auth: HRS § 323D-62) (Imp: HRS
§ 323D-12) '

-

186-38



§11-186-91

§ 11-186-91 Withdrawal of certificate of need [or
exemption]. (a) At any time after a certificate of
need [ i i£5
reguirements] is issued, the agency may withdraw the
certificate of need [er—the—esxemptienr] if the agency
determines that:

(1) The holder of the certificate of need [ex—the
exemptieon] is not meeting the timetable
specified in the approved application and is
not making a good faith effort to meet it;
or

{2} The project being implemented differs
substantially from that which was authorized
by the certificate of need [er—the
exempeion] .

(b) The agency may withdraw at any time a

certificate of need [er—an—exemption] if the agency

determines that the applicant procured the certificate
of need [exr—the—exemption] by fraud, misrepresentation,
or corruption, or that the applicant submitted or
caused to be submitted to the agency false statements
or information in correction with the application for
the certificate of need [er—the——exemption)].

{c} In any proceeding brought by the agency to
withdraw a certificate of need [er—arexemptieon], the
agency shall provide notice and an opportunity for a
hearing in accordance with chapter 91, Hawaii Revised
Statutes [—ard—the—agerey—shadl follow the procedures
in—section—11i—386-82—onrdscetion31—186—83]

[+d+—%ﬂ—aﬂy—@feeeeé&ﬁg—bfeagh%—by—%he—ageﬂeyhee
withderanw—a—eertificate—of-need or on exemption—the
ageney—shatt—have—the—burder—eof proofi—including the
l i c e L q e I c

persuasieon—The—degreeor guantum of precf shall be—a
preponderanece—ef the evidenese]. [Eff. 2/9/81; am and
comp ] (Ruth: HRS § 323D-46.2) (Imp:

HRS § 323D-46.2)

SUBCHAPTER 8

[ E#EMPTTONS—AND] EMERGENCY SITUATIONS

186-39



§11-186-96

§ 11-186-96 Repealed. [R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-97 Repealed. (R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-98 Repealed. (R 1/21/88]

§ 11-186-99 Emergency situation. (a) If an
emergency situation is believed to exist, the applicant
may file an emergency application for a certificate of
need on the form prescribed and furnished by the
agency.

(b) For purposes of this section, an emergency
situation is a state of affairs involving an actual
substantial injury to public health or where there is a
clear and present danger of such an injury occurring.

{c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this
chapter to the contrary, when the agency determines
that the emergency application is complete and before
the agency files a decision on the merits of the
application, the agency shall make a reasonable effort
to consult with and to provide written or oral
notification of the application to the chairperson of
the statewide council, the chairperson of the review
panel, and, in the event that the agency has determined
that the application's primary target group is less
than the entire population of the State, the
chairperson of the appreopriate subarea council or
countywide review committee, or to an authorized
representative of any chairperson.

(d) After consideration of any timely comments or
recommendations on the emergency application, the
agency shall file a decision on the merits of the
application pursuant to section 11-186-70 within ten
days after the agency determines that the application
is complete. The agency may 1lssue a certificate of
need if the agency determines that an emergency
situation exists, The agency shall deny the
certificate of need if the agency determines that an
emergency situation does not exist, that the proposal
is indirectly related to an emergency situation, or

186-40



§11-186-99.1

that other good cause exists for the denial of the
certificate of need.

{e) The decision on the merits of the emergency
application in subsection (d) of the section is the
final decision of the agency. The decision shall
become final upon its filing without an opportunity for
any person to request a public hearing for
reconsideration of the decision pursuant to section 11-
186-82.

(f} Except as provided in section 11-186-10, the
agency's denial of a certificate of need under this
section is without prejudice to the applicant's right
to file a non-emergency application for a certificate
of need for the same proposal, on the form prescribed
and furnished by the agency. [Eff. 2/9/81; comp

] (Auth: HRS § 323D-44) (Imp: HRS §
323D-44)

§ 11-186-99.1 Administrative review of certain
proposals. (a) The agency may review and approve,
conditionally approve, or disapprove certain
applications for certificate of need without referring
the applicaticons to the subarea council, the review
panel, the statewide council, or the countywide review
committee.

(b) Projects eligible for administrative review

are:

(1) Bed changes which will have a capital expense
of $1,000,000 or less, and which will have an
increased annual operating expense of less
than $500,000;

(2) Service changes which will have a capital
expense of $1,000,000 or less, and which will
have an increased annual operating expense of
less than $500,000;

(3} Any acquisition of a health care facility or
service which will result in lower annual
operating expenses for that facility or
service;

(4) Any change of ownership, where the change is
from one entity to another substantially
related entity;

186-41



§11-186-99.1

(S) An additional location of an existing service
or facility; or
(6) Any proposal which is determined by the
agency not to have a significant impact on
the health care system.
(¢} An applicant whose proposal meets one or more
of the criteria in subsection (b) may submit an
application for administrative review and approval.

[?h&ﬂm$HﬁﬁP5hat%—Ee%Hﬁ+iﬁﬁF@*%&ﬁ%ﬁHE&EﬁH%ﬁ&%h*ﬁ_

Fpoias S b leens

(d} The agency shall deny any request for
administrative review if it determines that: the
application does not meet any of the criteria in
subsection (b), or that the public interest will be
served by requiring the application to go through the
standard review process. Any application which is
denied an administrative review under this subsection
may be resubmitted by the applicant for review under
the standard procedure. A denial of administrative
review under this subsection does not constitute a
certificate of need disapproval.

(e} The agency may approve a certificate of need
for any application submitted under this chapter if the
agency determines that the application meets one or
more of the eligibility criteria in subsection (b), and
that the application meets the criteria for certificate
of need as established in section 11-186-15(a); and
that there is no compelling public interest which will
be served by requiring the application to go through
the standard review process.

(f} The agency shall disapprove any application
submitted under this section if it determines that the
application does not meet the criteria for certificate
of need established in section 11-186-15(a). The
agency shall alsc disapprove any application for
certificate of need, whether it has been submitted for
administrative review or standard review, if the
application is inconsistent with or contrary to the
state health services and facilities plan under section
323D-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

(g) A decision under this section shall become
final after the time expires for any person to request
a public hearing for reconsideration of the decision
pursuant to section 11-186-82.

{h) Sections 11-186-35 through 11-186-41, 11-186-
44 through 11-186-51, and 11-186-70 shall not apply to

186-42



§11-186-125

administrative reviews under this sectiocon. [EEE.
1/21/88; am and comp ] (ARuth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: SLH 1987, Act 270, § 2}

SUBCHAPTER 9

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

the—eourse—of the—reviews=] [Eff. 2/9/81; R
] (Auth: HRS § 323D-62) {(Imp. HRS §
323D-12)

§ 11-186-125 Severability. If any provision of
this chapter, or the application therecf to any person
or circumstance is held [valid] invalid, the invalidity
does not affect other provisions or applications of the
chapter which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end the
provisions of this chapter are severable.” [Eff.
2/9/81; am and comp ] {Buth: HRS §
323D-62) (Imp: HRS § 323D-12)

2. Material, except source notes and other notes,
to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. New material
is underscored.

3. Additions to update source notes and other
notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are
not underscored.

4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter

186-43



11-186, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take effect
ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant

Governor.

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the
rules drafted in Ramseyer format pursuant to the
requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, which were adopted on , 2019 and
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

ROMALA SUE RADCLIFFE
Administrator, State Health
Planning and Development
Agency

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Attorney General

186-44



V. Legislative Matters — Update on the following:

a. Senate Bill 1348 SD1 HD1, Relating to the
Small Business Regulatory Review Board —
Clarifies the intent of the small business
regulatory review board when reviewing state
and county administrative rules and
ordinances that impact small business



SB1348 SD1 HD1

Measure Title:

Report Title:

Description:

Companion:
Package:

Current Referral:

RELATING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD.
Small Business Regulatory Review Board; Powers

Clarifies the intent of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board's powers when
reviewing state and county administrative rules and ordinances that impact small
businesses. Makes an appropriation. (SB1348 HD1)

None
EDB, FIN

Introducer(s): K. RHOADS, Wakai

Sort by

Date Status Text

1/24/2019 S Introduced.

1/24/2019 S Passed First Reading.

1/28/2019 S Referred to EET, JDC.

1/31/2019 S The committee(s) on EET has scheduled a public hearing on 02-04-19 3:00PM in
conference room 414.
The committee(s) on EET recommend(s) that the measure be PASSED, UNAMENDED. The

2/4/2019 S votes in EET were as follows; 4 Aye(s): Senator(s) Wakai, Taniguchi, Inouye,
J.Keohokalole; Aye(s) with reservations: none ; 0 No(es): none; and 1 Excused: Senator(s)
Fevella.

2/15/2019 S Reported from EET (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 421) with recommendation of passage on
Second Reading and referral to JDC,

2/15/2019 S Report adopted; Passed Second Reading and referred to JDC.
The committee(s) on JDC will hold a public decision making on 02-26-19 9:00AM in

gRlR: = conference room 016.
The committee(s) on IDC recommend(s) that the measure be PASSED, WITH

2/26/2019 S AMENDMENTS. The votes in JDC were as follows: 4 Aye(s): Senator(s) K. Rhoads, Wakai,
Gabbard, Kim; Aye(s) with reservations: none ; 0 No{es): none; and 1 Excused: Senator(s)
Fevella.
Reported from JDC (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 1015) with recommendation of passage on Third

3/1/2019 S :
Reading, as amended (SD 1),

3/1/2019 S 48 Hrs. Notice 03-05-19.
Report adopted; Passed Third Reading, as amended (SD 1). Ayes, 24; Aye(s) with

3/5/2019 S reservations: none . Noes, 0 (none). Excused, 1 (Senator(s) Harimoto). Transmitted to
House,

3/5/2019 H Received from Senate (Sen. Com. No. 456) in amended form (SD 1).

3/7/2019 H Pass First Reading

3/7/2019 H Referred to EDB, JUD, referral sheet 27

3/7/2019 H Bill scheduled to be heard by EDB on Wednesday, 03-13-19 10:00AM in House conference
room 309.

3/13/2019 H Th.e committee(s) on EDB recommend(s) that the measure be deferred until 03-15-19
11:30am.

3/14/2019 H Bill scheduled for decision making on Friday, 03-15-19 11:30AM in conference room 309.

3/15/2019 H Thle committee(s) on EDB recommend(s) that the measure be deferred until 03-20-19
11:30am,

3/15/2019 H Bill scheduled for decision making on Wednesday, 03-20-19 11:30AM in conference room
308.
The committees on EDB recommend that the measure be PASSED, WITH AMENDMENTS.

3/20/2019 H The votes were as follows: 8 Ayes: Representative(s) McKelvey, Kitagawa, Eli, Ichiyama,
Johanson, Quinlan, Yamashita, Matsumoto; Ayes with reservations: none; Noes: none; and
Excused: none,

3/22/2019 H Reported from EDB (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 1609} as amended in HD 1, recommending

passage on Second Reading and referral to JUD.




3/22/2019 H

Passed Second Reading as amended in HD 1 and referred to the committee(s) on JUD with
none voting aye with reservations; none voting no (0) and Representative(s) Quinlan,
Yamane excused (2).

3/27/2019 H

Bill scheduled to be heard by JUD on Friday, 03-29-19 2:05PM in House conference room
325.

3/29/2019 H

This measure has been deleted from the meeting scheduled on Friday 03-29-19 2:05PM in
conference room 325.

4/1/2019 H Re-referred to EDB, FIN, referral sheet 45
Bill scheduled to be heard by FIN on Wednesday, 04-03-19 2:30PM in House conference
4/2/2019 H room 308.
The committees on FIN recommend that the measure be PASSED, UNAMENDED. The votes
432019 H were as follows: 13 Ayes: Representative(s) Luke, Cullen, Eli, Gates, Hashimote, Kitagawa,
B. Kobayashi, Matayoshi, Nakamura, Todd, Wildberger, Yamashita, McDermott; Ayes with
reservations: none; Noes: none; and 2 Excused: Representative(s) Holt, Nishimoto.
4/5/2019  H Reported from FIN (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 2151), recommending passage on Third
Reading.
4/9/2019  H Passed Third Reading with none voting aye with reservations; none voting no (0) and none

excused (0). Transmitted to Senate.

4/11/2019 S

Received from House (Hse. Com. No. 787).

4/11/2019 S

Senate disagrees with House amendments.

4/11/2019 H

Received notice of disagreement (Sen. Com. No. 893).

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional

Amendment

Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader. Please visit Adobe's downlcad page for detailed

instructions.

SB1348 SD1 HD1



| V Leglslatlve Matters Update on the followmg
s ?_ “D. Gevernor S Message 559 Submlttmg for i
~ Consideration of the Gubernatorial
", N ommatmn of Mr. J onathan Shlck te the

Small Busmess Regulatory ReVleW Board for .
a term to explr‘e June 30, 2022



GM559

Submitting for consideration and confirmation to the Small Business Regulatory Review
Board, Gubernatorial Nominee, JONATHAN SHICK, for a term to expire 06-30-2022.

Report Title: Small Business Regulatory Review Board

Measure Title:

Description:
Companion:

Package:

Current Referral: EET
Introducer(s):

gﬁiﬂ Status Text

2/1/2019 S Received.

2/1/2019 S Referred to EET.

The committee(s) on EET has scheduled a public hearing on 03-29-19 2:50PM in

3252039 5 conference room 414.

The recommendation of the committee(s) on EET is to ADVISE AND CONSENT to the
nomination(s). The votes in EET were as follows: 3 Aye(s): Senator(s) Wakai, Taniguchi,
J.Keohokalole; Aye(s) with reservations: none ; 0 No(es): none; and 2 Excused: Senator(s)
Inouye, Fevella.

3/29/2019 S

Reported from EET (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 2069) with recommendation to Advise and

4/11/2019 S Goncent:

4/11/2019 S One Day Notice 04-12-19.

Confirmed. Ayes, 21. Aye(s) with reservations: ncne. Noes, 0 (none). Excused, 4

412/2019 S (Senater(s) S. Chang, lhara, Kidani, L. Thielen).

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional
Amendment

Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader. Please visit Adobe's download page for detailed
instructions.

GM559



V Leglslatlve Matters -~ Update on the followmg

- ;' c; Governor S Message 624 Submlttmg for ‘. S
e ‘Consideration for the Gubernatorlal |
. Nomination of Mr: James (Kimo) Lee to the -

~ Small Business Regulatory Review Board for - ot

: . a term to explre J une 30 2020



GM624

Submitting for consideration and confirmaticn to the Small Business Regulatory Review
Board, Gubernatorial Nominee, JAMES LEE, for a term to expire 06-30-2020.

Report Title: Small Business Regulatory Review Board

Measure Title:

Description:
Companion:

Package:

Current Referral: EET
Introducer(s):

Sort by
Date Status Text

2/28/2019 S Received.

2/28/2019 S Referred to EET.

The committee(s) on EET has scheduled a public hearing on 03-29-19 2:50PM in

3/25/2019 S conference room 414,

The recommendation of the committee(s) on EET is to ADVISE AND CONSENT to the
nomination(s). The votes in EET were as follows: 3 Aye(s): Senator(s) Wakai, Taniguchi,
J.Keohokalole; Aye(s) with reservations: none ; 0 No(es): none; and 2 Excused: Senator(s)
Inouye, Fevella.

3/29/2019 S

Reported from EET (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 2069) with recommendation to Advise and

4112019 S opant,

4/11/2019 S One Day Notice 04-12-19.

Confirmed. Ayes, 21. Aye(s) with reservations: none. Noes, 0 (none). Excused, 4

zpmy 5 (Senator(s) S. Chang, Ihara, Kidani, L. Thielen).

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional
Amendment

Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader. Please visit Adobe's download page for detailed
instructions.

GMo624



V Leglslatlve Matters - Update on the followmg

d Governor S Message 625 Submlttmg for |

| C0n51derat10n of the Gubernatoual S
Nommatlon of Mr Garth Yamanaka to the
Small Business Regulatory Rev1ew Board for
‘a term to expire J une 30 2023



GM625

Submitting for consideration and confirmation to the Small Business Regulatory Review

Measure Title: g, Gubernatorial Nominee, GARTH YAMANAKA, for a term to expire 06-30-2023.
Report Title: Small Business Regulatory Review Board

Description:

Companion:

Package:

Current Referral: EET

Introducer(s):

Sort by

Date Status Text

2/28/2019 S Received.

2/28/2019 S

Referred to EET.

3/25/2019 S

The committee(s) on EET has scheduled a public hearing on 03-29-19 2:50PM in
conference room 414,

3/29/2019 S

The recemmendation of the committee(s) on EET is to ADVISE AND CONSENT to the
nomination(s). The votes in EET were as follows: 3 Aye(s): Senator(s) Wakal, Taniguchi,
J.Keohokalole; Aye(s) with reservations: none ; 0 No(es): none; and 2 Excused: Senator(s)
Inouye, Fevella.

4/11/2019 S

Reported from EET (Stand. Com. Rep. No. 2069) with recommendation te Advise and
Consent.

4/11/2019 S

One Day Notice 04-12-19.

4/12/2019 S

Confirmed. Ayes, 21. Aye(s) with reservations: none. Noes, 0 (none). Excused, 4
(Senator(s) S. Chang, IThara, Kidani, L. Thielen).

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional

Amendment

Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader, Please visit Adobe's download page for detailed

instructions.

GMo625



VI. Administrative Matters

A.  Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy
Activities and Programs in accordance with
the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5,
HRS, as follows:

a. Meetings with Board Members and State
Department Directors

b.Changes to Board’s Website

c. Hawaii Small Business Fair at Leeward
Community Conference on May 4, 2019

d.Maui Small Business Conference at Maui
Arts & Cultural Center on May 8, and 9,
2019



	Structure Bookmarks
	§§431: 2-201,· 431 :·xx_-XXX-CGAD re Rules) (Imp: HRS §§431.:1-202 , 431:2-101, 431:XX-XXX-CGAD re Contents of 

	SBRRBAgendaApr2019DisLeaders.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Introduction of New Board Members
	III. Approval of March 21, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	IV. New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Title 8, Department of  Liquor Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of  Liquor Control, County of Maui, as follows – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz
	a. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating  Liquor of the County of Maui;  
	b. Chapter 102, Rules Governing the Administrative Practices and  Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication  Board of the County of Maui
	B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) 
	 Title 16, Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure, promulgated by Department  of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA) – Discussion Leader – Mark Ritchie
	C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 16, Chapter 185,  Annual Audited Financial Reporting, promulgated by DCCA – Discussion  Leader – Mark Ritchie
	D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 11, Chapter 186,  Certificate of Need Program, promulgated by Department of Health – Discussion  Leader – Harris Nakamoto

	V. Legislative Matters
	A. Update on the following Legislative Measures:
	a. Senate Bill 1348 SD1 HD1 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory  Review Board – Clarifies the intent of the small business regulatory review  board when reviewing state and county administrative rules and ordinances  that impact small business, and appropriates funds
	b. Governor’s Message 559 Submitting for Consideration of the  Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Jonathan Shick to the Small  Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2022
	c. Governor’s Message 624 Submitting for Consideration of the  Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. James Lee to the Small Business  Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2020
	d. Governor’s Message 625 Submitting for Consideration of the  Gubernatorial Nomination of Mr. Garth Yamanaka to the Small  Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2023

	VI. Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the following Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in  accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised  Statutes, as follows

	VII. Next Meeting: Thursday, May 16, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813
	VIII. Adjournment

	HAR 11-186 SBRRB Pre-Hearing Statement 4.11.2019.pdf
	If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following:
	* * *

	HAR 11-186 Ramseyer.pdf
	Structure Bookmarks
	Annot



	Date: 4/10/2019
	Department or Agency: State Health Planning and Development Agency
	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: Title 11 Chapter 186 
	Chapter Name: Certificate of Need Program
	Contact PersonTitle: Romala Sue Radcliffe Administrator
	Email: romala.radcliffe@doh. hawaii.gov
	Phone: 808-587-0786
	pursuant to HRS 927: No
	If Yes provide details: 
	New: Off
	Repeal: Off
	Amendment: On
	Compilation: On
	II Will the proposed rules affect small business: Yes_2
	statute or ordinance: No_3
	IV Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking HRS 201M2a: No_4
	Text 1: Health care small businesses will be required to comply with the proposed rule amendments. It is not anticipated that these businesses will be adversely affected as there are no new fees or new regulatory burdens associated with the rule amendments.  
	Text 2: None
	Text 2a: No new or increased fees or fines are proposed in the amendment.
	Text 2b: 
	Text 3: As a result of the deletion of the minor standard categories of services in the amendment, the Agency may see a decrease in overall certificate of need application fees which are deposited into its special fund, however, this potential decease would be nominal as there are few applications which are associated with the minor categories of services being deleted. The proposed rule amendments will not result in any monetary costs or benefits to any other agency.
	Text 2c: 
	Text 2d: 
	Text 4: The proposed rule amendments reduce the impact on small business by eliminating the one-year deadline for small businesses to complete their project, making letters of intent permissive rather than mandatory, by deleting minor standard categories of services, by updating terminology and resolving inconsistencies between the rules and statutes which have arisen as a result of changes that have been made to those statutes.  

	Text 5: There are no practical less restrictive alternatives available that could be implemented in lieu of the proposed amendments. 
	Text 6: The elimination of the one-year deadline for small businesses to complete their project and making letters of intent permissive rather than mandatory will provide more flexibility for small businesses in complying with the rules. 
	Text 7: As there are no new fees or new regulatory burdens associated with the proposed amendments, the Agency did not meet/consult with small businesses in the development of the rule amendments.
	Text 7a: 
	Text 8: There are no amendments proposed that are more stringent than those mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standard.
	Text 8b: 
	Text 8a: 
	Text 8c: 
	Text 8d: 
	Text 8e: 


